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ITC INFOTECH INDIA LIMITED

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR
ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023

Your Directors submit their Report for the financial year ended 31st March,
2023.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Indian Information Technology (IT) Industry remained resilient during
the year in the backdrop of heightened uncertainty in the global economic
environment. According to industry body NASSCOM, India’s technology
revenues are estimated to surpass USD 245 Bn in FY 2022-23 at an annual
growth rate of 8.4%. IT Services is estimated to grow at 8.3% over
FY 2021-22. The technology industry continues to play a pivotal role in
enabling organisations to accelerate digital transformation, optimise costs
and enhance operational efficiencies.

In this context, your Company remained agile to the evolving business
priorities of its clients and partnered with them in driving their growth
and transformation agenda. Your Company invested in strengthening
its existing capabilities and identifying newer opportunities for long-
term growth and differentiation. The Company’s portfolio of client and
industry-focused capabilities included PLM-led Digital Thread Solutions,
Digital Manufacturing, Open Hospitality, Cloud and Sustainability. The
Company continued to sharpen its focus on key customer relationships
across all industry verticals. Further to a Strategic Partner Agreement
with PTC Inc. (a global technology company headquartered in Boston,
USA), the Company started a new Service Line ‘DxP Services’, comprising
a global ecosystem of PLM-led Digital Thread and SaaS experts. Your
Company expanded its global footprint by setting up new subsidiaries
and branches in several countries. Your Company continued to shape
its differentiated employee value proposition built on the core tenets of
a compelling purpose & culture, holistic well-being, and global career
opportunities.

During the year, the Company’s consolidated Revenue from Operations
was I 3321.20 crores (previous year ¥ 2855.10 crores), representing
growth of 16.33%, with Profit Before Tax of ¥ 529.66 crores (previous
year X 719.64 crores). Net Profit stood at ¥ 405.25 crores (previous year
% 541.04 crores) after considering certain costs associated with the
Strategic Partner Agreement with PTC Inc. and investments in strategic
focus areas.

Your Company’s business-friendly solutions and new-age capabilities
continued to gain global recognition across analyst firms. Your
Company was positioned as ‘Innovator’ in Avasant’s CPG Digital Services
2022-2023 RadarView, secured ‘Disruptor’ positionings in their
(1) Digital CX Services 2022 RadarView, (2) Digital Workplace Services
2022 RadarView, (3) Manufacturing Digital Services 2022-2023 RadarView,
(4) Intelligent Automation Services 2022 RadarView, and featured as
‘Challenger’ in their GCC Region Digital Services 2022-23 RadarView.
Your Company’s Automation Capability was recognised with 3 Leadership
Positions in the Zinnov Zones Hyperintelligent Automation Services H1
2023 for (1) Intelligent Automation — Mid Tier Service Providers, (2) RPA —
Mid Tier Service Providers, and (3) Intelligent Automation Services — Retail
& CPG.

The Company stays focused on its strategic pillars of Customer Centricity,
Employee Centricity and Operational Excellence, towards fulfilling its
vision of providing business-friendly solutions to its clients. As clients
across industries and geographies are looking to drive cost efficiencies
while sustaining growth momentum, your Company is focused on being
their trusted partner in this journey. Towards this, the Company will
continue to make client and employee-focused investments to enable it
to enter the next phase of its growth and differentiation. An endorsement
of this strategy has been winning of a multi-million, multi-year deal in end
March, 2023 from an existing marquee client which will bolster mid-term
revenue growth.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Your Company’s standalone and consolidated financial results for the year
under review are provided below:

Standalone Consolidated (*)

® in crores) R in crores)
Year Ended 31st March 2023 2022 2023 2022(#)
Total Income 2673.30 | 2316.36 | 3363.06 2884.30
Total Expenses 2209.51 | 1627.06 | 2833.40 2164.66
Profit before Tax 463.79 | 689.30 529.66 719.64
Tax Expenses 110.41 171.49 124.41 178.60
Profit after Tax 353.38 | 517.81 405.25 541.04

(*) including the financial results of ITC Infotech Limited, ITC Infotech (USA),
Inc. (Infotech USA), ITC Infotech Do Brasil LTDA., ITC Infotech France SAS and

ITC Infotech GmbH, wholly owned subsidiaries of your Company, and Indivate
Inc., wholly owned subsidiary of Infotech USA.

(#) The figures for the year 2022 do not include financials of new subsidiaries
incorporated during the FY 2022-23.

INCREASE IN SHARE CAPITAL

During the year, the Company issued 28,00,000 Equity Shares of
% 10/- each on rights basis to ITC Limited, the Holding Company ('ITC’),
consequent to which the Issued and Paid-up Share Capital of the Company
as on 31st March, 2023 increased to ¥ 88 crores, divided into 8,80,00,000
Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each.

DIVIDEND

During the year, an interim dividend of ¥ 17/- per share on 8,80,00,000
Equity Shares (previous year: ¥ 53/- per share on 8,52,00,000 Equity
Shares) of ¥ 10/- each, aggregating ¥ 149.60 crores, was declared by the
Board of Directors of the Company (‘the Board’) on 23rd March, 2023.
The Board has recommended that the said interim dividend be confirmed
as the final dividend for the financial year ended 31st March, 2023.

WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

Details about subsidiaries of your Company, including highlights of their
performance and their contribution to the overall performance of the
Company, are covered in Annexure 1 to this Report.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
Changes in Directors during the year

Messrs. Supratim Dutta (DIN: 01804345) and Rajendra Kumar Singhi
(DIN: 00009931) were appointed, with your approval, as Non-Executive
Directors of the Company with effect from 21st July, 2022.

Messrs. Rajiv. Tandon (DIN: 00042227) and Biswa Behari Chatterjee
(DIN: 00045140) retired by rotation at the 26th Annual General Meeting
(‘AGM’) of the Company and ceased to be Directors from the conclusion
of the AGM on 20th July, 2022. Your Directors place on record their
appreciation for the valuable contribution made by Messrs. Tandon and
Chatterjee during their association with the Company.

Mr. Sudip Singh will complete his present term as the Managing Director
& Chief Executive Officer of your Company on 31st January, 2024. The
Board at the meeting held on 3rd May, 2023, on the recommendation of
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, has recommended for the
approval of the Members, the re-appointment of Mr. Singh as a Director,
not liable to retire by rotation, and also as the Managing Director &
Chief Executive Officer of your Company for a period of five years with
effect from 1st February, 2024.

Requisite Notice under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)
has been received by the Company for the appointment of Mr. Singh, who
has filed his consent to act as a Director of your Company, if appointed.

Appropriate resolution seeking your approval to the aforesaid re-
appointment of Mr. Singh is appearing in the Notice convening the
ensuing AGM of the Company.

Retirement by Rotation

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Act read with
Articles 143 and 144 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
Messrs. Sanjiv. Puri (DIN: 00280529) and Sivakumar Surampudi
(DIN: 00341392) will retire by rotation at the 27th AGM of the Company
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. Your Board has
recommended their re-election.

Change in Key Managerial Personnel during the year

Mr. Sanjay Virendrakumar Shah (Membership No.: ACS 5944) stepped
down as the Company Secretary of the Company with effect from
close of work on 26th June, 2022. The Board, on the recommendation
of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, appointed
Mr. Sharad Jain (Membership No.: ACS 19027) as the Company Secretary
of the Company with effect from 27th June, 2022, in terms of the
provisions of Section 203 of the Act.

BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEES

Currently, there are three Board Committees — the Audit Committee,
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee. The present composition of these Board
Committees is provided below:
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Audit Committee Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Mr. S. Dutta (Chairman)
Ms. P. Balaji

Mr. R. K. Singhi

Mr. S. Sivakumar (Chairman)
Mr. S. Dutta
Mr. R. K. Singhi

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Mr. S. Sivakumar (Chairman)
Mes. P. Balaji
Mr. R. K. Singhi

Number of Board Meetings

Ten meetings of the Board were held during the year ended 31st March,
2023.

ATTRIBUTES, QUALIFICATIONS AND APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS

As reported in the previous years, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee has adopted the attributes and qualifications as provided in
Section 149(6) of the Act and Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment
and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, to the extent applicable to the
Directors of the Company.

All the Non-Executive Directors of your Company are liable to retire by
rotation; one-third of them retire every year and are eligible for re-election.
The Non-Executive Directors of your Company fulfil the fit and proper
criteria for appointment as Directors.

BOARD EVALUATION

The Board carried out annual performance evaluation of its own
performance and that of the individual Directors as also functioning of the
Board Committees, in terms of Section 134 of the Act. The performance
evaluation of the Board and the Directors, as in the previous year, was
based on criteria approved by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee. Reports on functioning of Committees were placed before
the Board by the respective Committee Chairman.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Remuneration Policy for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior
Management and other employees of your Company is available on its
website and can be accessed at https://www.itcinfotech.com/compliance.

The salient features of the Policy, which remained unchanged during
the year, are as below:

Remuneration practices in your Company are designed to align each
employee with ITC Infotech’s superordinate goal of enhancing value
creation and to enable a congruence between individual aspirations and
the Company’s vision. The remuneration practices will continue to be
anchored on the principles of fairness, equity and consistency and will be
free of discrimination.

The Company’s Remuneration Policy, inter alia, provides:

1. To ensure that the Remuneration practices support and encourage
meritocracy.

2. To ensure that Remuneration is market-led and takes into account the
competitive context of the business.

3. To leverage Remuneration as an effective instrument to enhance
performance and therefore to link remuneration to both individual
and collective performance outcomes.

4. To design Remuneration practices such that they reinforce the
Company'’s values and culture and creates an organisation that is an
Employer of Choice.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Your Company’s Risk Management System - Policy & Framework is
designed to bring robustness to the risk management processes within
the Company and to address risks intrinsic to operations, financials and
compliances arising out of the overall strategy of the Company in a rapidly
changing technology landscape and a dynamic business environment.

The management of risks is embedded in the corporate strategies of
your Company that help in developing a world class business in the
field of Information Technology Services which match the organisational
capability with market opportunities.

Your Company has adopted the ISO 31000:2018 Risk Management
Principles and Guidelines in 2021. Accordingly, the Risk Management
Policy & Framework is assessed independently each year to ensure
alignment with the aforesaid global Standard on Risk Management.

While the Corporate Governance Policy lays down the roles and
responsibilities and authority at various levels, the corporate policies and
standard operating procedures set out the philosophy and processes

under which management needs to conduct the operations within a
control driven and risk managed environment.

The Company conducts risk assessment of customer projects and ensures
the provision of quality information technology services. The Company
maintains its certification under international standards viz ISO 9001: 2015
for Quality Management System, ISO/IEC 20000-1:2018 for Information
Technology Service Management System and ISO/IEC 27001:2013 for
Information Security Management System.

Under this backdrop, management of risks vests with the executive
management responsible for the day-to-day conduct of the affairs of your
Company. The Internal Audit Department of ITC Limited as the Internal
Auditors of your Company periodically carries out risk focused audits
which lead to the identification of areas where risk management processes
need to be strengthened. Further, the Corporate Audit Department of
your Company, comprising identified managers, verifies compliance with
laid down policies and procedures, and helps plug control gaps in the
formulation of control procedures for newer areas of operation; their
reports are provided to the Internal Auditors to enable a holistic approach
to audit.

Management provides an annual update to the Audit Committee on the
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management systems and policies. The
Audit Committee evaluates the effectiveness of risk management systems
and provides reassurance to the Board.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

Your Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with
reference to the financial statements, commensurate with its size and scale
of operations. The Internal Auditors evaluate the adequacy and efficacy of
such internal financial controls. The Audit Committee provides guidance
on internal controls, reviews internal audit findings and ensures that the
internal audit recommendations are implemented.

During the year under review, no reportable material weakness in the
design or operation of the internal financial controls in the Company
was observed. Nonetheless your Company recognises that any internal
financial control framework, no matter how well designed, has inherent
limitations. Therefore, regular audit and review processes are undertaken
to ensure that such systems are reinforced on an ongoing basis.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

The Annual Report on CSR activities of your Company as required under
Section 134(3)(o) read with Section 135 of the Act and the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is provided in
Annexure 2 to this Report.

During the year, the Company launched an exclusive programme for
promoting STEM (Science, Technology, Engineering and Mathematics)
education on a pilot basis, with the objective of helping youth from
economically weaker sections to strengthen their industry-readiness in the
field of data analytics, Mobile app development etc. The STEM Education
Programme of the Company has been named as “ASPIRE” — ITC Infotech’s
STEM Education Programme Enabling IT Industry Readiness, and it was
implemented during the year in colleges in Tamil Nadu and Assam
covering over 200 beneficiaries.

OTHER INFORMATION
I. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY & TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

Considering that your Company is in the business of providing
information technology services and solutions, no comment is
required on conservation of energy and technology absorption. Your
Company being a software solution provider requires minimal energy
consumption and every endeavour is made to ensure optimal use of
energy.

Il.  FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The foreign exchange earnings of your Company during the year
aggregated I 1972.50 crores (previous year: ¥ 1682.93 crores),
while the outgoings aggregated ¥ 492.34 crores (previous year:
T 191.79 crores).

1. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The particulars of the Company’s employees, pursuant to Rules 5(2)
and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, including details of employees
who had drawn remuneration more than the limits specified in the
said Rules, are provided in Annexure 3 to this Report. In terms of the
proviso to Rule 5(3), particulars of employees posted and working in
a country outside India have not been included in the Annexure. Such
details will be furnished to the Company’s shareholders upon request.
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IV. ANNUAL RETURN

As per the provisions of Section 92(3) and Section 134(3)(a) of the Act, the
Annual Return in Form No. MGT-7 is available on the Company’s website
and can be accessed at https://www.itcinfotech.com/compliance.

V. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the
provisions of Section 186 of the Act are provided in Note 3 to the
Financial Statements of the Company.

VI. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH
RELATED PARTIES

All contracts or arrangements entered into by the Company with its
related parties during the financial year were in the ordinary course of
business and on arm’s length basis. The details of material transactions
entered into by your Company with its related parties are provided in
Annexure 4 (Form No. AOC-2) to this Report.

COST RECORDS

Your Company, being in the business of providing information
technology services and solutions, is not required to maintain cost
records, as specified by the Central Government under Section 148(1)
of the Act.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

To the best of knowledge & belief and according to the information and
explanations obtained, your Directors, in terms of Sections 134(3)(c) and
134(5) of the Act, confirm having:

i. followed in the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the financial

year ended 31st March, 2023, the applicable accounting standards
along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

VII.

ii. selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so
as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at
the end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for that
period;

ii. taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of your Company and for preventing and
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv. prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis; and

v. devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating
effectively.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS

/ COURTS / TRIBUNALS

During the year under review, no significant or material orders were

passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going
concern status of the Company and its future operations.

AUDITORS
(a) Statutory Auditors

Messrs. Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, Chartered Accountants, Firm
Registration Number 117366W/W-100018 (‘DHS’), were re-
appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of
five years to hold office from the conclusion of the 26th AGM held on
20th July, 2022 until the conclusion of the 31st AGM.

The Board, in terms of Section 142 of the Act and on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee, has recommended for the
approval of the Members, the remuneration to DHS to conduct the
audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the
financial year 2023-24.

Appropriate resolution seeking your approval in respect of the

remuneration to DHS is included in the Notice convening the
27th AGM of the Company.

(b) Secretarial Auditors

~

Your Board appointed Messrs. Vinod Kothari & Company, Practising
Company Secretaries, to conduct the Secretarial Audit of your
Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2023. The
Secretarial Auditors have confirmed that your Company has complied
with the applicable laws and that there are adequate systems and
processes in your Company commensurate with its size and scale of
operations to monitor and ensure compliance with the applicable
laws.

The Report of the Secretarial Auditors, in terms of Section 204(1) of
the Act, is provided in Annexure 5 to this Report.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

Your Company has complied with the requirements of the Secretarial
Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and
approved by the Central Government under Section 118(10) of the Act.

DISCLOSURE AS PER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT,
2013

Your Company has zero tolerance towards any sexual harassment at the
workplace. In line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women
at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the
Rules made thereunder, the Company has in place an Internal Complaints
Committee for conducting inquiry into the complaints received on
harassments at the workplace. During the year under review, the Internal
Complaints Committee did not receive any complaint.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors thank the clients, partners and vendors for their continued
support, and employees for their unstinted support, hard work, solidarity
and co-operation.

On behalf of the Board

S. Sivakumar S. Singh
Vice Chairman Managing Director & CEO
Date: 3rd May, 2023 Hyderabad Bengaluru
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

New subsidiaries incorporated

The Company expanded its global footprint by setting up new subsidiaries in Brazil, France, Germany, Malaysia & Mexico and branches in Abu Dhabi,
Canada, ltaly, Poland, Romania and Switzerland. The expanded on-shore / near-shore presence in these countries will enable the Company to strengthen
its capabilities to cater to the business and strategic needs of its global clientele.

The names of the new subsidiaries incorporated are stated below:
NAME OF THE SUBSIDIARY
ITC Infotech Do Brasil LTDA. (Infotech Brazil)
ITC Infotech Malaysia SDN. BHD. (Infotech Malaysia)
ITC Infotech France SAS (Infotech France)
ITC Infotech GmbH (Infotech Germany)
ITC Infotech de México, S.A. de C.V.

DATE OF INCORPORATION
10th October, 2022

3rd February, 2023

8th February, 2023

10th March, 2023

17th April, 2023

The above subsidiaries are / will be engaged in the business of providing information technology services and solutions.

The statement in Form AOC-1 containing the salient features of the financial statements of ITC Infotech Limited (Infotech UK), ITC Infotech (USA), Inc.
(Infotech USA), Infotech Brazil, Infotech France and Infotech Germany, wholly owned subsidiaries of your Company, and Indivate Inc., wholly owned
subsidiary of Infotech USA, for the financial year 2022-23 is attached to the Financial Statements of the Company. The Company, being an intermediate
wholly owned subsidiary, is not required to prepare Consolidated Financial Statements.

The highlights of performance of the subsidiaries of your Company during the year under review are set out below:

Company Currency Revenue Net Profit
2022-23 2021-22 2022-23 2021-22
Infotech UK GBP in Million 30.30 40.02 1.45 0.79
Infotech USA USD in Million 145.13 133.34 3.87 2.52
Indivate Inc. USD Million 4.15 0.42 0.80 0.01
Infotech Brazil BRL Million 1.37 NA 0.12 NA
Infotech France EUR 7150 NA 552 NA
Infotech Germany EUR 7150 NA 442 NA

The Subsidiary incorporated in Malaysia did not have any business activity during the financial year ended 31st March, 2023 and hence had no profits.

ANNEXURE 2 TO THE REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Annual Report on CSR Activities of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2023

1. Brief outline

ITC Infotech India Limited, being a wholly owned subsidiary of ITC Limited (‘ITC’), will discharge its corporate social responsibility by aligning itself with
the CSR Policy of ITC and by undertaking CSR activities in areas or subjects which are independent of the normal conduct of the Company’s business
and are aligned to the activities listed in Schedule VII read with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014.

Salient features of the Company’s CSR Policy:

The Company -

v Will undertake CSR activities (a) directly, or (b) through a registered public trust or a registered society or a company under Section 8 of the
Act, established by ITC or otherwise, having track record of at least three years in undertaking CSR activities, or (c) through other implementing

agencies.

v May collaborate with ITC or other companies for undertaking CSR activities in such a manner that the respective companies are in a position to
report separately on the CSR activities being undertaken.

v Will spend in every financial year, two percent of its average net profits during the three immediately preceding financial years (or such other limit

as may be prescribed under the Act), on CSR activities in pursuance of the Policy.

2. Composition of the CSR Committee as on 31st March, 2023:

Sl. Name of Director Designation / Nature Number of meetings of Number of meetings
No. of Directorship CSR Commiittee held during of CSR Committee
the year attended during the year
1 Mr. S. Sivakumar (Chairman of the Committee) | Vice  Chairman  and P
Non-Executive Director
2 | Ms. P. Balaji Non-Executive Director 2 2
3 Mr. R. K. Singhi* Non-Executive Director 1

* Appointed Member w.e.f. 21st July, 2022.

3. Provide the web-link(s) where composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the Board are disclosed on the website of the
Company - https://www.itcinfotech.com/compliance.
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4. Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of Rule 8 of the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable - Not Applicable

5. (a) Average net profits of the Company as per sub-section (5) of Section 135 -3506.52 crores
(b) Two percent of average net profits of the Company as per sub-section (5) of Section 135 -3 10.13 crores
(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years - Nil
(d) Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any - Nil
(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)] -¥10.13 crores
6. (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project) -¥10.14 crores
(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads - Nil
(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable - Nil
(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)] - ¥10.14 crores
(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:
Amount Unspent (in %)
Total Amount Spent for Total Amount transferred to Unspent CSR Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule VI
the Financial Year (in%) | Account as per sub-section (6) of Section 135 as per second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135
Amount Date of transfer Name of the Fund Amount Date of transfer
%10.14 crores Nil
(f) Excess amount for set-off, if any:
SI. No. Particular Amount (in?)
M (2) 3)
0] Two percent of average net profits of the Company as per sub-section (5) of Section 135
(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year
(iii) Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)-(i)] Nil
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous Financial Years, if any
) Amount available for set-off in succeeding Financial Years [(iii)-(iv)]
7. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three Financial Years:

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Sl Preceding | Amount transferred to | Balance Amount in Amount Amount transferred Amount Deficiency,
No. | Financial | Unspent CSR Account | Unspent CSR Account | Spent to a Fund as specified remaining to | if any

Year(s) under sub- section (6) | under sub- section (6) | in the under Schedule VIl as per | be spent in
of Section 135 (in %) of Section 135 (inY) Financial second proviso to succeeding
Year sub- section (5) of Financial
(in%) Section 135, if any Years (in %)
Amount Date of
(in%) Transfer
Nil

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:

Not Applicable

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:

If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created / acquired

O Yes ) No

Sl Short particulars of the property or asset(s) Pin Code of Date of | Amount of Details of entity/ Authority/ beneficiary
No. | [including complete address and location of | the property | creation | CSR amount of the registered owner
the property] or asset(s) spent
M 2 (3) 4 ©) (6)
CSR Registration | Name | Registered
Number, if address
applicable
Not Applicable

9. Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two percent of the average net profit as per sub-section (5) of Section 135 — Not Applicable

Date: 3rd May, 2023

S. Sivakumar

Chairman - CSR Committee
Hyderabad

S. Singh
Managing Director & CEO
Bengaluru
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ANNEXURE 3 TO THE REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023

Information pursuant to Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

Top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn

Name Age Designation Gross Net Qualifications | Experience Date of Previous Employment/
Remuneration | Remuneration (Years) Commencement Position held
(G0} ®) of Employment /
Deputation
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
SINGH SUDIP 50 Managing Director & 6,00,82,031 3,34,76,167 M.B.A. 25 28-Jan-2019 Infosys Ltd., Global
Chief Executive Officer Industry Head - Energy,

Utilities, Resources &
Services Segment

BATRA RAKESH # 59 Chief Financial Officer 3,08,59,713 1,32,67,485 |B.Com (Hons.), 37 1-Sep-2006 ITC Ltd., Divisional
F.CA. Manager -Finance,
Marketing & FMCG
RAY KAUSHIK 52 Chief Human 1,56,92,213 1,04,11,439 M.B.A. 26 9-Feb-2022 Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories
Resources Officer Ltd., Vice President - HR
BALAKRISHNAN BRIJESH 47 | President - ClO Services | 1,52,87,548 98,84,709 PGDM 25 20-May-2021 CSS Corp Pvt. Ltd.,

Senior Vice President &
Delivery Head

RAJASEKHAR V V 58 Sr. Vice President 1,48,45,669 92,33,353 M.B.A. 34 1-Oct-2000 ITC Ltd., Divisional
Manager - IT Projects
MITRA SUBHRAKETAN # 47 | Vice President - Finance | 1,44,05,296 65,83,048 A.CA. 24 1-Sep-2017 ITC Ltd.,
Manager, Finance
MUKHERJEE AMARTYA # 44 | Vice President - Finance | 1,42,61,722 70,64,269 B.Com (Hons.), 20 4-Apr-2017 ITC Ltd.,
A.CA. Divisional Manager -
Finance
KUMAR SANDEEP 52 Sr. Vice President & 1,39,57,968 86,89,966 B.E., PGDM 27 26-Mar-2012 Infosys Ltd.,
Head Global Consulting Industry Principal
SHANKARAN SUNDARESH | 53 President - 1,39,26,616 90,70,049 B.E. 31 6-Jan-2020 Infosys Ltd.,
Manufacturing & CPG Vice President
EMMANUEL JAISMON 48 Sr. Vice President - 1,31,50,779 87,46,228 B.TECH. 23 31-Jul-2019 UST Global,
Business Excellence Senior Director

Other employees employed throughout the year and in receipt of remuneration aggregating ¥ 1,02,00,000/- or more per annum

Name Age Designation / Gross Net Qualifications | Experience Date of Previous Employment/
Nature of Duties Remuneration | Remuneration (Years) Commencement Position held
(@) (9} of Employment /
Deputation
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
KAKKAR ASHU 52 Chief Information 1,26,19,177 82,99,038 M.B.A. 28 8-Sep-2021 HCL Technologies, Vice
Officer President - Global
Information Technology
CHAWLA GAURAV 50 Sr. Vice President - 1,18,51,278 78,17,104 M.B.A. 23 31-Dec-2021 IBM India, General
Business Development Manager
SEN SANJOY 57 Sr. Vice President - 1,11,59,273 70,16,545 M.TECH. 34 17-0Oct-2000 Tata Technologies India
IT Services Ltd., Systems Manager
S EAKAMBARAM 54 Sr. Vice President - 1,08,97,049 71,63,985 B.E., PGDCA 34 1-Oct-2000 ITC Ltd.,
IT Project & Services Business Analyst
V'V PADMANABHAM 52 Vice President - 1,07,24,453 72,18,457 PGDCSA 25 17-Dec-2012 Britannia Industries Ltd.,
IT Services Head of Corporate IT

Other employees employed for a part of the year and in receipt of remuneration aggregating ¥ 8,50,000/- or more per month

Name Age Designation / Gross Net Qualifications | Experience Date of Previous Employment /
Nature of Duties Remuneration | Remuneration (Years) Commencement Position held
() ® of Employment /
Deputation
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
SARNA AMANDEEP SINGH 46 Sr. Vice President 1,25,76,777 67,29,923 M.C.A. 23 18-Jul-2022 Leela Palaces and Resorts

Ltd., Vice President —
Information Technology
WARTY ARJUN NITIN 43 Vice President 77,93,952 52,95,885 M.B.A. 19 19-Aug-2022 Zensar Technologies
Ltd., Head Corporate

Development

SHAH SANJAY V. # 62 Sr. Vice President & 72,77,387 36,89,846 B.Com., 39 13-Dec-2000 ITC Ltd., Assistant
Company Secretary A.CA., ACS. Company Secretary
VENKATRAMAN SREENIVAS | 48 President - 33,37,937 24,61,439 M.B.A. 24 4-Jan-2023 Publicis Sapient,
TRICHY Digital Experience Vice President
Notes :-

# On deputation from ITC Limited, the Holding Company (‘ITC’).

1. Gross Remuneration includes salary, performance bonus, allowances, long-term incentives, and other benefits / applicable perquisites borne by the Company, except the provisions for
gratuity and leave encashment which are actuarially determined on an overall Company basis. The term ‘remuneration’ has the meaning assigned to it under the Companies Act, 2013.

2. Net Remuneration comprises cash income less (a) income tax, & education cess deducted at source, and (b) employee’s own contribution to Provident Fund.

3. Some of the employees listed above have been granted Stock Options by ITC under its Employee Stock Option Schemes at ‘market price’ [within the meaning of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021]. Since these Stock Options are not tradeable, no perquisite or benefit is immediately
conferred upon the employee by grant of such Options and accordingly, the said grant has not been considered as remuneration.

4. All appointments are / were contractual in accordance with terms and conditions as per Company’s rules.

5. None of the above employees is a relative of any Director of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

S. Sivakumar S. Singh
Vice Chairman Managing Director & CEO
Date: 3rd May, 2023 Hyderabad Bengaluru



Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of

ANNEXURE 4 TO THE REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023

FORM NO. AOC - 2
[Pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under fourth proviso thereto.

1.

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: None

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis:

a) | Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship ITC Limited (Holding Company)
b) | Nature of contracts / arrangements / transactions Sale of IT Services
c) | Duration of the contracts / arrangements / transactions Continuing
d) | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions | - Provision of IT Services
including the value, if any - Pricing based on arm’s length margin
- Payment upon receipt of invoice
- Value of transactions during the year - ¥ 197.19 crores
e) | Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any N.A.
f) | Amount paid as advances, if any Nil
a) | Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship ITC Infotech Limited, UK (Subsidiary)
b) | Nature of contracts / arrangements / transactions Sale of IT Services
c) | Duration of the contracts / arrangements / transactions Continuing
d) | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions | - Subcontracting of execution and management of customer contracts
including the value, if any - Pricing based on arm’s length margin
- Periodic invoicing; payment within 90 days
- Value of transactions during the year - ¥ 115.95 crores
e) | Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any N.A.
f) | Amount paid as advances, if any Nil
a) | Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship ITC Infotech (USA), Inc. (Subsidiary)
b) | Nature of contracts / arrangements / transactions Sale of IT Services
c) | Duration of the contracts / arrangements / transactions Continuing
d) | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions | - Subcontracting of execution and management of customer contracts
including the value, if any - Pricing based on arm'’s length margin
- Periodic invoicing; payment within 90 days
- Value of transactions during the year - ¥ 691.89 crores
e) | Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any N.A.
f) | Amount paid as advances, if any Nil

Date: 3rd May, 2023

On behalf of the Board

S. Sivakumar S. Singh
Vice Chairman Managing Director & CEO
Hyderabad Bengaluru

ITC INFOTECH INDIA LIMITED
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ANNEXURE 5 TO THE REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]
To,
The Members,
ITC Infotech India Limited

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by ITC Infotech
India Limited (hereinafter called “Company”) for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 [“Audit Period”] in terms of the engagement letter dated
December 27, 2022. The secretarial audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conduct/statutory
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also
the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that
in our opinion, the Company has, during the Audit Period, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper
Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place.

We have examined the books, papers, minutes, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for the Audit Period, according to
the provisions of applicable law provided hereunder:

e The Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) and the Rules made thereunder;
e Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (“FEMA”) and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Overseas Direct Investment;

e Specific laws applicable to the industry to which the Company belongs, as identified and compliance whereof as confirmed by the management, that
is to say:

a. The Information Technology Act, 2000 and the Rules made thereunder.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards for Board Meetings (SS-1) and for General Meetings (SS-2)
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

We report that during the Audit Period, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, rules, standards etc. mentioned above.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted and the changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the Audit
Period, were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act and other applicable laws.

Notice along with agenda is given to all the Directors to schedule the Board Meetings and Committee meetings at least seven days in advance. In case of
meetings convened at shorter notice, requisite consent has been taken from the Directors/Committee Members. Further, a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All the decisions were unanimous and there was no instance of dissent in Board or Committee Meetings.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company, commensurate with its size and operations to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the Audit Period, the Company has undertaken the below mentioned specific event/action that can have a bearing on the
Company’s compliance responsibility in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, standards, etc:

a. Increase in Authorised Share Capital

The shareholders have approved increase in the authorised share capital of the Company from Rs.86,00,00,000/- (Rupees Eighty Six Crores) to
Rs.100,00,00,000/- (Rupees Hundred Crores).

b. Issuance of Further Capital on Rights Basis

The Board has approved issuance of 28,00,000 equity shares of the Company of Rs.10/- each on rights basis to ITC Limited, the Holding Company. The
Paid-up share capital of the Company consequently increased to Rs.88 crores.

c. Incorporation of Wholly Owned Subsidiaries

The Company has incorporated the following new wholly owned subsidiaries: ITC Infotech Do Brasil LTDA., ITC Infotech GmbH, ITC Infotech France
SAS, ITC Infotech Malaysia SDN. BHD. and ITC Infotech de México, S.A. de C.V.

Place: Kolkata For M/s Vinod Kothari & Company
Date: 3rd May, 2023 Practicing Company Secretaries
Unique Code: P1996WB042300

Pammy Jaiswal

Partner

Membership No.: A48046

CP No.: 18059

UDIN: A048046E000243043

Peer Review Certificate No.: 781/2020

The report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure ‘I’ and forms an integral part of this report
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To,

Annexure |
Auditor and Management Responsibility
ANNEXURE TO SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

The Members,
ITC Infotech India Limited

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
secretarial records based on our audit;

We have followed the audit practices and the processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the
secretarial records. The verification was done on a test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes
and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion;

Our Audit examination is restricted only up to legal compliances of the applicable laws to be done by the Company, we have not checked the practical
aspects relating to the same;

Wherever our Audit has required our examination of books and records maintained by the Company, we have relied upon electronic versions of
such books and records, as provided to us through online communication. Considering the effectiveness of information technology tools in the audit
processes, we have conducted online verification and examination of records, as facilitated by the Company, for the purpose of issuing this Report. In
doing so, we have followed the guidance as issued by the Institute;

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the Company as well as correctness of the values
and figures reported in various disclosures and returns as required to be submitted by the Company under the specified laws;

Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulation and happening of events
etc;

The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of the management. Our
examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis;

Due to the inherent limitations of an audit including internal, financial, and operating controls, there is an unavoidable risk that some misstatements or
material non-compliances may not be detected, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with audit practices;

The contents of this Report has to be read in conjunction with and not in isolation of the observations, if any, in the report(s) furnished/to be furnished
by any other auditor(s)/agencies/authorities with respect to the Company;

. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the

management has conducted the affairs of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of ITC Infotech India Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of
ITC Infotech India Limited (the “Company”), which comprise the Balance
Sheet as at 31st March, 2023, and the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes
in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and

a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements
give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2023, its
profit, total comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing (the “SAs”) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of
the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI”)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl’s Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone
financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

e The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to the Board’s
Report but does not include the special purpose consolidated financial
statements, standalone financial statements and our auditor’s reports
thereon.

e Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

* In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

e If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance
for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated
in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial

controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Company’s Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the
Company'’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the standalone financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company
has adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
standalone financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial
statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the
economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit
work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect
of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
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audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report
that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for
the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law
have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including
Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in
Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the relevant books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements
comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the
directors as on 31st March, 2023 taken on record by the Board of
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March,
2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164(2) of the Act.

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls
with reference to standalone financial statements of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness
of the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s
Report in accordance with the requirements of Section 197(16) of
the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of Section 197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s
Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending
litigations on its financial position in its standalone financial
statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts
including derivative contracts as at 31st March, 2023 for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

ii. There were no amounts which were required to be
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person or entity, including
foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been received by
the Company from any person or entity, including foreign
entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have
been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-
clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and
(b) above, contain any material misstatement.

V. As stated in Statement of Changes in Equity of the
standalone financial statements, the interim dividend
declared and paid by the Company during the year is in
compliance with Section 123 of the Act.

Vi. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 for maintaining books of account using accounting
software which has a feature of recording audit trail
(edit log) facility is applicable to the Company w.e.f. 1st
April, 2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g)
of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not
applicable for the financial year ended 31st March, 2023.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the
Order”) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section
143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants

(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)
Girish Bagri

Partner

(Membership No. 066572)

UDIN : 23066572BGXZLP7098

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 3rd May, 2023

ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone
Financial Statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements of ITC Infotech India Limited (“the Company”) as of
31st March, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls with reference to standalone

financial statements based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal
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financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of the
Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under
Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the adequacy of the internal financial controls system with reference to
standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s
internal financial controls system with reference to standalone financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone
Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial control with reference to standalone
financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control
with reference to standalone financial statements includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable

assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to
Standalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
with reference to standalone financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to
standalone financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material respects, an
adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements and such internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2023,
based on the criteria for internal financial control with reference to
standalone financial statements established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)
Girish Bagri
Partner

(Membership No. 066572)
UDIN : 23066572BGXZLP7098

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 3rd May, 2023

ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by
the Company and the books of account and records examined by us in the
normal course of audit, we state that:

(i) (a)A.The Company has maintained proper records showing full
particulars, including quantitative details and situation of
Property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress and
relevant details of right-of-use assets.

>

.The Company has maintained proper records showing full
particulars of intangible assets.

(b) The Company has a program of verification of Property, plant
and equipment, capital work-in-progress and right-of-use assets
so to cover all the Property, plant and equipment, capital work-
in-progress and right-of-use assets in a phased manner, which,
in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program,
certain Property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress
and right of use were due for verification during the year and
were physically verified by the Management during the year.
According to the information and explanations given to us, no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The Company does not have any immovable properties (other
than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease
agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee). Hence
reporting under clause (i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and
equipment (including right-of-use assets) and intangible assets
during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are
pending against the Company as at 31st March, 2023 for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made
thereunder.

(i) (@) The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting
under clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits
in excess of Rs. 500 lakhs, in aggregate, at any points of time
during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis
of security of current assets and hence reporting under clause
3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(i) (@) The Company has made investment in companies during
the year. The Company has not provided any guarantee or
security, and granted any loans or advances in the nature of
loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnership or any other parties during the year. Hence,
reporting under clause (iii)(a), (b) (except to the extent it
pertains to investments), (c), (d), (e) and (f) of the Order is not
applicable.

(b) The investments made during the year are, in our opinion,
prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

(iv) The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections
185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans
granted, investments made and guarantees and securities
provided, as applicable.

) The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which
are deemed to be deposits. Hence, reporting under clause 3(v)
of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the
Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by
the Company. Hence, reporting under clause (vi) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(vii) In respect of statutory dues:

(a) Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Services
tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax,
Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value
Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable
to the Company have been regularly deposited by it with the

appropriate authorities.
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(b)

*

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods
and Service tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance,
Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of
Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues
in arrears as at 31st March, 2023 for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above
which have not been deposited as on 31st March, 2023 on
account of disputes are given below:

Name Nature of dues | Forum where | Period to which | Amount
of the the dispute is the Amount Rin
Statute pending relates lakhs)
Finance Service tax CESTAT April 1, 2007 125.66"
Act, 1994 | (including to June 30, 2011
interest and
penalty)
Finance Service tax CESTAT / Joint | July 1, 2011 108.34*
Act, 1994 | (including Commissioner | to June 30, 2017
interest and (Appeals)
penalty)

Net of amount deposited under protest Rs.15.00 lakhs.

# Net of amount deposited under protest Rs.16.78 lakhs.

(viii)

(ix) (a)

(b)

©

()

O

®

) @

(b)

(xi) (a)

(b)

©

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded
income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loan or
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or any government
authority.

The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and
there are no outstanding term loans at the beginning of the
year and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is
not applicable.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the
Company, funds raised on short-term basis have, prima facie,
not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the
Company.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the
Company, the Company has not taken any loans (funds) from
any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of
its subsidiaries.

The Company has not raised loans during the year on the
pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries and hence reporting
on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public
offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during
the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order
is not applicable.

During the year, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or convertible
debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting
under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the
Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the
Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed
under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government, during the year and upto the
date of this report.

As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle
blower complaints received by the Company during the year
(and up to the date of this report).

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)(a)

(b)

(xv)

(xvi)(@)

(b)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 3rd May, 2023

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting
under clause (xii) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Sections 177
and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to applicable
transactions with the related parties and the details of related
party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

In our opinion, the Company has an adequate internal
audit system (comprising the internal and corporate audit
departments) commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year
under audit, issued to the Company during the year and till
date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit
procedures.

In our opinion, during the year the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or persons
connected with its directors, and hence provisions of Section
192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.

In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered
under Section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order
is not applicable.

In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the
Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause
3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial
year covered by our audit and the immediately preceding
financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the
Company during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of
realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements and
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as
to the future viability of the Company. We further state that
our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance
that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and
when they fall due.

The Company has fully spent the required amount towards

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and there is no unspent

CSR amount for the year requiring a transfer to a Fund specified

in Schedule VIl to the Companies Act or special account in

compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135

of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xx) of the
Order is not applicable for the year.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP

Chartered Accountants

(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Girish Bagri

Partner

(Membership No. 066572)

UDIN : 23066572BGXZLP7098
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2023

As at As at
Note No. 31st March, 31st March,
2023 2022
(% in Lakhs) (X in Lakhs)
| ASSETS
1 Non-current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2 3,462 3,604
(b) Capital-work-in-progress 2 3,717 87
(c) Other Intangible Assets 2 68,830 409
(d) Right-of-Use Assets 2 852 357
(e) Financial Assets
@) Investments 3(a) 14,269 8,704
(i) Others 5(a) 47 139
(f) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 9 1,553 3,470
(g9) Income Tax Assets (Net) 10 5,529 2,436
(h) Other Non-Current Assets 11 (a) 173 241
Sub-Total 98,432 19,447
2 Current Assets - -
(a) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 3 (b) 35,664 6,904
(i) Trade Receivables 6 41,134 27,696
(iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 7 5,247 976
(iv) Other Bank Balances 8 20,000 20,000
(v) Loans 4 - 0
(vi) Others 5 (b) 27,666 26,906
(b) Other Current Assets 11 (b) 8,329 3,992
Sub-Total 1,38,040 86,474
TOTAL 2,36,472 1,05,921
I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES - -
1 Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 12 8,800 8,520
(b) Other Equity 1,33,795 69,180
Sub-Total T 42,595 770
2 Non-current Liabilities - -
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Lease Liabilities 25 394 29
(i) Other Financial Liabilities 13 (b) 1,731 1,134
(iii) Payable towards acquisition of Business and Commercial Rights 36 21,327 -
(b) Provisions 14 (a) 4,104 1,891
Sub-Total T 275% T aos
3 Current Liabilities - -
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Lease Liabilities 25 461 334
(i) Trade Payables
- Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 13 (a) 14 37
- Total outstanding dues other than Micro and Small Enterprises 13 (a) 13,690 6,596
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 13 (0) 15,751 13,017
(iv) Payable towards acquisition of Business and Commercial Rights 36 30,947 -
(b) Other Current Liabilities 15 3,490 4,203
(c) Provisions 14 (b) 1,968 980
Sub-Total 66,321 25,167
TOTAL 2,36,472 1,05,921
The accompanying notes 1 to 39 are an integral part of the Financial Statements
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our Report of even date.
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number : 117366 W/W- 100018 On behalf of the Board
Girish Bagri S. Singh S. Sivakumar
Partner Managing Director Vice Chairman
Membership Number : 066572 Bengaluru Hyderabad
R. Batra S. Jain
Place : Bengaluru Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Date : 03 May, 2023 Bengaluru Bengaluru

Date : 03 May, 2023



STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023

Vi

Vi
Vil

Revenue from Operations
Other Income

Total Income (I1+11)

Expenses

Employee Benefits Expense
Finance Costs

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense
Other Expenses

Total Expenses

Profit Before Tax (l1I-1V)

Tax Expenses

Current Tax

Deferred Tax Charge / (Credit)

Profit for the Year (V-VI)
Other Comprehensive Income
(a) Items that will not be Reclassified Subsequently to Profit or Loss
- Remeasurement Gain / (Loss) of Net Defined Benefit Liability
Less: Tax Relating to Items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to Profit or Loss
(b) (i) Items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss
- Effective portion of losses on designated portion of
hedging instruments in a cash flow hedge
Less: Tax Relating to Items that will be reclassified
subsequently to Profit or Loss
Total Other Comprehensive Income
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year (VII+VIII)
Earnings Per Share (in %) (Face value % 10 each)
(Basic and Diluted)

For the year ended

Note No. 31st March, 2023
(X in Lakhs)
16 2,63,230
17 4,100
2,67,330
18 1,56,700
19 349
2 8,647
20 55,255
2,20,951
T 46379
21 (a)
9,012
2,029
11,041
35,338
48
21(b) (12)
(496)
125
(335)
35,003
27 40.69

The accompanying notes 1 to 39 are an integral part of the Financial Statements

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our Report of even date.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number : 117366 W/W- 100018

Girish Bagri
Partner
Membership Number : 066572

Place : Bengaluru
Date : 03 May, 2023

ITC INFOTECH INDIA LIMITED

For the year ended
31st March, 2022
(% in Lakhs)

2,28,857
2,779
2,31,636

1,27,221
142

2,279

33,064
1,62,706
68,930

17,923
(774)

17,149

51,781

(48)

12

(36)
51,745
60.78

On behalf of the Board

S. Singh

Managing Director

Bengaluru

R. Batra

Chief Financial Officer

Bengaluru

S. Sivakumar
Vice Chairman
Hyderabad

S. Jain
Company Secretary
Bengaluru

Date : 03 May, 2023



ITC INFOTECH INDIA LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023
A. Equity Share Capital
Balance at 1st April, 2021

(X in Lakhs)
Balance at 31st March, 2023

Changes in Equity Share
Capital during the year

Balance at 31st March, 2022 | Changes in Equity Share

Capital during the year

8,520 - 8,520 280 8,800
B. Other Equity (R in Lakhs)
Retained Capital Effective Portion | Securities Total
Earnings Contribution of Cash Flow Premium
for Share Based Hedges
Payments
Balance as at 1st April, 2022 60,384 8,796 - - 69,180
- Profit for the Year 35,338 - - - 35,338
- Other Comprehensive Income (Net of Tax) 36 - (371) - (335)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 35,374 - (371) - 35,003
- Issue of Equity Shares to Parent - - - 44,520 44,520
- Payment of Interim Dividend* :
@3 17.00/- per share on 8,80,00,000 Shares: ¥ 14,960 Lakhs (14,960) - - - (14,960)
- Recognition of Share Based Payment (Refer Note 29) - 52 - - 52
- Options Lapsed during the Year 461 (461) - - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 81,259 8,387 (371) 44,520 1,33,795
(X in Lakhs)
Retained Capital Effective Portion Securities Total
Earnings Contribution of Cash Flow Premium
for Share Based Hedges
Payments
Balance as at 1st April, 2021 51,581 10,993 - - 62,574
- Profit for the Year 51,781 - - - 51,781
- Other Comprehensive Income (Net of Tax) 36) - - - (36)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 51,745 - - - 51,745
- Payment of Interim Dividend* :
@3 20.50/- per share on 8,52,00,000 Shares: ¥ 17,466 Lakhs
@3 14.75/- per share on 8,52,00,000 Shares: ¥ 12,567 Lakhs
@3 17.75/- per share on 8,52,00,000 Shares: % 15,123 Lakhs (45,156) - - - (45,156)
- Recognition of Share Based Payment (Refer Note 29) - 17 - - 17
- Options Lapsed during the Year 2,214 (2,214) - - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 60,384 8,796 - - 69,180

* Payment of interim dividend in compliance with Companies Act, 2013

Retained Earnings: This represents the cumulative profits of the Company and effects of re-measurement of defined benefit obligations. This can be utilised in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Capital Contribution for Share Based Payments: This reserve represents fair value of options issued to employees under ITC Employee Stock Option Scheme by the Holding
Company.

Effective Portion of Cash Flow Hedges: This Reserve represents the cumulative effective portion of changes in Fair Value of hedging instrument that are designated as Cash Flow
Hedges. It will be reclassified to profit or loss or included in the carrying amount of the non-financial asset in accordance with the Company’s accounting policy.

Securities Premium: This Reserve represents the premium on issue of shares and can be utilized in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
The accompanying notes 1 to 39 are an integral part of the Financial Statements
This is the Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our Report of even date.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP,
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number : 117366 W/W- 100018

Girish Bagri
Partner
Membership Number : 066572

Place : Bengaluru
Date : 03 May, 2023

On behalf of the Board

S. Singh

Managing Director

Bengaluru

R. Batra

Chief Financial Officer

Bengaluru

S. Sivakumar
Vice Chairman
Hyderabad

S. Jain
Company Secretary
Bengaluru

Date : 03 May, 2023



ITC INFOTECH INDIA LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023

For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
(% in Lakhs) (T in Lakhs)
A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 46,379 68,930
ADJUSTMENTS FOR :
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 8,647 2,279
Net Gain on Sale of Investments (1,293) (818)
Property, Plant and Equipment - (Gain) / Loss on Sale / Discarded [net] (48) 3
Unrealised Loss / (Gain) on Exchange [net] 232 (328)
Share based Payments to Employees 52 17
Provision for Doubtful Receivables and Advances 651 345
Net loss arising on other liabilities measured at FVTPL 5,063 -
Interest Income 1,126) (714)
Finance Costs 349 16
Liabilities no Longer Required Written Back (15) 12,512 (72) 728
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES 58,891 69,658
ADJUSTMENTS FOR :
Trade Receivables, Loans and Advances and Other Assets (18,989) (19,942)
Trade Payables, Other Liabilities and Provisions 9,530 (9,459) 3,819 (16,123)
CASH FROM OPERATIONS 49,432 53,535
Income Tax Paid (Net) (11,987) (18,543)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 37,445 34,992
B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES : - -
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment and Capitalized Software (5,351) (2,042)
Payment towards acquisition of Intangible Assets - Business and
Commercial Rights* (Refer Note 36) (25,219) -
Purchase of Current Investments (4,80,176) (4,03,880)
Investment in Bank Deposits (original maturity more than 3 months) (40,000) (20,000)
Maturity of Bank Deposits (original maturity more than 3 months) 40,000 10,000
Sale / Redemption of Current Investments 4,52,709 4,24,561
Investment in Subsidiaries (5,565) -
Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 225 40
Interest Received on maturity of Bank Deposits 1,178 417
NET CASH (USED IN) / FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (62,200) 9,096
C  CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES : - -
Infusion of Share Capital, including Securities Premium 44,800 -
Interim Dividend on Equity Shares (Net of TDS) (13,464) (40,640)
Tax Deducted at Source on Dividend (1,496) (3,003)
Proceeds from Borrowings 26,000 -
Repayment of Borrowings (26,000) -
Interest Paid on Borrowings (336) -
Repayment of Lease Liability (Refer Note 25) (467) (328)
NET CASH FROM / (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES 29,037 (43,971)
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS T 4283 T 7
OPENING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 970 853
CLOSING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 5,253 970
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS COMPRISE :
Cash and Cash Equivalents as above 5,253 970
Unrealised (Loss) Gain on Foreign Currency Cash and Cash Equivalents 6) 6
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 7) - 5,247 976

*Excludes settlement of consideration for Business and Commercial Rights through service credits of INR 164 lakhs

The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method"” as set out in Indian Accounting Standard 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”.
The accompanying notes 1 to 39 are an integral part of the Financial Statements

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our Report of even date.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP,
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number : 117366 W/W- 100018 On behalf of the Board
Girish Bagri S. Singh S. Sivakumar
Partner Managing Director Vice Chairman
Membership Number : 066572 Bengaluru Hyderabad

R. Batra S. Jain
Place : Bengaluru Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Date : 03 May, 2023 Bengaluru Bengaluru

Date : 03 May, 2023



ITC INFOTECH INDIA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note No.

NATURE OF OPERATIONS

ITC Infotech India Limited (“the Company”) is a wholly owned subsidiary of
ITC Limited (“the Holding Company”) providing information technology
services to enterprise clients. The Company is incorporated and domiciled in
India and has its registered office at Kolkata, West Bengal, India.

T  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a)

b)

[9)]

d)

Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013. The financial statements have also been
prepared in accordance with the relevant presentation requirements
of the Companies Act, 2013.

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical
cost convention, except for certain items that are measured at fair
value, as explained in the accounting policies. The functional currency
of the Company is the Indian rupee ). These financial statements are
presented in X (rounded off to Lakhs).

Fair Value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.
In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company
takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account when
pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements
is determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 102 — Share-based
Payment, leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 116
— Leases, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as value in use in Ind AS 36 — Impairment
of Assets.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of the accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Actual results could
differ from those estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period; they are recognised in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

The following are the key judgements applied in the preparation of the
financial statements

1. Recognition of intangible assets: The Company has recognized
intangible assets relating to Business and Commercial Rights
during the year. These assets are amortized over 10 years
considering the expected economic benefits arising out of the
agreement with PTC Inc. The useful life of the intangible assets are
reviewed periodically and the impact of changes in the estimated
useful life is considered in the period in which the estimate is
revised. These assets are tested for impairment when there is an
indicator.

2. Hedging: The Company follows the principal of Hedge
Accounting for managing the risk arising from cash flow variability
on revenue forecast transactions. The amount accumulated in
Other Comprehensive Income are recycled on recognition of
the hedged item. In the event such hedge is rendered ineffective
or the forecast transactions are not expected to occur, the
cumulative amount accumulated in the Other Comprehensive
Income is immediately recognized in Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Operating Cycle

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current

as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out

in Schedule Ill of the Companies Act, 2013 and Ind AS 1 — Presentation
of Financial Statements based on the nature of services rendered and
their realisation in cash and cash equivalents.

Property, Plant and Equipment — Tangible Assets

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition or
construction less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any.

Cost is inclusive of inward freight, duties and taxes and incidental

e)

f

expenses related to acquisition. Expenses capitalised also include
applicable borrowing costs for qualifying assets, if any. All upgradation
/ enhancements are charged off as revenue expenditure unless they
bring similar significant additional benefits. An item of property, plant
and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of
asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Depreciation of these assets commences when the assets are ready
for their intended use which is generally on commissioning. Items
of property, plant and equipment are depreciated in a manner that
amortises the cost (or other amount substituted for cost) of the assets
after commissioning, less its residual value, over their useful lives as
specified in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013 on a straight line
basis.

The estimated useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment are as
follows:

Leasehold Properties - Building Shorter of lease period
Improvement or estimated useful lives
Plant and Equipment 15 Years

Furniture and Fixtures 10 Years

Motor Vehicles 8 Years

Office Equipment 5 Years

Computers, Servers and Networks 3 -6 Years

Electrical Installations and Equipment 10 Years

Property, plant and equipment’s residual values and useful lives are
reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and changes, if any, are treated
as changes in accounting estimate. Cost of assets not ready for use
before the year-end is treated as capital work-in-progress.

Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets that the Company controls and from which it
expects future economic benefits are capitalised upon acquisition and
measured initially:

a. for assets acquired in a business combination, at fair value on the
date of acquisition.

b. for separately acquired assets, at cost comprising the purchase
price (including import duties and non-refundable taxes) and
directly attributable costs to prepare the asset for its intended use.

Variable consideration, if any, for the purchase of intangible assets
not acquired in a business combination are initially included in the
cost of intangible assets at the fair value of all variable payments. The
Company recognizes a financial liability for such variable payments.
Subsequent changes in fair value of such financial liability is remeasured
through the Statement of Profit or loss, unless designated under
hedge accounting in which case, principles of hedge accounting are
followed.

Intangible assets represents purchased software and business and
commercial rights having finite useful lives. Such assets are amortized
over their estimated useful lives by the straight-line method unless it is
practical to reliably determine the pattern of benefits arising from the
asset.

The cost of acquisition of Business and Commercial Rights is amortised
on the straight-line method over a period of 10 years and the cost of
acquisition of software is capitalised in the year in which the software
is implemented for use and is amortised on the straight-line method
over a period of 3 to 5 years.

All intangible assets are tested for impairment. Amortization expenses
and impairment losses and reversal of impairment losses are taken to
the Statement of Profit and Loss. Thus, after initial recognition, an
intangible asset is carried at its cost less accumulated amortization and
/ or impairment losses.

Impairment of Assets

Impairment loss, if any, is provided to the extent that the carrying
amount of assets exceed their recoverable amount.

Recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of estimated
future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset
and from its disposal at the end of its useful life.

Impairment losses recognised in prior years are reversed when there
is an indication that the impairment losses recognised no longer
exist or have decreased. Such reversals are recognised as an increase
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in carrying amounts of assets to the extent that it does not exceed
the carrying amounts that would have been determined (net of
amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised
in previous years.

Foreign Currency Transactions

The presentation currency of the Company is the Indian Rupee.
Transactions in foreign currency are accounted for at the exchange
rate prevailing on the transaction date. Gains / losses arising on
settlement as also on translation of foreign currency denominated
monetary items are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derivatives and Hedge Accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period.
The resulting gains / losses are recognised in Statement of Profit and
Loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a
hedging instrument, in which event the timing of recognition in profit
or loss / inclusion in the initial cost of non-financial asset depends on
the nature of the hedging relationship and the nature of the hedged
item.

The Company complies with the principles of hedge accounting
where derivative contracts and / or non-derivative financial assets /
liabilities that are permitted under applicable accounting standards
are designated as hedging instruments. At the inception of the hedge
relationship, the Company documents the relationship between
the hedging instrument and the hedged item, along with the risk
management objectives and its strategy for undertaking hedge
transaction, which can be a fair value hedge or a cash flow hedge.

(i) Fair value hedges

Changes in fair value of the designated portion of hedging
instrument that qualify as fair value hedges are recognised in
profit or loss immediately, together with any changes in the
fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to
the hedged risk. The change in the fair value of the designated
portion of hedging instrument and the change in fair value of
the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk are recognised
in Statement of Profit and Loss in the line item relating to the
hedged item.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument
is derecognised, expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or
when it no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. The fair value
adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged item arising
from the hedged risk is amortised to profit or loss from that date.

(i) Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of hedging
instrument that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is
recognised in the other comprehensive income and accumulated
as ‘Cash Flow Hedging Reserve’. The gains / losses relating to the
ineffective portion are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Amounts previously recognised and accumulated in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss when the
hedged item affects the Statement of Profit and Loss. However,
when the hedged item results in the recognition of a non -
financial asset, such gains / losses are transferred from equity
(but not as reclassification adjustment) and included in the initial
measurement cost of the non - financial asset.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument
is derecognised, expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or
when it no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. Any gains / losses
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity at that time remain in equity and is reclassified when
the underlying transaction is ultimately recognised. When an
underlying transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gains
/ losses accumulated in equity are recognised immediately in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial instruments, Financial assets, Financial liabilities and
equity Instruments

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the relevant
instrument and are initially measured at fair value except for trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component,
which are measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
measured at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value on initial recognition of financial assets or financial

liabilities. Purchase or sale of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention
in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade
date, i.e., the date when the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset.

Financial Assets

Recognition: Financial assets include cash and cash equivalents,
investments, fixed deposits, trade receivables, advances and security
deposits. Such assets are initially recognised either at transaction price
or at fair value, as applicable, on becoming a party to contractual
obligations. The transaction price includes transaction costs unless the
asset is being fair valued through the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Classification: Management determines the classification of an asset
at initial recognition depending on the purpose for which the assets
were acquired. The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on such classification.

Financial assets are classified as those measured at:

(a) amortised cost, where the financial assets are held solely for
collection of cash flows arising from payments of principal and /
or interest.

(b) fair value through other comprehensive income, where the
financial assets are held not only for collection of cash flows
arising from payments of principal and interest but also from the
sale of such assets. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair
value, with unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the
fair value being recognised in other comprehensive income.

(c) fair value through profit or loss, where the assets are managed in
accordance with an approved investment strategy that triggers
purchase and sale decisions based on the fair value of such
assets. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value, with
unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value
being recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period
in which they arise.

Trade receivables, advances, security deposits, cash and cash
equivalents etc. are classified for measurement at amortised cost
while investments may fall under any of the aforesaid classes.
However, in respect of particular investments in equity instruments
that would otherwise be measured at fair value through profit or loss,
an irrevocable election at initial recognition may be made to present
subsequent changes in fair value through other comprehensive
income.

Impairment: The Company assesses at each reporting date whether
a financial asset (or a group of financial assets) such as investments,
trade receivables, advances and security deposits held at amortised
cost and financial assets that are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income are tested for impairment based on evidence
or information that is available without undue cost or effort. Expected
credit losses are assessed and loss allowances recognised if the credit
quality of the financial asset has deteriorated significantly since initial
recognition.

In calculating expected credit loss, the Company has also considered
credit reports and other related credit information for its customers to
estimate the probability of credit loss in future.

Reclassification : When and only when the business model is changed,
the Company shall reclassify all affected financial assets prospectively
from the reclassification date as subsequently measured at amortised
cost, fair value through other comprehensive income, fair value
through profit or loss without restating the previously recognised
gains, losses or interest and in terms of the reclassification principles
laid down in the Ind AS relating to Financial Instruments.

De-recognition: Financial assets are derecognised when the right to
receive cash flows from the assets has expired, or has been transferred,
and the Company has transferred substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership. Concomitantly, if the asset is one that is
measured at:

(a) amortised cost, the gain or loss is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss;

(b) fair value through other comprehensive income, the cumulative
fair value adjustments previously taken to reserves are reclassified
to the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the asset represents
an equity investment in which case the cumulative fair value
adjustments previously taken to reserves is reclassified within
equity.

Income Recognition on Financial Assets : Interest income is

recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss using the effective

interest method. Dividend income is recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss as other income only when the Company’s right
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to receive payments is established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity and the
amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities are initially
recognised at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised
cost. Any discount or premium on redemption / settlement is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as finance cost over the
life of the liability using the effective interest method and adjusted to
the liability figure disclosed in the Balance Sheet. Financial liabilities
are derecognised when the liability is extinguished, that is, when the
contractual obligation is discharged, cancelled and on expiry.

Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is included
in the Balance Sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Investment in Subsidiaries

Investment in subsidiaries is carried at cost less impairment, if any, in
the financial statements.

Revenue from Sale of Products and Services

The Company is engaged in providing information technology services
to enterprise clients. The Company derives its revenues primarily from
Information Technology (IT) services.

Revenues from customer contracts are considered for recognition
and measurement when the contract has been approved by the
parties to the contract, the parties to the contract are committed
to perform their respective obligations under the contract, and the
contract is legally enforceable. Revenue is recognised upon transfer of
control of promised products or services (“performance obligations”)
to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration which
the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or
services (“transaction price”).

The Company assesses the services promised in a contract
and identifies distinct performance obligations in the contract.
The Company allocates the transaction price to each distinct
performance obligation based on expected cost plus margin.
Revenue excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties, such as
sales tax, value added tax and goods and services tax.

Revenue is recognised from services performed on a “time and
material” basis, as and when the services are performed. Revenue
from Fixed price support services is recognised on a straight-line basis
when services are performed through a series of repetitive acts over a
specified period.

Revenue is recognised from services performed on other “time bound
fixed-price engagements” based on efforts expended using the
percentage of completion method of accounting, if work completed
can be reasonably estimated.

The cumulative impact of any revision in estimates of the percentage
of work completed is reflected in the period in which the change
becomes known. Provisions for estimated losses on such engagements
are made during the period in which a loss becomes probable and can
be reasonably estimated.

Revenue from sales of third-party vendor software hardware is
recognised upon delivery to customer. The billing schedules agreed
with customers include periodic performance-based billing and /
or milestone-based progress billings. Amounts received or billed in
advance of services performed are presented as unearned revenue
(contract liabilities). Unbilled revenue represents amounts recognised
based on services performed in advance of billing in accordance with
contract terms.

The incremental costs of obtaining a contract are recognized as
an asset and amortized to revenues in accordance with Ind AS
115 Revenue from contracts with customers. Capitalised costs are
monitored regularly for impairment. Impairment losses are recorded
when present value of projected remaining operating cash flows is not
sufficient to recover the carrying amount of the capitalised costs.

Employee Benefits

The Company makes contributions to both defined contribution
schemes and defined benefit schemes such as defined benefit pension
and gratuity plans which are mainly administered through duly

m)

n)

constituted and approved Trusts.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit obligation is
calculated by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit
method. Service costs and net interest expense or income is reflected
in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Gain or Loss on account of
remeasurements are recognised immediately in Other Comprehensive
Income in the period in which they occur.

The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated leave
for which the Company records the liability based on actuarial
valuation computed under projected unit credit method. This benefit
is unfunded.

Employee Share Based Compensation

Certain employees of the Company / the Holding Company
on deputation are covered under the stock option plans / stock
appreciation linked reward plan of the Holding Company. These
Schemes are in the nature of equity settled / cash settled share-based
compensation and are assessed, managed / administered by the
Holding Company.

In case of equity settled awards, the fair value of awards at the grant
date is amortised on a straight-line basis over the vesting period. In
case of cash settled awards, the fair value of awards at the grant date
is initially recognised and remeasured at each reporting date, until
settled, and cost recognised as an employee benefits expenses in the
Statement of Profit and Loss with a corresponding increase in other
financial liabilities.

Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if it conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

Company as a Lessee

Right-of-Use (ROU) assets are recognised at inception of a contract
or arrangement for significant lease components at cost less lease
incentives, if any. ROU assets are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The cost
of ROU assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct cost incurred and lease payments made at or before the
lease commencement date. ROU assets are generally depreciated
over the shorter of the lease term and estimated useful lives of the
underlying assets on a straight line basis. Lease term is determined
based on consideration of facts and circumstances that create an
economic incentive to exercise an extension option, or not to exercise
a termination option. Lease payments associated with short-term
leases and low value leases are charged to the Statement of Profit
and Loss on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
The Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value
of lease payments to be made on the date of recognition of the lease.
Such lease liabilities do not include variable lease payments (that do
not depend on an index or a rate), which are recognised as expense
in the periods in which they are incurred. Interest on lease liability
is recognised using the effective interest method. Lease liabilities are
subsequently increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. The carrying amount of lease liabilities
are also remeasured upon modification of lease arrangement or
upon change in the assessment of the lease term. The effect of such
remeasurements is adjusted to the value of the ROU assets.

Company as a Lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. Where the Company is a lessor under an operating lease, the
asset is capitalised within property, plant and equipment or investment
property and depreciated over its useful economic life. Payments
received under operating leases are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss on a straight line basis over the term of the lease.
Taxes on Income

Taxes on income comprises current taxes and deferred taxes. Current
tax in the Statement of Profit and Loss is provided as the amount of
tax payable in respect of taxable income for the period using tax rates
and tax laws enacted during the period, together with any adjustment
to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and the amounts used for
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taxation purposes (tax base), at the tax rates and tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for the future tax consequences to
the extent it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Income tax, in so far as it relates to items disclosed under other
comprehensive income or equity, is disclosed separately under other
comprehensive income or equity, as applicable.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when
the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.

Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a
legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Dividend Distribution

Dividends paid are recognised in the period in which the interim
dividends are approved by the Board of Directors, or in respect of the
final dividend when approved by shareholders.

Operating Segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker
(CODM). The CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the Executive Management Committee (EMC). The Company is
currently operating in a single segment i.e. Information Technology.
Segment revenue arising from third party customers is reported on the
same basis as revenue in the financial statements.

Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised as a
part of cost of that asset. All other borrowing costs are charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when, as a result of a past event, the

s)

)

Company has a legal or constructive obligation; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
the amount can be reliably estimated. The amount so recognised is
a best estimate of the consideration required to settle the obligation
at the reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation.

In an event when the time value of money is material, the provision
is carried at the present value of the cash flows estimated to settle the
obligation.

Claims

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts are disclosed
after a careful evaluation of the facts and legal aspects of the matter
involved.

New Accounting Pronouncements

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has issued the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2023 on 31st
March, 2023 amending:

- Ind AS 1, ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ - The amendments
require companies to disclose their material accounting policies
rather than their significant accounting policies.

- Ind AS 8 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors’ — This amendment has introduced a definition of
‘accounting estimates’ and included amendments to help
distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in
accounting estimates.

- Ind AS 12 ‘Income Taxes’ - This amendment has narrowed
the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does
not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting
temporary differences.

The same are applicable for financial statements pertaining
to annual periods beginning on or after 1st April, 2023. The
Company expects that there will be no material impact on the
financial statements resulting from the implementation of these
amendments.
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Note 2 : PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS, OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS - FY 2022-23 R in Lakhs)
GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION NET BLOCK
DESCRPTION | adans | Wirowls | UGS R | ot | Wt | LG | |
2022 2023 2022 Year 2023 2023 2022
a) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Leasehold Properties - Building Improvement 804 560 244 804 - 560 244 0 0
Plant and Equipment 436 131 305 387 1 18 270 35 49
Furniture and Fixtures 945 397 548 853 4 361 496 52 92
Motor Vehicles 9 - - 9 8 - - 8 1 1
Office Equipment 855 41 284 612 740 32 263 509 103 15
Computers, Servers and Networks 7,494 1,776 692 8,578 4,306 1,744 624 5,426 3,152 3,188
Electrical Installations and Equipment 1,745 - 678 1,067 1,586 1 639 948 119 159
SUB TOTAL 12,288 1,817 2,742 11,363 8,684 1,782 2,565 7,901 3,462 3,604
b) CAPITAL-WORK-IN-PROGRESS (CWIP)
Capital-work-in-progress (Refer Note 2A below) 87 3,630 3,717 3,717 87
c) OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Capitalised Software 2,095 298 2,393 1,686 203 1,889 504 409
Business and Commercial Rights (Refer Note 36) - 74,538 74,538 - 6,212 6,212 68,326 -
SUB TOTAL 2,095 74,836 - 76,931 1,686 6,415 8,101 68,830 409
GRAND TOTAL 14,470 80,283 2,742 92,011 10,370 8,197 2,565 16,002 76,009 4,100
d) Right-of-Use Assets [Refer Note 1 (m)]
Right-of-Use Assets - Buildings 577 653 1,230 220 340 560 670 357
Right-of-Use Assets - Car 292 292 110 110 182 -
TOTAL 577 945 1,522 220 450 670 852 357
Note : The aggregate depreciation and amortisation charge for the year has been included under depreciation and amortisation expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Note 2A : Ageing of CWIP: (in Lakhs)
Amount in CWIP for a period of
As at 31st March, 2023 Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Projects in Progress 3,630 87 - - 3,717
Completion schedule for Projects in Capital work-in-progress, which are overdue compared to its original plan ®in Lakhs)
Project to be completed in
As at 31st March, 2023 Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
GC-BLR 3,717 - - - 3,717
Note: There are no capital work in progress projects which have exceeded the cost, based on approved plan.
Note 2 : PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS, OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS - FY 2021-22 ® in Lakhs)
GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION NET BLOCK
PESCRIPTION | ndarions | Wit | UGS RS | e | o | LG R | Ve
2021 2022 2021 Year 2022 2022 2021
(a) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Leasehold Properties - Building Improvement 804 804 715 89 804 0 89
Plant and Equipment 439 3 436 350 40 3 387 49 89
Furniture and Fixtures 945 1 1 945 793 61 1 853 92 152
Motor Vehicles 9 9 8 0 8 1 1
Office Equipment 870 2 17 855 703 51 14 740 115 167
Computers, Servers and Networks 5,923 1,939 368 7,494 3,426 1,209 329 4,306 3,188 2,497
Electrical Installations and Equipment 1,747 - 2 1,745 1,284 303 1 1,586 159 463
SUB TOTAL 10,737 1,942 391 12,288 7,279 1,753 348 8,684 3,604 3,458
(b) CAPITAL-WORK-IN-PROGRESS (CWIP)
Capital-work-in-progress (Refer Note 2A below) 87 87 87
(c) OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Capitalised Software 3,168 126 1,199 2,095 2,664 221 1,199 1,686 409 504
GRAND TOTAL 13,905 2,155 1,590 14,470 9,943 1,974 1,547 10,370 4,100 3,962
(d) Right-of-Use Assets
Right-of-Use Assets - Buildings [Refer Note 1 (m)] 596 577 596 577 511 305 596 220 357 85
TOTAL 596 577 596 577 51 305 596 220 357 85

Note : The aggregate depreciation and amortisation charge for the year has been included under depreciation and amortisation expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Note 2A : Ageing of CWIP

[ in Lakhs)

Amount in CWIP for a period of

As at 31st March, 2022

Less than 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Total

Projects in Progress 87

87

Projects temporarily suspended -

Note: As on the date of Balance Sheet, there are no capital work in progress projects whose completion is overdue or has exceeded the cost, based on approved plan.
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{ in Lakhs) (i Lakhs)
As at As at As at Asat
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

3. INVESTMENTS 4  LOANS

3 (a) Non-Current Current
In Subsidiaries Loans to Employees
Investments in Equity Instruments- (At Cost) Unquoted - Unsecured, Considered Good - 0
ITC Infotech Limited (UK) 687 687 - Unsecured, Considered Doubtful 1 2
6,85,815 (2022 - 6,85,815) Equity Shares 1 2
of GBP 1 each, fully paid Less : Allowance for Doubtful Loans M) 2)
ITC Infotech (USA), Inc. 8,017 8,017 Total - 0
1,82,000 (2022 - 1,82,000) Ordinary Shares
without par value, fully paid 5 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
ITC Infotech do Brasil LTDA ") 3 () Non-Current
26,00,000 (2022 - Nil) Equity Shares of Unsecured Considered Good, Unless otherwise Stated
BRL 1 each, fully paid Security Deposits (includes deposits for
ITC Infotech France SAS 2662 Company accommodations, offices etc.) 47 139
30,00,000 (2022 - Nil) Equity Shares of Total 47 139
EUR 1 each, fully paid 5 (b) Current
ITC Infotech Gmbh ; ] 2,481 Unbilled Revenue - time and material basis &

57,00,000 (2022 - Nil) Equity Shares of fixed price support contracts * 26,614 26,160
EUR 1 each, partly paid up to EUR 0.5 each Security Deposits (includes deposits for Company
Total 14,269 8,704 accommodations, offices etc.) 233 60
Foreign Currency Forward Contracts 15 140
3 (b) Current (at fair value through profit or loss) Interest Accrued on Deposits 401 451
Advances (includes advance to employees) 303 95
Investment in Mutual Funds - Unquoted Total 27,666 26,906
Axis Liquid Fund - 1,61,108 Units (2022 - 2,93,791 Units) of % 1,000 Each 4,002 6,904 * Right to consideration is unconditional, upon passage of time.
B Liquid Fund - 452,713 Units (2022 - NilUnits) of % 1,000 Each 15,827 - 6  TRADE RECEIVABLES
Unsecured, Considered Good 41,643 28,205
Nippon India Liquid Fund - 2,90,560 Units (2022 - Nil Units) of % 1,000 Each 15,835 - Credit Impaired 1,070 674
42,713 28,879
Total 35,664 6,904 ' g
o - : Less: Expected Credit Loss Allowance 1,579) (1,183)
Total 41,134 27,696
[ in Lakhs)
X Particulars Outstanding for following periods
Trade Receivables as at 31st March, 2023 Not Due Less than 6 months | 6 months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good 25,721 14,948 865 139 46 (76) 41,643
Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 13 434 308 289 26 1,070
Gross 25,721 14,961 1,299 447 335 (50) 42,713
Less : Expected Credit Loss Allowance 1,579
Net 41,134
[ in Lakhs)
X Particulars Outstanding for following periods
Trade R bl t 31st March, 2022
rade Recelvables as at 31st Marc Not Due Less than 6 months | 6 months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good 15,990 12,035 319 (22) (46) (71) 28,205
Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 79 433 139 23 674
Gross 15,990 12,035 398 41 93 (48) 28,879
Less : Expected Credit Loss Allowance 1,183
Net 27,696
(%in Lakhs) Movement in Deferred Tax
As at As at Opening Recognized in Recognized in Closing
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 Balance profit or loss 0OCI Balance

7 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS * FY 2022-23

Balances with Banks : Deferred Tax Assets :
Current Accounts 5,247 976 On provision for employees’
Total 5,247 976 separation and retirement etc. 1,673 25 (12) 1,686
* Cash and cash equivalents include cheques, drafts on hand, cash at bank and deposits with On provision for doubtful receivables
banks with original maturity of 3 months or less. and f‘d"ances 312 93 405
8 OTHER BANK BALANCES Oln flscaldallow{ances:n property, . o »
In Deposit Accounts* 20,000 20,000 plantand equipment ©3)
Other timing differences (includes
Total 20,000 20,000 provision for expenses) 747 406 1,153
* Repr'esents deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months having remaining Total Deferred Tax Assets 3,471 231 (12) 3,889
maturity of less than 12 months from the Balance Sheet date. - - - T
Deferred Tax Liabilities :

9  DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET) On Business and Commercial Rights 2,444 (125) 2,319
Deferred Tax Assets 3,889 3,471 Other timing differences 1 16 - 17
Less: Deferred Tax Liabilities 2,336 1 Total Deferred Tax Liabilities 1 2,460 (125) 2336
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 1,553 3,470 Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 3,470 (2,029) 113 1,553
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(¥in Lakhs)

Opening Recognized in Recognized in Closing

Balance profit or loss
FY 2021-22
Deferred Tax Assets :
On provision for employees’
separation and retirement etc. 999 662
On provision for doubtful receivables
and advances 313 ()]
On fiscal allowances on property,
plant and equipment 742 3
Other timing differences (includes provision
for expenses) 635 12
Total Deferred Tax Assets 2,689 770
Deferred Tax Liabilities :
Other timing differences 5 )
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities 5 4)
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 2,684 774

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised:

OCl Balance

12 1673
312
739

747
3,471

—_
N

—_
N i
w
Eo)
N
=)

10,00,00,000 (2022 - 8,60,00,000) Equity Shares of T 10 each, fully paid

Issued and subscribed :
8,80,00,000 (2022 - 8,52,00,000)
Equity Shares of %10 each, fully paid

[All equity shares are held by ITC Limited, the Holding Company.

n

INCOME TAX ASSETS (NET)
Advance Tax (Net of Provision for Income Tax)

Total
OTHER ASSETS

11(a)Non-Current

Advances other than Capital Advances
From Statutory Authorities
Other Advances (Unexpired Expenses)
Total

11(b)Current

The Equity Shares of the Company, having par value of ¥ 10 per share, rank pari passu in all respects
including entitlement to dividend. 28,00,000 shares of the face value of ¥10 have been issued during the year (2022 : Nil)]

Total

12.(a) Shared held by Promoters

13

Unbilled Revenue - percentage of completion *
Advances other than Capital Advances
From Statutory Authorities

Other Advances (includes Unexpired Expenses)

Advance to related parties (Refer Note 34)
Total

ITC INFOTECH INDIA LIMITED

(%in Lakhs)
As at As at
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
5,529 2,436
5,529 2,436
50 58
123 183
173 241
2,242 1,773
3,452 -
2,059 1,769
576 450
8,329 3,992

*Contractual right to consideration is dependent on completion of contractual milestones. During the year
ended 31st March, 2023 and 31st March, 2022, INR 1,624 lakhs and INR 2,154 lakhs, respectively, of
Unbilled Revenue - percentage of completion pertaining to fixed price development contracts have been
reclassified to Trade Receivables on completion of milestones.

As at
31st March, 2023

10,000

8,800

8,800

(in Lakhs)
As at

31st March, 2022

8,600

8,520

8,520

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Promoter Name No. of shares as at end % of Total Shares | % change during | No. of shares as at % of Total % change during
of the year the year end of the year Shares the year
Equity shares of % 10 each, fully paid ITC Limited 8,80,00,000 100% - 8,52,00,000 100% -
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Refer to Note 25 for Lease Liabilities)
13 (a) Trade Payables
Ageing schedule (in Lakhs)
Particulars Outstanding for following periods
Trade Payable as at 31st March, 2023 Not Due Unbilled Lessthan 6 | 6 months -1 1-2 2.3 vears More than Total
(Accrued) months year years y 3 years
MSME 14 - 14
Others 380 11,953 1,356 1 13,690
Total 394 11,953 1,356 1 13,704
Particulars Outstanding for following periods
Trade Payable as at 31st March, 2022 Not Due Unbilled Less than 6 | 6 months -1 1-2 2.3 vears More than Total
(Accrued) months year years Y 3 years
MSME 37 - - 37
Others 886 4,440 1,270 - 6,596
Total 923 4,440 1,270 - 6,633
Relationship with struck off Companies (% in Lakhs)

Name of the struck off company

Nature of transactions with struck off

company

Balance outstanding as at 31st March 2023

Relationship with the struck off
company, if any, to be disclosed

Thought Works Consulting Private Limited

Payables

Vendor

Name of the struck off company

Nature of transactions with struck off

company

Balance outstanding as at 31st March 2022

Relationship with the struck off
company, if any, to be disclosed

Thought Works Consulting Private Limited

Payables

Vendor
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13 (b) Non- Current
Employee Payable

ESAR Liability (Refer to Note 34)
Total

13 (c) Current
Employee Payable

Foreign Currency Forward Contracts
ESAR Liability (Refer to Note 34)
Other Liabilities [includes payables for property, plant and equipment ¥ 708 Lakh (2022 - ¥ 314 Lakh)]
Total
14 PROVISIONS

14 (a) Non- Current
Provision for Employee Benefits*
Retirement Benefits

Compensated Absences
Total
14 (b) Current
Provision for Employee Benefits*
Retirement Benefits
Compensated Absences
Total

*Includes provision for pension, gratuity and compensated absences. For details refer to note 26.

15 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Statutory Dues
Inter-company payable (Refer to Note 34)
Unearned Revenue
[Out of last year’s amount of ¥ 96 Lakhs (174 Lakhs in FY 2021), revenue recognised in current
year is ¥ 12 Lakhs (172 Lakhs in FY 2022)]

Total

16  REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Sale of Services*
Exports
Domestic

Resale of Software and Hardware (including Support Charges)*
Exports
Domestic

Total Sales#
OTHER OPERATING REVENUES
Total

As at
31st March, 2023

1,651
80
1,731

14,857
44

137

713
15,751

2,004
2,100
4,104

1,004
964

1,968

2,865
422
203

3,490

For the year ended
31st March, 2023
( in Lakhs)

1,97,157
65,557

93
410

2,63,217
13
2,63,230

* For disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers by geography, please refer Note 33 on Segment Reporting
# The percentage of revenue from fixed-price contracts for the years ended 31st March, 2023 and 31st March, 2022 is approximately 57% and 63%, respectively.

17 OTHER INCOME

Interest Income
Other Gains
Miscellaneous Income

Total

Interest income comprises Interest from:
Deposits
Others (from statutory authorities)

Other Gains
Net Foreign Exchange Gains
Net Gain on Investments [includes unrealised gain: ¥ 65 Lakhs (FY 22: ¥ 3 Lakhs)]

18  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
Salaries and Bonus
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds (Refer Note 26)
Share based Payments to Employees (Refer Note 29)
Staff Welfare Expenses
Reimbursement of Contractual Remuneration, net
Total

1,126
2,660
314

4,100

1,126

1,126

1,367
1,293

2,660

1,46,034
7,918
289
1,393
1,066
1,56,700

ITC INFOTECH INDIA LIMITED

(in Lakhs)
As at
31st March, 2022

1,075
59
1,134

12,621
53

22

321
13,017

544
1,347
1,891

292
688

980

4,094
13
9%

4,203

For the year ended
31st March, 2022
( in Lakhs)

1,68,189
59,908

104
584

2,28,785
72
2,28,857

1,069
1,598
112

2,779

714
355

1,069

780
818

1,598

1,20,535
4,366
55
1,348
917

1,27,221
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ITC INFOTECH INDIA LIMITED

For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
( in Lakhs) ® in Lakhs)
19 FINANCE COSTS
Interest Expense
On Borrowings, Lease Liabilities, Statutory Dues etc. 349 142
Total 349 142
20 OTHER EXPENSES
Rent (Refer Note 25) 2,597 1,941
Rates and Taxes 120 421
Insurance 1,089 1,043
Travelling and Conveyance 8,026 3,708
Recruitment Expenses 1,568 1,253
Communication 961 708
Power and Fuel 490 355
Outsourcing Charges 20,268 11,572
Software and Related Expenses 5,078 3,559
Purchase of Hardware and Software for Resale (including Support Charges) 314 489
Business Development Expenses 1,365 1,242
Repairs and Maintenance
- Buildings 68 75
- Machinery 124 17
- Others 58 48
Legal, Professional and Consultancy Expenses 4,969 4,309
Doubtful and Bad Receivables 651 343
Doubtful and Bad Loans and Advances 0) 2
Property, Plant and Equipment Discarded, net (48) 3
Auditor’s Remuneration and Expenses (Refer Note 28) 54 41
Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility (Refer Note 22) 1,014 636
Training and Development 844 443
Bank Charges 106 86
Printing and Stationery 15 16
Fair value loss arising on payable for Business and Commercial Rights 5,063 -
Miscellaneous Expenses 461 654
Total 55,255 33,064
21 TAX EXPENSES
21(a) Tax Expense Recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
Current Tax 9,377 18,085
[including tax on foreign branches ¥ 608 Lakhs (2022 - ¥ 105 Lakhs)]*
Credits related to previous years (365) (162)
9,012 17,923
Deferred Tax Charge / (Credit)* 2,632 (554)
Credits related to previous years (603) (220)
2,029 (774)
Total 11,041 17,149
* INR 603 lakhs represents changes on account of filing of tax returns.
21(b) Tax Expense Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Deferred Tax Credit / (Charge)
Arising on Remeasurement of Net Defined Benefit Liability (12) 12
Arising on Effective portion of losses on designated portion of hedging instruments in a cash flow hedge 125 -
Total 113 12
21(c) The reconciliation between the income tax expenses and amounts computed by applying the
standard rate of income tax to profit before taxes is as follows:
Profit before tax 46,379 68,930
Income tax expense calculated at 25.168% (2022- 25.168%) 11,673 17,348
Effects of:
- Other differences 336 183
- Adjustments recognised in the current year in relation to the current tax of prior years (968) (382)
Income Tax expenses recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 11,041 17,149
22 Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at least 2% of its average net profit for the immediately preceding
three financial years on corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities. A CSR committee has been formed by the Company as per the Act.
a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year ¥ 1,013 Lakhs (2022 - ¥ 636 Lakhs).
b) Amount spent during the year in cash for purpose other than construction / acquisition of an asset ¥ 1,014 Lakhs (2022 - ¥ 636 Lakhs).
c) Nature of CSR activities in the year are as follows:
i Soil & moisture conservation and water resources development, through ITC Rural Development Trust, Kolkata
ii. Educational interventions:
- Primary education through ITC Bhadrachalam Education Trust, Secunderabad
- School Infrastructure Development through Tribeni Tissues Educational Society, Chandrahati
- Science, Technology, Engineering and Mathematics (STEM) education through ICT Academy of Tamil Nadu and other NGOs



ITC INFOTECH INDIA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)
23 Commitments and Contingencies
a) There are contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided ¥ 1,596 Lakhs (2022 - % 4,900 Lakhs).
b) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts ¥ 3,724 Lakhs (2022 - % 3,865 Lakhs). These comprise:
i) Income tax claims disputed by the Company relating to issues of applicability and determination aggregating ¥ 3,444 Lakhs (2022 - % 3,155 Lakhs)
ii) Service tax claims disputed by the Company relating to issues of applicability aggregating ¥ 266 Lakhs (2022 - ¥ 696 Lakhs)
i) Other matters aggregating ¥ 14 Lakhs (2022- ¥ 14 Lakhs)

It is not practicable for the Company to estimate the closure of these issues and the consequential timing of cash flow, if any, in respect of the above. An amount of ¥ 32 Lakhs
(2022 - % 32 Lakhs) has been deposited under protest and is included under Other Non-Current Assets. (Refer Note 11(a))

24 Micro and Small Enterprises

The following details relating to Micro and Small Enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the

Company.
(R in Lakhs)
As at As at
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

(a) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of
each accounting year.
Principal amount due 14 37
Interest amount due thereon - -

(b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier
beyond the appointed day during each accounting year. - -

(c) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been
paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under
the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. - -

(d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and - -

(e) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date
when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of
a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. - -
25  Leases

The amount of ROU Asset and Lease Liabilities recognised in the Balance Sheet are disclosed in Note 2 and on the face of the Balance Sheet respectively. The total cash
outflow for leases for the year is T 2,956 Lakhs (2022 - % 2,269 Lakhs) [including payments in respect of short-term leases aggregating ¥ 2,597 Lakhs (2022 - ¥ 1,941 Lakhs)].
All leases entered into by the company have a lease term of less than three years. [Also Refer to Note 32 (b) for Contractual maturities of lease liabilities].

Movement of Lease Liabilities during the year [ in Lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Opening Lease Liabilities 363 98
New Lease recognised 946 577
Interest expense on Lease Liability 13 16
Payments of Lease Liability made (467) (328)
Closing balance of Lease Liability T 855 363

26  Employee Benefits
Description of Plans
(a) Defined Contribution Plan
Amounts towards Defined Contribution Plans have been recognised under “Contribution to Provident and Other Funds in Note 18: ¥ 7,078 Lakhs (2022 - ¥ 3,807 Lakhs).

(b) Defined Benefit Plan

The Company also makes contribution to defined benefit pension and gratuity plans. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit obligation is calculated by an
independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. Service costs and net interest expense or income is reflected in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Gain or Loss
on account of remeasurements are recognised immediately through Other Comprehensive Income in the period in which they occur. Gratuity and Pension Benefits are both
funded as well as unfunded; and Leave Encashment Benefits are unfunded in nature.

Risk Management

The defined benefit plans expose the Company to actuarial deficit arising out of investment risk, interest rate risk, salary cost inflation risk. These plans are not exposed to any
unusual, entity specific or scheme specific risks but there are general risks. Investment risks may arise from volatility in asset values and losses arising due to impairment of
assets. The Scheme's accounting liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to the Government security yields. A decrease in yields will increase the fund
liabilities, leading to accounting deficit in the funds. However, this may be partially offset by an increase in capital value of the scheme assets that have similar characteristics.
Increase in salary due to adverse inflationary pressures might lead to higher liabilities.

The Trustees monitor funding and investments positions and have mandated a diversified investment strategy in line with the statutory requirements. The investment
strategy with respect to asset mix ensures that investment volatility risk is appropriately managed. Robust risk mitigation systems ensure that investments do not pose
significant risk of impairment.

The following table sets out the Defined Benefit Plans / Long-Term Compensated Absences as per Actuarial Valuation as on 31st March, 2023 and recognised in the financial
statements in respect of Employee Benefit Schemes :
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ITC INFOTECH INDIA LIMITED

® in Lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Pension | Gratuity | Compensated | Pension | Gratuity | Compensated
absences absences
Partly Partly Unfunded Partly Partly Unfunded
Funded Funded Funded | Funded
|| Components of Employer Expense
- | Recognised in Profit or Loss
1 | Current Service Cost 180 617 560 83 473 426
2 | Net Interest Cost 27 16 102 ) 5 89
3 | Total expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 207 633 662 81 478 515
Re-measurements recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
4 | (Return) on plan assets (excluding amounts included in Net interest cost) 79 43 - (8) (46) -
5 | Effect of changes in demographic assumptions 1 - 2 27 (3)
6 | Effect of changes in financial assumptions (382) (232) (45) (82) 2) 27)
7 | Effect of experience adjustments 7 366 115 (215) 78 324
8 | Total re-measurements included in OCI (296) 178 70 (303) 57 294
9 | Total defined benefit cost recognised in Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income (3+8) (89) 8N 732 (222) 535 809

The current service cost and net interest expense for the year pertaining to Pension and Gratuity expenses have been recognised in “Contribution to Provident and other funds” and Compensated absences

in “Salaries and Bonus”. The remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability are included in Other Comprehensive Income.

Il | Actual Returns | 7| 191 ] | 20] 283
IIl_| Net (Asset)/Liability recognised in Balance Sheet
1| Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation 4,638 4,625 1,981 3,188 4,322 1,796
2 | Obligation w.r.t Overseas branches - 1,083 - 239
3 | Fair Value of Plan Assets 3,404 3,427 - 3,425 3,700 -
4 | Status [(Surplus)/Deficit] 1,234 1,198 3,064 (237) 622 2,035
5 | Net (Asset)/Liability recognised in Balance Sheet As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022
Current Non-Current Current Non-Current
- Pension* (457) 1,691 (448) 21
- Gratuity 885 313 289 333
- Compensated absences 964 2,100 688 1,347

* This includes ¥ 576 Lakhs (FY 22: ¥ 450 lakhs) of India Pension which is represented under note no 11(b) as Advances to related parties and ¥ 119 Lakhs (FY 22: % 2 lakhs) of Others which is represented

under note no 14(b) as Retirement Benefits.

For the year ended

For the year ended

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Pension | Gratuity | Compensated | Pension | Gratuity [ Compensated
absences absences
Partly Partly Unfunded Partly Partly Unfunded
Funded Funded Funded | Funded
IV | Change in Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO)
1 [ Present Value of DBO at the beginning of the year 3,188 4,322 1,796 3,914 4,246 1,755
2| Current Service Cost 180 617 566 83 473 312
3 | Interest Cost 253 250 102 221 242 89
4 | Remeasurement gains / (losses):
Effect of changes in demographic assumptions - 1 - 2 27 (3)
Effect of changes in financial assumptions (382) (232) (45) (82) 2) (27)
Changes in asset ceiling (excluding interest income) - - - - - -
Effect of experience adjustments 7 366 115 (215) 78 324
5 | Transfer of Obligation 1,560 20 5 - - -
6 | Exchange difference on foreign plans - 31 - - - B
7 | Benefits Paid (168) (750) (558) (735) (742) (654)
8 | Present Value of DBO at the end of the year 4,638 4,625 1,981 3,188 4,322 1,796
Best Estimate of Employers’ Expected Contribution for the next year As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022
- Pension 89 107
- Gratuity 679 634
V| Change in Fair Value of Assets (for funded obligations)
1 | Plan Assets at the beginning of the year 3,425 3,700 - 3,925 4,167 -
2 | Expected Return on Plan Assets 226 234 - 222 237 -
3 | Remeasurement Gains on plan assets (79) (43) 8 46 -
4 | Actual Company Contributions - 286 - 5 (8) -
5 | Benefits Paid (168) (750) - (735) (742) -
6 | Plan Assets at the end of the year 3,404 3,427 - 3,425 3,700 -
VI | Actuarial Assumptions As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022
1 | Discount Rate (%) 7.50% 6.75%
2 | Expected Return on Plan Assets (%) 7.50% 6.75%
3 | Long term rate of compensation increase 7.50% 7.50%
VIl | Major Category of Plan Assets as a % of the Total Plan Assets As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022
1 Government Securities/Special Deposit with RBI 15% 17%
2 High Quality Corporate Bonds 10% 10%
3 Insurer Managed Funds* 65% 63%
4 Mutual Funds 6% 5%
5 Cash and Cash Equivalents 4% 5%
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ITC INFOTECH INDIA LIMITED

* In the absence of detailed information regarding plan assets which is funded with Insurance Companies, the composition of each major category of plan assets, the percentage or
amount for each category to the fair value of plan assets within the insurer managed funds has not been disclosed.

The fair value of Government Securities, Corporate Bonds, Mutual Funds are determined based on quoted market prices in active markets. The employee benefit plans do not hold
any securities issued by the Company.

VIl Basis used to determine the Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets
The expected rate of return on plan assets is based on the current portfolio of assets, investment strategy and market scenario. In order to protect the capital and optimise returns within acceptable risk
parameters, the plan assets are well diversified.
(R in Lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Pension Gratuity | Compensated | Pension Gratuity Compensated
absences absences
Partly Partly Unfunded Partly Partly Unfunded
Funded Funded Funded Funded
IX | Net Asset / (Liability) recognised in Balance Sheet (including experience
adjustment impact)
1 Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation 4,638 4,625 1,981 3,188 4,322 1,796
2 Fair Value of Plan Assets 3,404 3,427 - 3,425 3,700
3 Status [Deficit / (Surplus)] 1,234 1,198 1,981 (237) 622 1,796
4 Experience Adjustment of Plan Assets [Loss / (Gain)] 79 43 - 8) (46)
5 Experience Adjustment of obligation [Loss / (Gain)] 7 366 115 (215) 78 324
X Sensitivity Analysis
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible change of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while
holding all other assumptions constant. These sensitivities show the hypothetical impact of a change in each of the listed assumptions in isolation. While each of these sensitivities
holds all other assumptions constant, in practice such assumptions rarely change in isolation and the asset value changes may offset the impact to some extent. For presenting
the sensitivities, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the
same as that applied in calculating the Defined Benefit Obligation presented above. There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in the preparation of sensitivity
analysis from previous year.
X1 SI. No. Particulars DBO as at 31st March, 2023 DBO as at 31st March, 2022
1 Discount Rate + 100 basis points 10,686 8,944
2 Discount Rate - 100 basis points 11,834 9,701
3 Long term Compensation Increase Rate + 1% 11,720 9,693
4 Long term Compensation Increase Rate — 1% 10,800 8,944
Xl SI. No. | Maturity Analysis of the Benefit Payments 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
1 Year 1 2,461 1,925
2 Year 2 1,729 2,086
3 Year 3 1,727 1,528
4 Year 4 2,388 1,539
5 Year 5 2,642 2,193
6 Next 5 Years 8,162 7,845
For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
27 Earnings per share
(a) Profit after Tax % in Lakhs 35,338 51,781
(b)  Weighted average number of Equity Shares No. 8,68,49,315 8,52,00,000
(c) Earnings Per Share 4 40.69 60.78
(Face value of ¥ 10 per share)
(Basic and Diluted)
For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
®in Lakhs) (®in Lakhs)
28 Auditor’s Remuneration and Expenses
(Net of input tax credit)
Audit Fees 33 23
Tax Audit Fees 2 2
Fees for Auditor’s Certifications and Reports 16 15
Reimbursement of Expenses 3 1
Total 54 41
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29 (i) The eligible employees of the Group, including employees deputed from ITC Limited (ITC), have been granted by ITC:

30

31

(i)

(a) stock options under the ITC Employee Stock Option Schemes (ITC ESOS) and

(b) employee cash settled stock appreciation linked reward units (ESAR units) under the ITC Employee Cash Settled Stock Appreciation Linked Reward Plan (ITC ESAR plan)
in accordance with the terms and conditions of such schemes, details of which are as under:

ITCESOS:

Each option entitles the holder thereof to apply for and be allotted ten Ordinary Shares of ITC of ¥ 1.00 each upon payment of exercise price. These options vest over a period
of three years from the date of grant and are exercisable within a period of five years from the date of vesting. These options have been granted at ‘market price’ within the
meaning of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021.

ITC ESAR:

Under the ITC ESAR Plan, eligible employees would receive cash linked to appreciation in the value of the shares of ITC in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
said Plan. The ESAR units vest over a period of five years from the date of grant and entitles each ESAR grantee to the appreciation for the total number of ESAR Units vested.

The cost of stock options granted under ITC ESOS / ESAR units granted under ITC ESAR Plan have been recognised as equity settled / cash settled share based payments
respectively in accordance with Ind AS 102 - Share Based Payment. In terms of the aforesaid arrangement, the Company accounts for the cost of the fair value of options /
ESAR units granted to the eligible employees on receipt of advice / on - charge by ITC respectively as employee benefits expense. The fair value of the options / ESAR units
granted is determined, using the Black Scholes Option Pricing model, by ITC for all the Optionees covered under ITC ESOS / ITC ESAR Plan as a whole. The cost of ITC ESOS
is considered as capital contribution by ITC Limited, net of reimbursements, if any. The liability recognised for payments towards ITC ESAR Plan is presented under other

financial liability.

(i) The summary of movement of such options granted by ITC and status of the outstanding options is as under:

Particulars As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022

No. of Options No. of Options
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 9,16,022 12,71,342
Add: Granted during the year 10,250 8,950
Less: Lapsed during the year (46,338) (3,61,043)
Add / (Less): Movement of employees to whom options are granted (27,914) 38,168
Less: Exercised during the year (4,49,954) (41,395)
Outstanding at the end of the year 4,02,066 9,16,022
Options exercisable at the end of the year 3,84,251 9,04,062

Note: The weighted average exercise price of the options granted to all Optionees under the ITC ESOS is computed by ITC as a whole.
(iv)  Inaccordance with Ind AS 102, the Company has recognised an amount of ¥ 52 Lakhs (2022: ¥ 17 Lakhs) towards ITC ESOS and ¥ 237 Lakhs [2022: % 38 Lakhs] towards
ITC ESAR Plan (Refer Note 18). Such charge has been recognised as employee benefits expense.

Out of the above, ¥ 185 Lakhs (2022: % 41 Lakhs) is attributable to key management personnel [Mr. R. Batra: ¥ 181 Lakhs (2022: % 37 Lakhs), Mr. Sharad Jain: ¥ 4 Lakhs

(2022: Not Applicable) and Mr. S.V. Shah: ¥ Nil (2022: X 4 Lakhs)].

Capital Management

The Company’s financial strategy aims to foster its strategic priorities and provide adequate capital to its businesses to grow and invest for generating sustained stakeholder value.
The Company funds its operations mainly through internal accruals. The Company aims at maintaining a strong capital base so as to maintain adequate supply of funds towards

future growth of its businesses as a going concern.

The capital structure of the Company comprises only of equity as detailed in the Statement of Changes in Equity. The Company does not have any long-term debt obligation.

The Company is not exposed to any externally imposed capital requirements.

Categories of Financial Instruments ® in Lakhs)
As at As at
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value
Financial Assets
Measured at amortised cost
Cash and Cash Equivalents 5,247 5,247 976 976
Other Bank Balances 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000
Trade Receivables 41,134 41,134 27,696 27,696
Loans - - 0 0
Other Financial Assets 27,598 27,588 26,905 26,905
93,979 93,969 75,577 75,577
Mandatorily measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
Investments in Mutual Funds 35,664 35,664 6,904 6,904
Foreign Currency Forward Contracts 115 115 140 140
35,779 35,779 7,044 7,044
Total 1,29,758 1,29,748 82,621 82,621
Financial Liabilities
Measured at amortised cost
Trade Payables 13,704 13,704 6,633 6,633
Lease Liability 855 855 363 363
Other Financial Liabilities 17,438 17,240 14,098 13,897
31,997 31,799 21,094 20,893
Measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
Foreign Currency Forward Contracts 44 44 53 53
Consideration Payable towards acquisition of Business and Commercial
Rights 52,274 52,274 - -
52,318 52,318 53 53
Total 84,315 84,117 21,147 20,946
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32 Financial Risk Management Objectives
The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company continues to focus on a system-based approach
to business risk management. The Company’s financial risk management process seeks to enable the early identification, evaluation and effective management of key risks facing
the business. Backed by strong internal control systems, the current Risk Management Framework rests on policies and procedures issued by appropriate authorities; process of
regular reviews / audits to set appropriate risk limits and controls; monitoring of such risks and compliance confirmation for the same.
a) Market Risk
The Company’s various business operations expose it to the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. Such market risk may arise out of volatility in currency rates, interest rates and prices. The Company has in place appropriate risk management policies to limit the
impact of these risks on its financial performance.
The Company ensures optimisation of cash through fund planning, robust cash management practices and manages interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk.
i)  Foreign Currency Risk
The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currency which results in exchange rate fluctuations. Such exchange rate risk primarily arises from
transactions made in foreign exchange and translation risks arising from recognised assets and liabilities, including net investments in foreign operations which are not
in the Company’s functional currency (). A significant portion of these transactions are in US Dollar (USD), Pound Sterling (GBP) and EURO.
The carrying amounts of the Company’s foreign currency denominated financial assets and financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
® in Lakhs)
As at 31st March, 2023 usD GBP EURO Others Total
Financial Assets 21,646 4,782 18,932 6,641 52,001
Financial Liabilities 809 1 834 300 1,944
As at 31st March, 2022 usb GBP EURO Others Total
Financial Assets 29,329 6,199 9,380 2,177 47,085
Financial Liabilities 993 30 419 1,015 2,457
The Company uses Forward Exchange Contracts to hedge its exposures in foreign currency related to underlying transactions and firm commitments. Notional value of Forward
exchange Contracts outstanding as at year end which are not designated under hedge accounting are as below:
(in Lakhs)
Currency Cross Currency 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Buy Sell Buy Sell
GBP usD - 10 - 44
EUR usD 29 - - 44
usD INR 124 216 - 334
SEK usD 41 - - -
PLN usb 10 - - -
ZAR usD - 112 - 35
Hedges of Foreign Currency Risk and Derivative Financial Instruments
The Company follows established risk management policies, including the use of derivatives to hedge against the volatility associated with the aforesaid exchange rate risk.
The Company uses forward exchange contracts to hedge its transactional currency exposures in foreign currency related to underlying transactions and firm commitments and
measures them at fair value. The counter party in these derivative instruments are generally highly rated counter parties such as banks and the Company considers the risk of
non-performance by such counterparty as not material. The Company has not designated Forward Exchange Contracts under Hedge Accounting. These derivative instruments
are carried at fair value with changes being recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Although such derivative instruments are not designated in a hedge relationship, they
act as an economic hedge and will offset the gain / loss in the underlying transactions when they occur.
The Company has designated the foreign exchange risk component of the payable towards acquisition of Business and Commercial Rights as a hedge of the highly probable
forecast US$ denominated revenues. The above will result in matching of foreign exchange gain / loss arising from changes in spot rates of the highly probable forecast revenues
with the loss/gain arising from translation of non - derivative financial liabilities carried in the Balance Sheet (Details of such hedge instrument are provided in Note 36). The
foreign exchange risk component designated under hedge accounting are evaluated basis the currency, amount and timing of such highly probable forecast transactions
that are matched to the hedging instrument. Changes in the fair value of the effective portion of such cash flow hedges are recognised as cash flow hedging reserve in Other
Comprehensive Income. Whilst ineffectiveness in the hedge relationship may arise due to changes in timing of the forecast US$ denominated revenues, the probability of such
hedges becoming ineffective is very low and such ineffective portion, if any, is immediately recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The movement in the cash flow hedging reserve in respect of designated cash flow hedges is summarised below: ® in Lakhs)
Particulars 2023 2022
At the beginning of the year - -
Add: Gain / Loss recognised in OCI on fair value change of effective portion of hedge instrument 565 -
Less: Amounts transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss on occurrence of forecast hedge transactions during the year (69) -
(Less)/Add: Deferred tax (125) -
At the end of the year 371 R

Once the hedged transaction materialises, the amount accumulated in the cash flow hedging reserve will be reclassified to profit or loss in the anticipated timeframes given below:
Outstanding balance in cash Flow Hedge Reserve to be subsequently recycled from OCI As at 31st March, 2023 | As at 31st March, 2022
Within One Year 148 -
Between One and Three Years 152 -
More than Three Years 71 -
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Foreign Currency Sensitivity
The sensitivity analysis arises on account of outstanding foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities, including derivative contracts. The Company considers a sensitivity
of 1% (2022 - 1%) in applicable foreign currency rates, holding all other variables constant. In the event the exchange rate fluctuates by +1%, the profit before tax for the year
ended 31st March, 2023 and pre-tax total equity as at 31st March, 2023 will be higher by ¥ 501 Lakhs (2022 - ¥ 446 Lakhs). If the change in rates decline by a similar percentage,
there will be opposite impact of similar amount on profit before tax and pre-tax total equity.

i) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company's investments in fixed deposits are held with highly rated banks and have a short tenure and are not subject to interest rate volatility. As majority of the other
financial assets and liabilities of the Company are non-interest bearing, the Company’s net exposure to interest risk is negligible.

iii)  Price Risk
The Company invests its surplus funds primarily for short tenor in debt mutual funds. Aggregate value of investments in debt mutual funds, which are measured at fair
value through profit or loss, as at 31st March, 2023 is ¥ 35,664 Lakhs (2022 - ¥ 6,904 Lakhs). Accordingly, these do not pose any significant price risk.

b) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations as they become due. The Company’s investment decisions relating to
deployment of surplus liquidity are guided by the tenets of safety, liquidity and return. The Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring that it will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. Considering the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, the Company also maintains adequate committed credit lines.
The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities at the reporting date :
(X in Lakhs)
As at 31st March, 2023
Contractual Cash flows*
Carrying value Less than 3 More than 3 months More than 6 More than 1 year Beyond 3 Total
months up to 6 months months up to 1 year up to 3 years years
Trade Payables 13,704 13,704 - - - - 13,704
Lease Liability 855 141 112 209 412 - 874
Other Financial Liabilities 17,482 788 14,826 137 1,731 - 17,482
Payable towards acquisition 52,274 12,771 2,419 5,812 22,150 14,203 57,355
of Business and Commercial
Rights
Total 84,315 27,404 17,357 6,158 24,293 14,203 89,415
As at 31st March, 2022
Contractual Cash flows*
Carrying value Less than 3 More than 3 months More than 6 months | More than 1 year Beyond 3 Total
months up to 6 months up to 1 year up to 3 years years
Trade Payables 6,633 6,633 - - - - 6,633
Lease Liability 363 86 86 171 29 - 372
Other Financial Liabilities 14,151 2,026 10,969 22 1,130 4 14,151
Total 21,147 8,745 11,055 193 1,159 4 21,156

* The table has been drawn up based on the earliest date on which the Company would be required to pay.

c) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument which may lead to a financial loss to the Company. Apart from its operating
activities, wherein the Company deals with a large number of customers, the Company is also exposed to credit risk from its investing activities.

Financial instruments that are subject to concentration of credit risk principally consist of trade receivables.

Credit is extended to Customers after evaluating them against key parameters such as financial position, credit ratings, market intelligence, past experience etc., as may
be appropriate. Trade receivables are monitored regularly. Concentration of credit risk, with respect to trade receivables, is limited, due to the Company’s customer base
being large and internationally dispersed. Some of the Company’s key Customers have been transacting for many years and the incidence of bad debts is negligible.
The Company recognises provision for expected credit loss on an individual customer basis, based on internal reviews, which are conducted regularly and considers all
aspects with respect to debts.

The movement of the expected credit loss provision made by the Company with respect to trade receivables are as under:

(X in Lakhs)
As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
2023 2022
Opening Balance 1,183 1,244
Effects of foreign exchange fluctuation 28 (56)
Add: Expected credit loss provisions made during the year 657 391
Less: Utilisation for Impairment / De-recognition (289) (396)
Closing Balance 1,579 1,183

For age wise break-up of receivables, refer to note 6.

Investment in debt mutual funds are made only with approved mutual funds and credit risk in such funds are limited because the underlying investments are diversified
and the Company’s investment framework considers the credit quality of the underlying investments made by the fund house. There are limits for any exposure to financial
institutions. Deployment in fixed deposits are with highly rated banks and are held at amortised cost. Thus, counter party risk attached to such assets is considered to be
insignificant.

The carrying amount of financial assets, net of loss allowance recognised in accordance with Ind AS 109 and any amounts offset in accordance with Ind AS 32, that represents
the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31st March, 2023 is ¥ 1,26,753 Lakhs (2022 ¥ 83,418 Lakhs) represented by carrying amounts of Investments (except
investments in subsidiaries), Trade Receivables, Unbilled Revenue, Loans, Other financial assets measured at amortised cost and Other financial assets measured at Fair Value.
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d) Fair Value Measurement

Fair value hierarchy

Fair value of the financial instruments is classified in various fair value hierarchies based on the following three levels:
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted price included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data
and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case with listed instruments where market is

not liquid and for unlisted instruments.

The fair value of trade receivables, loans, other financial assets, other financial liabilities and payables is considered to be equal to the carrying amounts of these items due
to their short — term nature. There has been no change in the valuation methodology for Level 3 inputs during the year. There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level

2 during the year.

The following table presents the fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

(X in Lakhs)

Fair Value Fair Value as at
Hierarchy 31st 31st
March 2023 March 2022
Financial Assets
Mandatorily Measured at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)
Investments in Mutual Funds 1 35,664 6,904
35,664 6,904
Derivatives measured at fair value
Foreign Currency Forward Contracts 2 115 140
115 140
Total 35,779 7,044
Financial Liabilities
Measured at amortized cost
Other Financial Liabilities* 3 1,533 934
1,533 934
Derivatives measured at fair value
Foreign Currency Forward Contracts 2 44 53
Measurement at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
Payable towards acquisition of Business and Commercial Rights (Refer Note 36) 3 52,274
52,318 53
Total 53,851 987

* Represents Fair value of Non-current Financial Instruments
33 Segment Reporting

The Company operates in a single business segment - information technology, basis which the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the Company’s performance and

allocates resources. Geographical Information is given below:

® in Lakhs)

For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

Segment Revenue

India 65,557 60,492
North America 69,260 61,585
Europe 89,348 72,021
Middle East and Africa 32,228 27,798
Rest of the World 6,824 6,889
Total 2,63,217 2,28,785

No single external customer / group individually accounted for more than 10% of the revenues in the year ended 31st March, 2023.

Revenues of INR 23,442 Lakhs from a single external customer / group that accounted for more than 10% of the revenues in the year ended 31st March, 2022.

® in Lakhs)

As at As at
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

Non-Current Assets*
India 82,116 7,237
Europe 480 4
Middle East and Africa 13 31
Total 82,609 7,272

* Non- Current Assets have been considered on the basis of physical location.
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34 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

ITC INFOTECH INDIA LIMITED

@ HOLDING COMPANY:
ITC Limited
(ii) ENTERPRISES WHERE CONTROL EXISTS:
Wholly Owned Subsidiaries:
ITC Infotech Limited (UK)
ITC Infotech (USA), Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiary Indivate Inc.
ITC Infotech Do Brasil LTDA (w.e.f. 10th October, 2022)
ITC Infotech Malaysia SDN. BHD (w.e.f. 3rd February, 2023)
ITC Infotech France SAS (w.e.f. 8th February, 2023)
ITC Infotech GmbH (w.e.f. 10th March, 2023)
(iii) OTHER RELATED PARTIES WITH WHOM THE COMPANY HAD TRANSACTIONS, etc.
Fellow Subsidiary Companies Associates of the Holding Company Subsidiaries of Ultimate Parent Employee Trusts
Surya Nepal Private Limited International Travel House Limited Company of Tobacco ITC Management Staff Gratuity Fund
Technico Agri Sciences Limited ATC Limited Manufacturers (India) Limited ITC Pension Fund
North East Nutrients Private Limited (TMI) of which the Holding ITC Gratuity Fund - C
Fortune Park Hotels Limited Company is an Associate
Russell Credit Limited
ITC Indivision Limited
(iv) KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
Non-Executive Directors Others (Members of Executive Management Committee)
Mr. S. Puri - Chairman Mr. S. Singh, Managing Director & CEO
Mr. S. Sivakumar - Vice Chairman Mr. R. Batra, Chief Financial Officer
Mes. P. Balaji Mr. S. V. Shah, Company Secretary (up to 26th June, 2022)
Mr. B. B. Chatterjee (up to 19th July, 2022) Mr. K. Ray, Chief Human Resources Officer
Mr. S. Dutta (w.e.f 21st July, 2022)
Mr. R. K. Singhi (w.e.f. 21st July, 2022) Company Secretary
Mr. R. Tandon (up to 19th July, 2022) Mr. S. V. Shah (up to 26th June, 2022)
Mr. S. Jain (appointed w.e.f. 27th June, 2022)
v) DISCLOSURE OF TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN THE COMPANY AND RELATED PARTIES (® in Lakhs)
Holding Company Wholly Owned Subsidiaries Fellow Subsidiaries
2023 2022
,\SIL Description TC Infotech | € 'T[C);“gfat:ifh ITC Infotech | ITC Infotech | ITC i
- 2023 2022 . Infotech France GmbH Infotech 2023 | 2022
Limited LTDA - Infotech
(UK) (USA), (wel. SAS (w.ef. (w.ef. Limited (USA), Inc.
Inc. 10.10.2022) 08.02.2023) | 10.03.2023) | (UK)
1 Sale of Goods / Services 19,719 | 17,686 11,595 | 69,189 - - 21,849 61,582 343 254
2 | Purchase of Goods / Services 428 80 - 219 6 6 - - - -
3 | Sale of Property, Plant and 18 - - - - - - - - -
Equipment
4 | Cost incurred towards Property, 160 - 22 - - - -
Plant and Equipment
5 Issue of shares to Holding 44,800 - - - - - -
Company
6 Investment in Subsidiaries - - - - 422 2,662 2,481 - - - -
7 | Rent 2,020 2,097 - - - - -
8 Reimbursement of Contractual 1,066 917 - - - - - -
Remuneration [includes
remuneration to KMP ¥ 317 Lakhs
(2022 : % 275 Lakhs)]
9 | Expenses Recovered 5 4 46 31 - - 21 34 -
10 | Expenses Reimbursed 374 366 73 164 - - - 44 - - -
11 | Capital Contribution for Share 52 17 - - - - - - -
Based Payments
12 | Employee Share Based Payments 237 38 - - - - - - - -
13 | Interim Dividend 14,960 | 45,156 - - - - - - - - -
(% in Lakhs)
Associates of the Subsidiaries of Ultimate
Sl. - Holding Parent ;ompany Of.TMI Employee Trusts | Key Management Personnel
Description Compan of whlch.the HoId|n.g
No. pany Company is an Associate
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
1 Sale of Goods / Services 146 209 21,844 23,442 - -
2 Purchase of Goods / Services 1,846 685 - - - -
3 Remuneration to Key Management Personnel (KMP)
(i) Directors - - - - 606 643
(i) Others - - 194 128
4 Contribution to Employees’ Benefit Plans - - - - 285 - -
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ITC INFOTECH INDIA LIMITED

(vi) DISCLOSURE OF OUTSTANDING BALANCES ® in Lakhs)
CH°|d'“9 Wholly Owned Subsidiaries Fellow Subsidiaries
ompany
2023 2022
Description ITC ITCInfotech | 17 |ntotech | ITC Infotech ITc
ITC Infotech Do Brasil ITC
2023 | 2022 o Infotech France GmbH Infotech
timited |~ y5a) LTDA sAS (wef. | (wef Limited | motech
(UK) ), (weef. -€.1. DYy (USA), Inc. | 2023 2022
Inc. 10.10.2022) 08.02.2023) | 10.03.2023) (UK)
Balances as at 31st March,
i) Trade Receivables - 90 - 4,490 - - - 3,409 7,424 197 149
ii) Trade Payables 142 | 141 194 - 219 6 6 13 - - -
iii) Other Payables 218 81 - - - - - - - - -
% in Lakhs)
. Subsidiaries of Ultimate Parent Employee Trusts
Descrinti H'tsls(ﬁrc]laté:%f t:rf Company of TMI of which the
escription 9 pany Holding Company is an Associate
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
Balances as at 31st March,
i) Trade Receivables 5 17 5,925 4,877 - -
ii) Trade Payables 6 - - - -
i) Advances Given - - - - 576 450
iv) Other Payables - - - 879 285
(vii)  INFORMATION REGARDING SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS
(Generally in excess of 10% of the total transaction value of the same type) (X in Lakhs)
Related Party Transactions 2023 2022 | Related Party Transactions 2023* 2022
Purchase of Goods / Services Remuneration to Key Management Personnel (KMP)
International Travel House Limited 1,846 685 | Mr. S. Singh 606 643
Mr. R. Batra 216 182
Contribution to Employees’ Benefit Plans Mr. S. Shah 49 93
ITC Management Staff Gratuity Fund 285 - | Ms. S. Burman - 100
Mr. K. Ray 194 28
Mr. S. Jain 45 -

* Includes provision for incentives, as applicable, which will get finalised subsequently.

35 Ratios

(viii)  INFORMATION REGARDING SIGNIFICANT BALANCES
(Generally in excess of 10% of the total balance of the same type)
(®in Lakhs)
Related Party Balances 2023 2022
Trade Payables
International Travel House Limited 6 9
Advances Given
ITC Pension Fund 576 450
Other Payables
ITC Gratuity Fund C 36 -
ITC Management Staff Gratuity Fund 843 285
(ix) COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL*
The remuneration of directors and other members of key management personnel during the year is as follows: (% in Lakhs)
2023 2022
Employee Benefits 1,110 1,047
Others - 2
*Post employment benefits are actuarially determined on overall basis, hence not separately available and not included above. Further, value of employee share based payments is
not included above, refer note 29 for details.
(x) SIGNIFICANT TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF OUTSTANDING BALANCES
All outstanding balances are unsecured and are repayable in cash.
Particulars Numerator Denominator 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Current Ratio' Current Assets Current Liabilities 2.1 3.4
Debt-Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholder’s Equity 0.0 0.0
Debt Service Coverage Ratio? Earnings available for Debt Service Debt Service 55.2 165.0
Return on Equity? Net Profits after Taxes Average Shareholder’s Equity 32.1% 69.6%
Trade Receivables turnover ratio Revenue Average Trade Receivable 7.6 10.0
Trade Payables turnover ratio Adjusted Other Expenses Average Trade Payables 4.8 5.2
Net capital turnover ratio Revenue Working Capital 3.7 3.7
Net profit ratio * Net Profit Revenue 13.4% 22.6%
Return on capital employed (ROCE) 3 Earning before Interest and Taxes Average Capital Employed 42.2% 92.6%
Return on Investment(ROI) * Income generated from Investments Average Investments 6.1% 4.9%
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" The change in the current ratio by more than 25% is primarily due to liabilities from acquisition of Business and Commercial Rights.

2 The change in the debt service coverage ratio by more than 25% is primarily due to reduction of profits.

3 Return on equity and return on capital employed reduced due to reduction of profits coupled with infusion of additional share capital.

4 Net profit ratio reduced due to reduction of profits.

> Return on Investment has increased primarily due to increase in Repo Rate from 4% to 6.5% during the year. Investments represent Investment in Debt Mutual
Funds.

36 Acquisition of Business and Commercial Rights

On 20th April 2022, the Company entered into an agreement with PTC Inc., a global technology company headquartered in Boston, USA, to acquire a part
of PTC’s PLM implementation services business and create a new service line focused on the adoption of PTC’s industry-leading Windchill PLM software as a
service (SaaS). As part of this agreement, the Company acquired Business and Commercial Rights resulting in the Company becoming a preferred partner for
consulting and implementation services relating to the Windchill PLM and associated application lifecycle management (ALM) and service lifecycle management
service (SLM) software business. The transaction was consummated on Tst June 2022, and the Company capitalized INR 74,538 lakhs relating to Business and
Commercial Right acquired as an intangible asset.

The consideration is payable through cash consideration, assumption of certain employee liabilities and involves contingent consideration which is subject to
achievement of revenue and business targets. The details relating to the transaction are as follows:

® in Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March, 2023
Business and Commercial Rights acquired and capitalized on 1st June 2022 as an intangible asset [Refer Note 2(c)] 74,538
Employee Liabilities assumed on date of acquisition (2,440)
Consideration payable to PTC Inc. 72,098
Settled:

Initial consideration paid on 1st June 2022 [Refer Cash Flow Statement] (25,219)

Settlement of consideration by offset of trade receivables [Refer Cash Flow Statement] (164)
Changes in fair value recognised in Other Expenses [Refer Note 20] 5,063
Change in fair value transferred to Hedge Reserve [Refer Note 32] 496
Closing Balance (31st March 2023)* 52,274

*Out of the total closing balance of INR 52,274 Lakhs, INR 21,327 Lakhs is non-current liability and INR 30,947 Lakhs is current liability.

The intangible assets relating to Business and Commercial Rights is recorded after considering the fair of value of the consideration on the date of acquisition.
The contingent consideration is subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss and as at March 31st 2023, any reasonable possible changes in the
key inputs will not result into a significant change in the fair value of the contingent consideration. The contingent consideration is recognized as a level 3 input
as they are dependent on achievement of revenue and business targets.

37 Subsequent Events
A new subsidiary of the Company has been incorporated in Mexico in the name of ITC Infotech de México, S.A. de C.V. on 17th April 2023.

All events up to the date of the issue of financial statements have been considered.

38 Approval of Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 3rd May, 2023.

39 Comparatives
As required by Ind AS, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation for the current financial year.
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ITC INFOTECH LIMITED

Strategic Report

The Directors present their Strategic Report for the year ended 31st March
2023.

Key Performance Indicators

£ (million)
Year Ended March 31, 2023 2022
Total Revenue 30.30 40.02
Cost of Sales 23.83 35.60
Gross Profit 6.47 4.42
Profit before Tax 1.64 0.90
Profit after Tax 1.45 0.79

Business review

In 2022-23 the Company achieved a revenue of GBP 30.3 million while the net
profit was GBP 1.45 million. Revenue in the current year was impacted by the
outcome of changing strategic priorities in a few key accounts, in the backdrop
of a volatile macro-economic environment. The Company continued to invest
in strengthening existing capabilities and identifying new opportunities for
long-term growth and differentiation. The Company’s portfolio of client and
industry-focused capabilities include PLM-led Digital Thread Solutions, Digital
Manufacturing, Open Hospitality and Cloud amongst others. Cost optimization,
digital transformation and talent-centric strategies continued to drive
technology spending. The Company continued to enable clients to leverage
these trends, and witnessed a strong performance across verticals, particularly
in Hospitality, Consumer & Packaged Goods and Manufacturing. The Company
saw good demand for its PLM-led Digital Thread, Digital Manufacturing and
Open Hospitality Solutions. Majority of the customers of the Company are
based in UK, please refer to Note 14.

Section 172(1) statement

During the year ended 31st March 2023, the directors have complied with
their duties with regard to the matters set out in section 172(1) (a)-(f) of the
Companies Act 2006. The directors believe that they have acted in a way they
consider, in good faith, would be most likely to promote the success of the
Company for the benefit of its members as a whole. Further information is set
out in this Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report.

Customers

Customer centricity continues to be one of the strategic pillars of the Company.
To fulfill our vision of providing business- friendly solutions to our clients, the
Company continued to sharpen its focus on key customer relationships across
all industry verticals. The Company’s strategic and trusted partnerships with
key customers across its portfolio enable it to drive opportunities for long-term,
sustainable and profitable growth.

Employees

The Company'’s strategic pillar of ‘Employee Centricity’ continues to drive its
focus on attracting, training and retaining high-quality talent. The Company

continued to shape its differentiated employee value proposition built on the
core tenets of a compelling purpose & culture, holistic well-being, and global
career opportunities. To strengthen its culture of continuous learning and to
support our long-term growth aspirations, the Company invested in building
client-focused learning academies for its key customers.

Future Outlook

In the backdrop of global economic volatility, cost takeouts, vendor consolidation
and digital transformation will continue to drive the strategic priorities of
clients. Our strategic pillars of customer centricity, employee centricity and
operational excellence and our vision of providing business-friendly solutions to
our clients will enable us to stay relevant to their changing business priorities in
this environment. We will continue to invest in mining and growing key client
relationships towards becoming their trusted partners in driving their growth
and transformation agendas.

In this context, we will continue to invest in strengthening our portfolio of
client & industry-focused differentiated capabilities. The Company will continue
to invest, and shape well-defined offerings aligned to the theme of delivering
Business Friendly Solutions across select industry verticals. The Company will
also sharpen its alliance ecosystem with future ready Software Vendors in
identified capability areas in Digital, Data & Analytics and Infrastructure Services
amongst others. The Company will sustain its investments in hiring and training
the right talent with a focus on building a culture of continuous learning.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The ongoing economic and geo-political volatility is expected to continue
impacting client sentiment and IT spending. This is resulting in a sustained
focus on cost-optimization and vendor consolidation. Clients are increasingly
looking for trusted partners who are jointly invested in shaping and driving
their growth and transformation agenda. The demand for attracting, training,
and retaining high-quality talent, particularly in niche and future-focused
technologies continues to remain a top priority to succeed in the global
technology landscape. However, the Company’s strategy of increasing its onsite
presence, including local hiring, its investments in strengthening its Sales teams
(hiring & sales enablement training) and its continued investments in learning
& development for its employees will mitigate these risks. The Company is also
focused on increasing its client relevance through differentiated and integrated
offerings across its portfolio of services. In addition, the volatility around British
Pound, USD and Euro are also key risks for the Company. The Company will
focus on the stated strategy to grow the business in identified markets in the
European region, which present a significant growth opportunity.

Approved by the Board on 2nd May, 2023 and signed on behalf of the
Board by

S. Singh
Director

ITC Infotech Limited

Building 5,

Caldecotte Lake Drive, Caldecotte,
Milton Keynes, Buckinghamshire
MK7 8LF

S. Sivakumar
Vice Chairman

Directors’ Report

Your Directors present their Report together with the Audited Financial
Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023.

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of ITC Infotech India Limited,
incorporated in India. The Company has foreign branches in Singapore and
Czech Republic. Details of the future outlook for the Company can be found in
the Strategic Report which forms part of this report.

Principal activities

The Company is engaged in providing information technology services to
enterprise clients.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The objective of financial risk management is to protect the value of the
Company’s financial assets against possible erosion due to adverse materialisation
of risks related to credit, liquidity, and foreign currency exposures.

The existence of financial assets exposes the Company to a number of financial
risks. The main risks are market risk due to currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk.

a) Market risk - currency risk

The Company is exposed to translation and transaction foreign exchange
risks. While the Company makes payments, mostly in GBP, to its major
supplier(s), 26% (2022: 20%) of its sales in the year under review were in
US dollars and 24% (2022: 16%) in Euro. The Company has bank accounts
in multiple currencies. The Company reviews its foreign exchange
management processes on a regular basis and ensures that fund flow
position is maintained in a manner to minimize the impact of foreign
exchange fluctuations.

b) Credit risk

The Company’s principal financial assets are cash and trade debtors. The
Company has robust processes to assess customer credit-worthiness and
consequently there are no significant risks on this count.

c) Liquidity risk
The Company seeks to manage financial risk by ensuring that sufficient
liquidity is available to meet foreseeable needs and to invest cash assets
safely and profitably.

Dividend

No dividends were declared and paid to the shareholder during the year ended
31st March 2023 (2022: NIL) and no dividends have been proposed after the
balance sheet date for the said year

Directors

The Directors in office at the end of the year are listed below. The Directors did
not have any interest in the shares of the Company during the year and to the
date of signing this report as indicated below:

Ordinary Shares

S. Puri -

S. Sivakumar -

R. Singhi (appointed w.e.f. 21st July 2022) -

S. Singh -

S. Dutta (appointed w.e.f. 21st July 2022) -

B.B. Chatterjee (ceased to be Director w.e.f. 20th July 2022) -

R. Tandon (ceased to be Director w.e.f. 21st July 2022) -
Mr. S. Puri, Chairman & Director, and Mr. S. Singh, Director, will retire
by rotation at the next Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.
Equal Opportunities for Employees

The Company believes that people are our most valuable asset and will give our
business a distinct competitive advantage. Our people strategies are designed
to enable our employees to enhance their professional skills and actualise their
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potential. The Company is committed to building a work culture that will
enable people to derive the maximum professional satisfaction and help them
harness their potential in achieving individual and organisational goals.

The Company strives to give full and fair consideration to applications for
employment made by differently abled persons, having regard to their
particular aptitudes and abilities, and extends full support during their
employment by providing, inter alia, appropriate training and opportunities for
career development.

The Company is an equal opportunity employer and all positions within the
Company are open to all regardless of sex, race, religion, colour or marital
status. This also covers opportunities for promotion within ITC Infotech
Limited. The Company continues to be guided by its values of Customer focus,
Respect for People, Excellence, Abounding Innovation, Trusteeship and Ethical
Corporate Citizenship.

Business Relationships

As stated in the Strategic Report, the Company is focussed on achieving growth
through well defined offerings aligned to the theme of delivering Business
Friendly Solutions to select industry verticals. Strengthening alliances with a
select set of Software Vendors will continue to be an important focus area of the
Company, while forming and nurturing new partnerships with emerging, future
ready Software Vendors.

Going Concern Assessment

The Company has considered internal and external sources of information up to
the date of approval of these financial statements, including credit reports and
related information, economic forecasts etc. The Company has also performed
sensitivity analysis on the assumptions used, and based on current estimates,
does not expect any material impact on forecast for a period of 12 months from
the date of signing the financial statements.

For its day-to-day working capital requirements, the Company uses its cash
reserves, when required. In this context, the key factors considered in assessing
the going concern status of the Company are:

1. The transfer pricing arrangements with its parent company, whereby the
Company will earn a minimum return on relevant costs.

2. The results of the forecasts and projections prepared by the Company for
its business plan for FY 2023-24 which, taking into account reasonably
possible changes in trading performance, show that the Company should
be able to operate within the level of its current cash reserves.

3.  The Company’s FY 2022-23 collections from customers have remained
robust which is evident in reduction in Trade Receivables (£5.17 million as
at 31st March 2022 to £4.92 million as at 31st March 2023).

Based on the above, the Directors are confident that the business plan projections
support their reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources
to continue operational existence for the foreseeable future. The Company
therefore continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing its financial
statements.

Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the financial statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for
each financial year. Under that law the directors have elected to prepare the
financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom adopted International
Accounting Standards. The financial statements also comply with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as issued by the IASB. Under company law
the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied
that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of

the profit or loss of the company for that period. In preparing these financial
statements, International Accounting Standard 1 requires that directors:

e properly select and apply accounting policies;

e present information, including accounting policies, in a manner
that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable
information; and

e provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific
requirements of the financial reporting framework are insufficient to
enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other
events and conditions on the entity’s financial position and financial
performance; and

e make an assessment of the company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that
are sufficient to show and explain the company’s transactions and disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company
and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets
of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate
and financial information included on the company’s website. Legislation in
the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Directors’ Confirmation

Each of the directors, whose names are listed in Directors’ Report confirm that,
to the best of their knowledge:

e the company’s financial statements, which have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the U.K., give a true and fair view of
the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit of the company; and

e the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report include a fair review of the
development and performance of the business and the position of the
company, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
that it faces.

Disclosure of Information to Auditor

In the case of each Director in office at the date the Directors’ Report is
approved:

e 5o far as the Director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of
which the Company’s auditor are unaware; and

e they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a Director in
order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to
establish that the company’s auditors are aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the
provisions of section 418 of the Companies Act 2006.

Approved by the Board on 2nd May, 2023 and signed on behalf of the Board by

ITC Infotech Limited
Building 5,
Caldecotte Lake Drive, Caldecotte,

S. Singh S. Sivakumar

Director Vice Chairman
Milton Keynes, Buckinghamshire
MK?7 8LF
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of ITC Infotech Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements of ITC Infotech Limited (the

‘company’):

e give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31st
March 2023 and of its profit for the year then ended;

* have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
adopted international accounting standards and International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB); and

e have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:
e the income statement;

e the statement of financial position;

e the statement of changes in equity;

e the statement of cash flows; and

e the related notes 1 to 21.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom adopted international
accounting standards and IFRSs as issued by the IASB.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council’s (the ‘FRC's’)
Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the
financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually
or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from
when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to
going concern are described in the relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained
within the annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not
cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly
stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify
such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are
required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement
in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the
directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and
for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate
the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with I1SAs (UK) will

always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements is located on the FRC's website at: www.frc.org.uk/
auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting
irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws
and regulations. We design procedures in line with our responsibilities,
outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities,
including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of
detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below.

We considered the nature of the company’s industry and its control
environment, and reviewed the company’s documentation of their
policies and procedures relating to fraud and compliance with laws and
regulations. We also enquired of management and the directors about
their own identification and assessment of the risks of irregularities,
including those that are specific to the company’s business sector.

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework that
the company operates in, and identified the key laws and regulations that:

e had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. These included UK Companies
Act, pensions legislation and tax legislation; and

e do not have a direct effect on the financial statements but compliance
with which may be fundamental to the company’s ability to operate
or to avoid a material penalty. These included Anti-bribery Act, GDPR,
health and safety rules and employment law.

We discussed among the audit engagement team regarding the
opportunities and incentives that may exist within the organisation for
fraud and how and where fraud might occur in the financial statements.

As a result of performing the above, we identified the greatest potential
for fraud in the following area, and our specific procedures performed to
address it are described below:

The existence assertion of unbilled revenue and the associated cut-
off assertion of revenue, both specifically relating to Time and Material
contracts, have been pinpointed as the potential risks of fraud. This
requires manual input and some extent of judgement, hence, may be
subject to fraud. Our audit procedures included the test of unbilled
revenue against timesheet data from the current financial year, which
provided us reasonable assurance over the existence of unbilled revenue
and the related cut-off assertion of revenue.

In common with all audits under ISAs (UK), we are also required to perform
specific procedures to respond to the risk of management override. In
addressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls,
we tested the appropriateness of journal entries and other adjustments;
assessed whether the judgements made in making accounting estimates
are indicative of a potential bias; and evaluated the business rationale of
any significant transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course
of business.

In addition to the above, our procedures to respond to the risks identified

included the following:

e reviewing financial statement disclosures by testing to supporting
documentation to assess compliance with provisions of relevant laws
and regulations described as having a direct effect on the financial
statements;

e performinganalytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected
relationships that may indicate risks of material misstatement due to
fraud;

* enquiring of management concerning actual and potential litigation
and claims, and instances of non-compliance with laws and
regulations; and

e reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

e the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report
for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared
is consistent with the financial statements; and

e the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in
accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its
environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified
any material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’ report.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report in respect of the
following matters if, in our opinion:

e adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate
for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us;
or

e the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting

records and returns; or
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e certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not
made; or

e we have not received all the information and explanations we require
for our audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.
Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our
audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s

report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we
do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company
and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report,
or for the opinions we have formed.

Chris Wademan FCA (Senior statutory auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Statutory Auditor Newcastle, U.K.

30th May 2023

Income Statement

Revenue

-Sale of Services

-Resale of Software/Hardware

-Other Revenue

Total Revenue 14
Cost of sales 15
Gross profit

Selling, general and administrative expenses 15
Operating Profit

Foreign exchange gain

Finance and other income 17
Profit before income tax

Income tax expense 12
Profit for the year

All the above results relate to continuing activities.

Year ended March 31,

2023 2023 2022 2022

£ 3 £ g
Unaudited Unaudited

30,022,946 3,051,757,398 39,693,829 3,947,749,769
278,744 28,333,623 273,856 27,236,332

- - 52,668 5,238,130

30,301,690 3,080,091,021 40,020,353 3,980,224,231
(23,828,098)  (2,422,066,576) (35,597,912) (3,540,390,316)
6,473,592 658,024,445 4,422,441 439,833,915
(4,910,219) (499,111,487) (3,645,870) (362,599,991)
1,563,373 158,912,958 776,571 77,233,924
40,419 4,108,514 115,003 11,437,613
34,216 3,477,953 3,517 349,807
1,638,008 166,499,425 895,091 89,021,344
(187,134) (19,021,711) (107,773) (10,718,583)

1,450,874 147,477,714 787,318 78,302,761

There are no recognised gains or losses in the current and prior year other than as included in the income statement. Accordingly, no statement of

comprehensive income is presented.

The accompanying notes on pages 45 to 55 form an integral part of these financial statements.



Statement of Financial Position

Company Reg No - 02777705

Assets

Property, plant and equipment

Other non-current assets

Non-current - Contract asset (capitalized cost)
Right-of-Use Asset

Total non-current assets

Current tax asset

Trade receivables

Contract assets-Unbilled revenue

Current - Contract asset (capitalized cost)
Other current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets
Total assets

Equity

Share capital

Retained earnings

Equity attributable to owners of the company

Total equity

Non-current - Lease liability
Non-current - Contract liability
Non-current - Other liabilities

Deferred income tax liability

Total Non-current liabilities

Trade payables and accrued expenses
Unearned revenue

Current tax liability

Current - Lease liability

Current - Contract liability

Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Note

19
18

13

18
19

12

18
19

ITC INFOTECH LIMITED

As at As at As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2022
£ g £ g
Unaudited Unaudited

167,254 17,000,886 209,026 20,788,681
2,500 254,119 1,950 193,938
606,449 61,644,043 982,691 97,733,543
58,946 5,991,739 137,542 13,679,209
835,149 84,890,787 1,331,209 132,395,371
58,649 5,961,524 - R
4,916,218 499,721,267 5,171,013 514,283,098
3,615,969 367,554,209 2,347,127 233,433,516
- - 146,912 14,611,111

207,798 21,122,249 103,892 10,332,579
2,721,793 276,663,454 4,391,602 436,766,777
11,520,427 1,171,022,703 12,160,546 1,209,427,080
12,355,576 1,255,913,490 13,491,755 1,341,822,451
685,815 69,711,380 685,815 68,207,731
8,127,123 826,101,648 6,676,249 663,986,281
8,812,938 895,813,028 7,362,064 732,194,012
8,812,938 895,813,028 7,362,064 732,194,012
- - 64,899 6,454,530

- - 572,886 56,976,348

115,782 11,768,951 - -
38,521 3,915,564 47,425 4,716,693
154,303 15,684,515 685,210 68,147,571
730,780 74,282,173 3,985,600 396,388,047
78,004 7,928,793 78,005 7,757,960

- - 1,625 161,453

65,683 6,676,584 85,836 8,536,819
909,674 92,466,106 283,768 28,222,146
1,604,194 163,062,309 1,009,647 100,414,442
3,388,335 344,415,965 5,444,481 541,480,868
3,542,638 360,100,480 6,129,691 609,628,439
12,355,576 1,255,913,508 13,491,755 1,341,822,451

These financial statements on pages 42 to 55 were approved by the directors on 2nd May, 2023 and are signed on their behalf by:

Anindya Roy Karan Shukla S. Singh S. Sivakumar

President Financial Controller Director Vice Chairman

The accompanying notes on pages 45 to 55 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2023

No. of Shares Share Capital Retained Earnings Total equity
£ g £ 4 £ 4
Note Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited
Balance as at April 1, 2021 685,815 685,815 68,207,731 5,888,931 585,683,520 6,574,746 653,891,251
Profit for the year - - - 787,318 78,302,761 787,318 78,302,761
Other comprehensive income - - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 787,318 78,302,761 787,318 78,302,761
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:
Cash dividend paid - - - - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 685,815 685,815 68,207,731 6,676,249 663,986,281 7,362,064 732,194,012
Balance as at April 1, 2022 685,815 685,815 69,711,380 6,676,249 678,623,934 7,362,064 748,335,314
Profit for the year - - - 1,450,874 147,477,714 1,450,874 147,477,714
Other comprehensive income - - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 1,450,874 147,477,714 1,450,874 147,477,714
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:
Cash dividend paid - - - - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 685,815 685,815 69,711,380 8,127,123 826,101,648 8,812,938 895,813,028

For simplicity, the unaudited brought forward Rupee amounts as at 1st April have been translated using the exchange rate as at 31st March of the respective financial year.

The accompanying notes on pages 45 to 55 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended March 31,

2023 2023 2022 2022
£ g £ g
Note Unaudited Unaudited
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year 1,450,874 147,477,714 787,318 78,302,761
Adjustment for:
Depreciation 4 59,018 5,999,050 63,644 6,329,714
Loss on disposal of asset 23 2,256 63 6,300
ROU Depreciation 18 78,595 7,989,030 78,596 7,816,716
Interest on Lease Liability 18 2,222 225,907 3,904 388,268
Interest income 17 (34,216) (3,477,953) (3,517) (349,807)
Income tax expense 12 187,134 19,021,711 107,773 10,718,583
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Trade receivables 5 254,795 25,899,225 953,240 94,804,455
Contract Assets-Unbilled revenues 5 (1,268,842) (128,974,664) 1,581,398 157,277,927
Contract Asset (capitalized cost) 19 523,154 53,177,284 (1,129,603) (112,344,696)
Contract Liability 19 53,020 5,389,399 856,653 85,198,424
Other assets 7 (104,456) (10,617,640) 474 47,064
Trade payables and accrued expenses 8  (3,254,820) (330,844,329) 661,354 65,774,999
Unearned revenues 10 m (64) (60,138) (5,980,988)
Other liabilities 9 710,329 72,203,075 (1,848,208) (183,813,513)
Net cash provided by operating activities before taxes W) (136,5—29,T99) W m
Income tax paid (net) (256,312) (26,053,524) (59,688) (5,936,310)
Net cash (utilised by)/generated in operating activities (1,599,483) (162,583,523) 1,993,263 198,239,897
Cash flows from investing activities - - - -
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment 4 (38,879) (3,951,932) (66,679) (6,631,560)
Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 4 21,611 2,203,318 - -
Interest received 17 34,216 3,477,953 3,517 349,807
Net cash used in investing activities 16,948 1,729,339 (63,162) (6,281,753)
Cash flows from financing activities - - - -
Lease Liability Payment 18 (87,274) (8,877,726) (87,253) (8,677,697)
Dividends paid to the parent company - - - -
Net cash used in financing activities (87,274) (8,877,726) (87,253) (8,677,697)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (1,669,809) (169,731,910) 1,842,848 183,280,447
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 6 4,391,602 446,395,364 2,548,754 253,486,329
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 6 2,721,793 276,663,454 4,391,602 436,766,776

For simplicity, the unaudited brought forward Rupee amounts as at 1st April have been translated using the exchange rate as at the 31st March of the
respective financial year.

The accompanying notes on pages 45 to 55 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Supplementary information - Indian Rupee amounts

The financial statements of ITC Infotech Limited are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and are presented in GBP.
The supplementary information (comprising the pro-forma financial information disclosed in Indian Rupees) requested by the parent company has been
arrived at by applying the year end interbank exchange rate of £1 =% 101.65 (2022: £1 =% 99.46) as provided by the parent company. The supplementary
information has not been audited.

1.

3.

Company overview

The Company is engaged in providing information technology services to enterprise clients.

The Company is a private company limited by shares incorporated in United Kingdom under Companies Act, 2006 and registered in England and Wales
and has its registered office at Building 5, Caldecotte Lake Drive, Caldecotte, Milton Keynes, Buckinghamshire, England, United Kingdom, MK7 8LF.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

(a)

®

~

(©

(d

~

(@

Statement of compliance

These financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023, have been prepared in accordance with United Kingdom adopted
International Accounting Standards (and with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the IASB).

Basis of measurement

These financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis, under the historical cost convention, and in accordance with the Companies
Act 2006 and applicable IFRS. The principal accounting policies, which have been applied consistently throughout the year, are set out below.

Going Concern assessment

The Company has considered internal and external sources of information up to the date of approval of these financial statements, including credit
reports and related information, economic forecasts etc. The Company has also performed sensitivity analysis on the assumptions used, and based
on current estimates, does not expect any material impact on forecast for a period of 12 months from the date of signing the financial statements.

For its day-to-day working capital requirements, the Company uses its cash reserves, when required. In this context, the key factors considered in
assessing the going concern status of the Company are.

1. The transfer pricing arrangements with its parent company, whereby the Company will earn a minimum return on relevant costs.

2. The results of the forecasts and projections prepared by the Company for its business plan for FY 2023-24 which, taking into account
reasonably possible changes in trading performance, show that the Company should be able to operate within the level of its current cash
reserves.

3. The Company’s FY 2022-23 collections from customers have remained robust which is evident in reduction in Trade Receivables (£5.17
million as at 31st March 2022 to £4.92 million as at 31st March 2023).

Based on the above, the Directors are confident that the business plan projections support their reasonable expectation that the Company
hasadequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The Company therefore continues to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing its financial statements.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in British pound, which is the functional currency of the company which is the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates.

Use of estimates

There are no judgments other than the estimates involving judgments as stated below. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
IFRS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which
the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical
judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included
in the following notes:

i) Revenue recognition: The Company uses the percentage of completion method using the input (cost expended) method to measure progress
towards completion in respect of fixed price contracts. Percentage of completion method accounting relies on estimates of total expected
contract revenue and costs. This method is followed when reasonably dependable estimates of the revenues and costs applicable to various
elements of the contract can be made. Key factors that are reviewed in estimating the future costs to complete include estimates of future
labour costs and productivity efficiencies. Because the financial reporting of these contracts depends on estimates that are assessed continually
during the term of these contracts, recognised revenue and profit are subject to revisions as the contract progresses to completion. When
estimates indicate that a loss will be incurred, the loss is provided for in the year in which the loss becomes probable. Due to the nature of
the contracts under unbilled revenue, it is not feasible to prepare a sensitivity analysis. Contract assets-unbilled revenues represent amounts
recognised based on services performed in advance of billing in accordance with contract terms. The Company recognises contract assets-
unbilled revenues based on underlying contractual documents for services rendered, further evidenced by timesheet approval where
applicable.

i) Impairment Assessment for Contract Asset (Capitalized Cost): The value of the contract asset (capitalized cost) requires judgement in assessing
whether an impairment exists and subsequently the estimates and assumptions in determining the valuation are considered significant.
Due to changes in the economic environment, and the changing banking landscape, we have calibrated expected returns compared to the
projections considered at the time of entering the original agreement, resulting in downward assessment in the contract asset (capitalized
cost) value.

iii)  Other estimates: The preparation of financial statements involves estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities
and the reported amount of revenues and expenses for the reporting period.

Significant accounting policies

Financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments of the Company comprise of trade and other receivables and trade and other liabilities.

There are no derivative financial instruments.
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The classification of financial instruments depends on the purpose for which those were acquired. Management determines the classification of its
financial instruments at initial recognition.

(i) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They
are presented as current assets, except for those maturing later than 12 months after the reporting date which are presented as non-current assets.
Trade and other receivables are measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs and subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment loss.

Credit is extended to customers after evaluating them against key parameters such as financial position, credit ratings, market intelligence, past
experience etc., as may be appropriate. Trade receivables are monitored regularly. Concentration of credit risk, with respect to trade receivables,
is limited, due to the Company’s customer base being large and internationally dispersed. Some of the Company’s key Customers have been
transacting for many years and the incidence of bad debts is negligible. The Company recognises provision for expected credit loss on an individual
customer basis, based on risk assessment, which are conducted regularly and considers all aspects with respect to debts such as invoice ageing,
credit information, etc. The Company writes off a financial asset when there is no probability of recovery of the debt, any recoveries made post
write off are recognised in the profit & loss account.

In calculating expected credit loss, the Company has considered credit reports and other related credit information for its customers to estimate
the probability of default (i.e., no longer recoverable) in future. Refer to note 5 for values of Trade Receivables and provisions.

Trade and other receivables are represented by trade receivables, contract assets-unbilled revenue, employee loans and other advances.
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and in banks and demand deposits with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, in banks and demand deposits with banks, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and are considered part of the Company’s cash management system.

(iii) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities, except for those maturing later than 12 months after the reporting date which are
presented as non-current liabilities. Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value, and subsequently carried at amortized cost using
the effective interest method.

(iv) Contract asset (capitalised cost) and liabilities

The incremental costs of obtaining a contract are recognized as an asset and amortized to revenues in accordance with IFRS 15. Capitalized costs
are monitored regularly for impairment. Impairment losses are recorded when present value of projected remaining operating cash flows is not
sufficient to recover the carrying amount of the capitalized costs.

Revenue

The Company is engaged in providing information technology services to enterprise clients. Revenues from customer contracts are considered for
recognition and measurement when the contract has been approved by the parties to the contract, the parties to the contract are committed to perform
their respective obligations under the contract, and the contract is legally enforceable.

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products or services (“performance obligations”) to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or services (“transaction price”). The Company assesses the
services promised in a contract and identifies distinct performance obligations in the contract. The Group allocates the transaction price to each distinct
performance obligation based on expected cost-plus margin. Revenue excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties, such as value added tax.

a) Revenue is recognised from services performed on a “time and material” basis, as and when the services are performed.

b) Revenue from Fixed price support services is recognised on a straight-line basis when services are performed through a series of repetitive acts over a
specified period.

c) Revenueisrecognised from services performed on “time bound fixed-price engagements” based on efforts expended using the percentage of completion
method of accounting, if work completed can be reasonably estimated. The cumulative impact of any revision in estimates of the percentage of work

completed is reflected in the period in which the change becomes known. Provisions for estimated losses on such engagements are made during the
period in which a loss becomes probable and can be reasonably estimated.

d) Revenue from sales of third-party vendor software / hardware is recognised from trading in software packages / licenses / hardware upon delivery to
customer.

The billing schedules agreed with customers include periodic performance-based billing and/or milestone-based progress billings.

Amounts received or billed in advance of services performed are presented as unearned revenue (contract liabilities). Contract assets - unbilled revenue
represents amounts recognised based on services performed in advance of billing in accordance with contract terms.

Property, plant and equipment

All fixed assets are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost includes expenditures directly attributable to the
acquisition of the asset. Deposits and advances paid towards the acquisition of fixed assets outstanding as of each reporting date and the cost of fixed assets
not available for use before such date are disclosed under capital work- in-progress.

Depreciation

The Company depreciates fixed assets over the estimated useful life on a straight-line basis from the date the assets are available for use. Assets acquired
under finance lease and leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of estimated useful life or the related lease term.

The estimated useful lives of assets for the current and comparative period of significant items of fixed assets are as follows:
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Category Useful life
Leasehold improvements 10 years
Fixtures & fittings 10 years
Computer equipment 3 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the statement of income except to the extent it relates to items directly
recognised in equity or in other comprehensive income.

a) Current income tax

Current income tax for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities
based on the taxable income for the period. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the current tax amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date and applicable for the period.

b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognised for deductible and
taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in financial statements.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realized or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities are translated at
the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. All exchange differences are dealt with through the profit and loss account except those gains and
losses arising from the retranslation of the opening retained earnings in overseas branches are adjusted against the reserves.

Employee Benefits

The employer and employees each make periodic contributions to the pension fund equal to a specified percentage of the covered employee’s salary. It is a
defined contribution plan. The expenditure for defined contribution plans is recognised as expense during the period when the employee provides service.

Leases
As a Lessee

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if it conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Right—of-Use (ROU) assets are recognised at inception of a contract or arrangement for significant lease components at cost less lease incentives, if any.
ROU assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The cost of ROU assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct cost incurred, and lease payments made at or before the lease commencement date. ROU assets are generally
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and estimated useful lives of the underlying assets on a straight-line basis. Lease term is determined based on
consideration of facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an extension option, or not to exercise a termination option. Lease
payments associated with short-term leases and low value leases are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease.

The Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made on the date of recognition of the lease. Such lease
liabilities do not include variable lease payments (that do not depend on an index or a rate), which are recognised as expense in the periods in which they
are incurred. Interest on lease liability is recognised using the effective interest method. Lease liabilities are subsequently increased to reflect the accretion
of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. The carrying amount of lease liabilities are also remeasured upon modification of lease arrangement
or upon change in the assessment of the lease term. The effect of such remeasurements is adjusted to the value of the ROU assets.

The amount of ROU Asset and Lease Liabilities recognised in the Balance Sheet are disclosed in Note 18.
As a Lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Where the
Company is a lessor under an operating lease, the asset is capitalized within property, plant and equipment or investment property and depreciated over
its useful economic life. Payments received under operating leases are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease.

New Standards, interpretation and amendments not yet effective

At the date of authorization of these financial statements, the Company has not applied the following new and revised IFRS Standards that have been issued
but are not yet effective and, in some cases, had not yet been adopted by the IASB.

Amendment to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

The directors do not expect that the adoption of the Standards listed above will have a material impact on these financial statements in future periods,
except if indicated below.
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4. Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold improvements Computer equipment Fixtures & fittings Total
£ 3 £ 3 £ 3 £ 3
Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited

Gross carrying value:
As at 1 April 2021 147,829 14,702,333 135,304 13,456,690 57,060 5,674,853 340,193 33,833,876
Additions - - 66,679 6,631,560 - - 66,679 6,631,560
Disposal - - (1,682) (167,283) - - (1,682) (167,283)
As at March 31, 2022 147,829 14,702,333 200,301 19,920,967 57,060 5,674,853 405,190 40,298,153
Accumulated depreciation:
As at 1 April 2021 30,709 3,054,164 70,847 7,046,108 32,583 3,240,504 134,139 13,340,776
Depreciation 14,791 1,471,039 44,343 4,410,133 4,510 448,542 63,644 6,329,714
Disposal - - (1,619) (161,018) - - (1,619) (161,018)
As at March 31, 2022 45,500 4,525,203 113,571 11,295,223 37,093 3,689,046 196,164 19,509,472
Net carrying value as at March 31, 2022 102,329 10,177,130 86,730 8,625,744 19,967 1,985,807 209,026 20,788,681
Gross carrying value:
As at 1 April 2022 147,829 15,026,448 200,301 20,360,096 57,060 5,800,006 405,190 41,186,550
Additions - - 38,879 3,951,932 - - 38,879 3,951,932
Disposal - - (49,145) (4,995,492) - - (49,145)  (4,995,492)
As at March 31, 2023 147,829 15,026,448 190,035 19,316,536 57,060 5,800,006 394,924 40,142,990
Accumulated depreciation:
As at 1 April 2022 45,500 4,624,961 113,571 11,544,208 37,093 3,770,411 196,164 19,939,580
Depreciation 14,791 1,503,468 41,349 4,203,012 2,878 292,570 59,018 5,999,050
Disposal - - (27,512) (2,796,526) - - (27,512)  (2,796,526)
As at March 31, 2023 60,291 6,128,429 127,408 12,950,694 39,971 4,062,981 227,670 23,142,104
Net carrying value as at March 31, 2023 87,538 8,898,019 62,627 6,365,842 17,089 1,737,025 167,254 17,000,886

For simplicity, the unaudited brought forward Rupee amounts as at 1st April have been translated using the exchange rate as at the 31st March of the
respective financial year.

5. Trade receivables

As at As at As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2022

£ g £ 4

Unaudited Unaudited

Trade Receivables 4,916,218 499,721,267 5,171,013 514,283,098
Contract Assets-Unbilled Revenue

- Time & Material 3,227,512 328,068,496 2,041,209 203,008,417

- Fixed Price contracts based on % Completion 388,457 39,485,713 305,918 30,425,099

Total 8,532,187 867,275,476 7,518,140 747,716,614

An expected credit loss provision of £159,359 (2022: £159,359) against Trade Receivables is included in the figures above. Contract assets-unbilled revenue
receivables represent amounts recognised based on services performed in advance of billing in accordance with contract terms, (refer to note 2(e)(i) for further
details):

a) in a Time & Material Contract — Right to consideration from customer that is unconditional upon passage of time

b) in a Milestone Contract - Contractual right to consideration is dependent on completion of contractual milestones.

For receivables from group companies, please refer to Note 20.

6. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following: As at As at As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2022
£ 4 £ 4
Unaudited Unaudited
Cash at bank 2,721,793 276,663,454 4,391,602 436,766,777
Cash and cash equivalents on statement of financial position 2,721,793 276,663,454 4,391,602 436,766,777
Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement 2,721,793 276,663,454 4,391,602 436,766,777

7. Other Assets
As at As at As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2022
£ 4 £ g
Unaudited Unaudited

Non-current
Security deposits 100 10,165 100 9,946
Loans and Advances to employees 2,400 243,954 1,850 183,992
2,500 254,119 1,950 193,938

Current

Security deposits - - 7,352 731,193
Prepaid Expenses 47,964 4,875,481 42,484 4,225,246
Loans and Advances to Employees 69,030 7,016,768 52,580 5,229,344
Others 90,804 9,230,000 1,476 146,796
207,798 21,122,249 103,892 10,332,579
Total 210,298 21,376,368 105,842 10,526,517
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8.

10.

Trade payables and accrued expenses

ITC INFOTECH LIMITED

Trade payables and accrued expenses consist of the following: As at As at As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2022
£ g £ g
Unaudited Unaudited
Trade payables (119,496) (12,146,063) 3,407,759 338,919,069
Accrued expenses 850,276 86,428,236 577,841 57,468,978
Total 730,780 74,282,173 3,985,600 396,388,047
For payables to group companies, please refer to Note 20.
Other liabilities
As at As at As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2022
£ g £ g
Unaudited Unaudited
Non-current
Employee and other liabilities 115,782 11,768,951 - -
115,782 11,768,951 - -
Current
Employee and other liabilities 1,209,577 122,950,478 836,581 83,202,163
Statutory dues payable 394,617 40,111,831 173,066 17,212,279
1,604,194 163,062,309 1,009,647 100,414,442
Total 1,719,976 174,831,260 1,009,647 100,414,442
Unearned Revenue
As at As at As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2022
£ g £ g
Unaudited Unaudited
Amounts received in advance of delivery for service 78,004 7,928,793 78,005 7,757,960
Total 78,004 7,928,793 78,005 7,757,960
. Financial instruments
Financial instruments by category
The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at March 31, 2023 are as follows:
Trade and Other receivables Financial liabilities measured at Total carrying amount Fair value
amortized cost
£ g £ g £ g £ g
Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited
Assets:
Trade receivables 4,916,218 499,721,267 - - 4,916,218 499,721,267 4,916,218 499,721,267
Contract Assets-Unbilled revenue 3,615,969 367,554,209 - - 3,615,969 367,554,209 3,615,969 367,554,209
Cash and cash equivalents 2,721,793 276,663,454 - - 2,721,793 276,663,454 2,721,793 276,663,454
Contract Asset (capitalized cost) 606,449 61,644,043 - - 606,449 61,644,043 606,449 61,644,043
Other Assets 210,298 21,376,368 - - 210,298 _ 21,376,368 210,298 21,376,368
Total assets 12,070,727  1,226,959,341 - - 12,070,727 1,226,959,341 12,070,727 1,226,959,341
Liabilities:
Trade payables and accrued expenses - - 730,780 74,282,173 730,780 74,282,173 730,780 74,282,173
Contract Liability - - 909,674 92,466,106 909,674 92,466,106 909,674 92,466,106
Unearned revenue - - 78,004 7,928,793 78,004 7,928,793 78,004 7,928,793
Total liabilities - - 1,718,458 174,677,072 1,718,458 174,677,072 1,718,458 174,677,072
Revenue of 2022-23 includes an amount of £78,005 (2022: £138,143) recognised as ‘Unearned Revenue’ in financial year 2021-22.
The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at March 31, 2022 are as follows:
Trade and Other receivables  Financial liabilities measured at Total carrying amount Fair value
amortized cost
£ 4 £ 4 £ 4 £ 4
Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited
Assets:
Trade receivables 5,171,013 514,283,098 - - 5,171,013 514,283,098 5,171,013 514,283,098
Contract Assets-Unbilled revenue 2,347,127 233,433,516 - - 2,347,127 233,433,516 2,347,127 233,433,516
Cash and cash equivalents 4,391,602 436,766,777 - - 4,391,602 436,766,777 4,391,602 436,766,777
Contract Asset (capitalized cost) 982,691 97,733,543 - - 982,691 97,733,543 982,691 97,733,543
Other Assets 105,842 10,526,517 - - 105,842 10,526,517 105,842 10,526,517
Total assets 12,998,275 1,292,743,451 - - 12,998,275 1,292,743,451 12,998,275 1,292,743,451
Liabilities:
Trade payables and accrued expenses - - 3,985,600 396,388,047 3,985,600 396,388,047 3,985,600 396,388,047
Contract Liability - - 572,886 56,976,348 572,886 56,976,348 572,886 56,976,348
Unearned revenue - - 78,005 7,757,960 78,005 7,757,960 78,005 7,757,960
Total liabilities - - 4,636,491 461,122,355 4,636,491 461,122,355 4,636,491 461,122,355
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Financial risk management

ITC INFOTECH LIMITED

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The objective of financial risk management is to protect the value of the
Company's financial assets against possible erosion due to adverse materialisation of risks related to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign currency exposures.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from the
Company's receivables from customer. The Company’s principal financial assets are cash and trade debtors. The Company has robust processes to assess customer credit worthiness
and consequently there are no significant risks on this count. The Company establishes an allowance for doubtful debts and impairment that represents its estimate of incurred

losses in respect of receivables.
The following table gives details in respect of revenues generated from top customer and top 5 customers:

Revenue from top customer
Revenue from top 5 customers

Year ended March 31,

2023 2023

£ 3
Unaudited

3,668,460 372,889,821
12,921,312 1,313,419,049

2022 2022
£ £4
Unaudited

16,443,174 1,635,355,900
27,985,495 2,783,297,409

There is no other class of financial assets that is past due but not impaired except for trade receivables. The company’s credit period generally ranges from 30-120 days (2021-22:

30-120 days). The age wise break up of trade receivables, net of allowances that are past due, is given below:

Period (in days)

Past due 0-30 days
Past due 30-60 days
Past due 60-90 days
Past due over 90 days

Total past due and not impaired

As at As at As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2022
£ R £ 4

Unaudited Unaudited

656,773 66,759,334 324,536 32,276,728
244,119 24,814,086 642,656 63,915,352
95,187 9,675,521 26,289 2,614,572
37,857 3,848,069 (33,897) (3,371,226)
1,033,936 105,097,010 959,584 95,435,426

The allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables at the year ended March 31, 2023, and March 31, 2022 was £ 159,359 and £ 159,359, respectively. The movement in the allowance for

impairment in respect of trade receivables is as follows:

For the year ended / As at  For the yeal

31 March 2023

£

Balance at the beginning of the year 159,359
Additions during the year -
Received during the year -
Written off during the year -
Balance at the end of the year 159,359

r ended / As at
31 March 2023
g

Unaudited
16,198,444

16,198,444

For the year ended / As at
31 March 2022
£

159,359

159,359

For the year ended / As at
31 March 2022

g

Unaudited

15,849,049

15,849,049

For simplicity, the unaudited brought forward Rupee amounts as at 1st April have been translated using the exchange rate as at the 31st March of the respective financial year.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company seeks to manage financial risk by ensuring that

sufficient liquidity is available to meet foreseeable needs and to invest cash assets safely and profitably.
The cash position of the company is given below:

Cash and cash equivalents

Total

As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2023

2,721,793 276,663,454

As at As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2022

£ 3 £ 3
Unaudited Unaudited

4,391,602 436,766,777

2,721,793 276,663,454

4,391,602 436,766,777

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022:

As At 31st March 2023
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2 years and above
£ 4 £ g £ 4
Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited
Trade payables and accrued expenses 730,780 74,282,173 - - - -
Other liabilities 1,604,194 163,062,309 115,782 11,768,951 - -
As At 31st March 2022
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2 years and above
£ g £ 3 £ g
Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited
Trade payables and accrued expenses 3,985,600 396,388,047
Other current liabilities 1,009,647 100,414,442
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Market Risk- Foreign Currency risk

The Company is exposed to translation and transaction foreign exchange risks. While the Company makes payments, mostly in GBP, to its major suppliers, 26%
(2022: 20%) of its sales in the year under review were in US dollars and 24% (2022: 16%) in Euro. The Company has bank accounts in multiple currencies and
during the year under review it did not hold any hedging instruments. Foreign exchange management is, however, kept under regular review.

The following table presents foreign currency risk from non-derivative financial instruments as of March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.

As at 31st March 2023

EUR usb Other Currencies* Total
£ g £ i £ g £ i
Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited
Asset
Trade Receivables 1,634,547 166,147,639 1,281,061 130,216,643 178,420 18,135,933 3,094,028 314,500,215
Contract Assets-Unbilled Revenue 837,548 85,134,643 854,617 86,869,679 275,635 28,017,578 1,967,800 200,021,900
Contract Asset (capitalized cost) - - 606,449 61,644,025 - - 606,449 61,644,025
Cash and cash equivalents 648,656 65,934,211 873,853 88,825,009 205,459 20,884,410 1,727,968 175,643,630
Other assets - - - - - - - -
Liabilities
Trade payables and accrued expenses 121,323 12,332,131 12,832 1,304,390 53,357 5,423,586 187,512 19,060,107
Contract Liability - - 909,674 92,466,106 - - 909,674 92,466,106
Unearned Sales - - 1,794 182,353 - - 1,794 182,353
Other liabilities - - - - 15,637 1,589,412 15,637 1,589,412
Net assets/liabilities 2,999,428 304,884,362 2,691,680 273,602,507 590,520 60,024,923 6,281,628 638,511,792
As at 31st March 2022
EUR usb Other Currencies* Total
£ g £ 3 £ g £ 3
Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited

Asset
Trade Receivables 1,428,076 142,029,313 2,328,938 231,624,542 153,291 15,245,513 3,910,305 388,899,368
Contract Assets-Unbilled Revenue 287,437 28,587,033 649,948 64,640,567 265,845 26,439,602 1,203,230 119,667,202
Contract Asset (capitalized cost) - - 982,691 97,733,562 - - 982,691 97,733,562
Cash and cash equivalents - - - - 340,171 33,831,714 340,171 33,831,714
Other assets - - - - (6,951)  (691,283) (6,951)  (691,283)
Liabilities
Trade payables and accrued expenses 1,122,234 111,611,788 1,761,564 175,196,356 55,907 5,560,194 2,939,705 292,368,338
Contract Liability - - 572,886 56,976,328 - - 572,886 56,976,328
Unearned Sales - - 1,794 178,447 - - 1,794 178,447
Other liabilities - - - - 10,084 1,002,917 10,084 1,002,917
Net assets/liabilities 593,279 59,004,558 1,625,333 161,647,540 686,365 68,262,435 2,904,977 288,914,533

* Others include currencies such as Singapore- $ (SGD), Czech Republic- Koruna (CZK), Switzerland- Franc (CHF), Turkey-Lira (TRY), Hungary- Forint (HUF)

The foreign exchange rate sensitivity is calculated by aggregation of the net foreign exchange rate exposure and a simultaneous parallel foreign exchange rates shift of all the
currencies by 1% against the functional currencies of the Company.

For the year ended March 31, 2023 and 2022 respectively, every 1% appreciation/depreciation of the respective foreign currencies compared to functional currency of the Company
would increase/ decrease operating margins by £62,816 and £29,050, respectively.

12. Income tax expense
Income tax expense in the statement of income consists of:
Year ended March 31,

2023 2023 2022 2022
£ R £ g
Unaudited Unaudited

Current taxes
UK Corporation tax on profits of the year 238,387 24,231,450 195,817 19,474,940
Adjustment in respect of previous years (42,349) (4,304,670) (106,008) (10,543,006)
Total 196,038 19,926,780 89,809 8,931,934
Deferred taxes
Origination and reversal of timing differences (8,904) (905,069) 17,964 1,786,649
Total (8,904) (905,069) 17,964 1,786,649
Grand Total 187,134 19,021,711 107,773 10,718,583
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The reconciliation between the provision of corporation tax of the Company and amounts computed by applying the standard rate of UK corporation tax to profit before taxes is

as follows:

Year ended March 31,

2023 2023 2022 2022

£ g £ 4

Unaudited Unaudited

Profit before income tax 1,638,008 166,499,425 895,091 89,021,344
Profit multiplied by rate of tax 311,221 31,634,928 170,067 16,914,052
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 8,658 880,064 24,983 2,484,618
Movement in capital allowances, foreign tax credit etc. (6,734) (684,578) 767 76,270
Tax credit on group share based payments (74,758)  (7,598,964) - -
Adjustment in respect of previous years (42,349) (4,304,670) (106,008) (10,543,006)
Deferred tax (8,904) (905,069) 17,964 1,786,649
Total tax expense 187,134 19,021,711 107,773 10,718,583

The standard rates of UK corporation tax, for the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 are 19% and 19% respectively. In his budget of 2021, the Chancellor of
Exchequer proposed to increase the standard rate of corporation tax from the current 19% to 25% for companies with profits over £250,000, but to remain at 19% for companies
with profits of not more than £50,000 effective 1st April 2023. The change was substantively enacted on 24th May 2021, which was before the balance sheet date, and therefore,
impacts the value of deferred tax assets and liabilities in these financial statements. Since the company expects to generate profits over £250,000 in future years, the rate of 25%

has been used to calculate deferred tax assets and liabilities as at 31st March 2023.(2022: 19%)

Changes in tax rates and factors affecting the future tax charge
The components of deferred tax liability are as follows:

As at As at As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2022

£ 4 £ 3

Unaudited Unaudited
Property, Plant and Equipment (41,608) (4,229,309) (50,167) (4,989,420)
Provision 3,087 313,745 2,742 272,727
Net deferred tax liability (38,521) (3,915,564) (47,425) (4,716,693)

The deferred tax included in the Balance Sheet is as follows:

As at As at As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2022

£ e £ 3

Unaudited Unaudited

Deferred tax liability (38,521)  (3,915,564) (47,425)  (4,716,693)
Balance brought forward (47,425) (4,820,633) (29,461)  (2,930,044)
Profit and loss account movement arising during the year 8,904 905,069 (17,964)  (1,786,649)
Total deferred tax liability (38,521)  (3,915,564) (47,425)  (4,716,693)

For simplicity, the brought forward Rupee amounts as at 1st April have been translated using the exchange rate as at the 31st March of the respective financial year.

. Equity

a)

Share capital

The company has only one class of equity shares. The authorized share capital of the Company is 1,629,700 (2022: 1,629,700) equity shares of £1 each. Par value of the equity

shares is recorded as share capital and each equity share carries the same voting rights.

The Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital of the Company is 685,815 (2022: 685,815) equity shares of £1 each amounting to £685,815 (2022: £685,815).

All equity shares are held by ITC Infotech India Limited, the Holding Company. The company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of £1,

rank pari passu in all respects including entitlement to dividend. No new equity shares have been issued during the year.
The Company declares and pays dividends in GBP/EURO/USD.
b)  Retained earnings

Retained earnings comprises of the Company’s prior years’ undistributed earnings after taxes.

Capital Management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The
Company monitors the return on capital as well as the level of dividends on its equity shares. The Company’s objective when managing capital is to maintain an optimal structure

50 as to maximize shareholder value.

The capital structure is as follows:

As at As at As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2022

£ R £ 3

Unaudited Unaudited

Total equity attributable to the equity share holders of the company 8,812,938 895,813,028 7,362,064 732,194,012
As percentage of total capital 100% 100% 100% 100%
Total capital 8,812,938 895,813,028 7,362,064 732,194,012

The Company is equity financed which is evident from the capital structure table.
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14.

Revenue

The Company derives revenue primarily from delivery of IT services. The Company recognises revenue when the significant terms of the arrangement are enforceable, services have
been delivered and collectability is reasonably assured. An analysis of turnover is given below:

Year ended March 31,

2023 2023 2022 2022
£ g £ 4
Country Unaudited Unaudited
United Kingdom 22,009,190 2,237,179,119 33,124,840  3,294,430,962
Rest of the Europe 7,144999 726,271,286 5,740,680 570,939,329
Singapore 923,735 93,895,361 574,365 57,123,461
Others 223,766 22,745,254 580,468 57,730,479
Total 30,301,690 3,080,091,021 40,020,353 3,980,224,231
. Expenses by nature
Year ended March 31,
2023 2023 2022 2022
£ g £ 4
Unaudited Unaudited
Employee benefits 11,809,688 1,200,425,297 14,120,595 1,404,363,774
Sub-contractor charges/Outsourced charges 14,300,654 1,453,625,760 23,420,910  2,329,326,568
Travel and conveyance 756,672 76,913,758 487,230 48,457,470
Sales & Marketing expenses 71,337 7,251,238 47,386 4,712,739
Staff welfare 137,726 13,999,472 122,749 12,207,963
Legal, Professional and Consultancy Expenses 398,982 40,555,515 258,427 25,701,827
Communication expenses 38,854 3,949,397 37,852 3,764,563
Lease rentals/charges 71,618 7,279,816 76,329 7,591,360
Recruitment 29,301 2,978,325 177,877 17,690,817
Audit Fees 55,478 5,639,228 54,155 5,385,949
Depreciation charges 137,613 13,988,007 142,240 14,146,450
Amortisation/Impairment charges 610,500 62,055,777 - -
Others 319,894 32,516,473 298,032 29,640,827
Total cost of sales, selling, general and administrative expenses 28,738,317 2,921,178,063 39,243,782 3,902,990,307

The total cost of sales, selling, general and administrative expenses in the table above includes £23,828,098 (2022: £35,597,912) towards cost of sales and £4,910,219 (2022: £3,645,870) towards
selling, general and administrative expenses. Depreciation charges above include depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment (refer Note 4) and depreciation on ROU assets (refer Note 18).

Cost of Sales

Cost of Sales primarily include employee compensation of personnel engaged in providing services, travel expenses, employee allowances, payroll related taxes, fees to external consultants engaged in
providing services, communication costs and other project related expenses.

Selling, general and administrative expenses

Selling costs primarily include employee compensation for sales and marketing personnel, travel costs, advertising, business promotion expenses, allowances for delinquent receivables and market
research costs.

General and administrative costs primarily include employee compensation for administrative, supervisory, managerial and practice management personnel, depreciation and amortization of non-
production equipment and software, facility expenses for administrative offices, communication costs, fees to external consultants and other general expenses.

All fees paid or payable to the auditors of the company related to the statutory audit of the company for the year ended 31st March 2023. There were no non-audit services received from the auditors
during the year

. Employee benefits

The average monthly number of staff employed by the Company during the financial year amounted to :

2023 2022

By Activity No No
Delivery 99 171
Marketing 12 1
Administration 8 9
119 191

Employee benefits include:
Year ended March 31,

2023 2023 2022 2022

£ 3 £ 4

Unaudited Unaudited

Wages and salaries 10,405,519 1,057,695,028 12,522,362 1,245,411,550
Social security costs 1,404,169 142,730,269 1,598,233 158,952,224
Total 11,809,688 1,200,425,297 14,120,595 1,404,363,774

An amount of £1,404,169 (2022: £1,598,233) has been recognised as an expense for the defined contribution plan.

The employee benefit cost is recognised in the following line items in the statement of income:
Year ended March 31,

2023 2023 2022 2022

£ g £ k4

Unaudited Unaudited

Cost of sales 7,963,034 809,422,543 11,410,408 1,134,822,168
Selling, general and administrative expenses 3,846,654 391,002,754 2,710,187 269,541,606
Total 11,809,688 1,200,425,297 14,120,595 1,404,363,774
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17.

20.

Finance and other income

Interest Income
Others
Total

. Leases
In relation to leases under IFRS 16, the group has recognised depreciation and interest costs as per the table below.

Right of Use Asset

Right of Use Asset - Buildings
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Right of Use Asset Net

Lease Liability

Opening Lease Liability

Add: Interest Cost on the Leases
Less: Lease Payments

Closing Lease Liability

Year ended March 31,

ITC INFOTECH LIMITED

2023 2023 2022 2022

£ N £ 3
Unaudited Unaudited

33,748 3,430,382 3,517 349,807
468 47,571 - -
34,216 3,477,953 3,517 349,807
As at As at As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2022
£ R £ R
Unaudited Unaudited

373,328 37,947,858 373,328 37,129,336
(314,382)  (31,956,119) (235,786)  (23,450,127)
58,946 5,991,739 137,542 13,679,209
As at As at As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2022
£ 3 £ R
Unaudited Unaudited

150,735 15,321,860 234,084 23,280,873
2,222 225,950 3,904 388,268
(87,274) (8,871,204) (87,253) (8,677,747)
65,683 6,676,606 150,735 14,991,394

The total cash outflow for leases for the year is £142,187 (including payments in respect short-term leases of £54,934 and lease of low value of assets NIL). The undiscounted potential future cash outflows

amount to £392,648.

. Contract Asset (Capitalized Cost) and Contract Liability

Contract Asset (capitalized cost)
Opening Contract Asset (capitalized cost)
Less: Amortisation/Impairment charges
Add: Forex Reinstatement

Closing Contract Asset (capitalized cost)
- Current

- Non Current

Contract Liability
Opening Contract Liability
Less: Payments

Add: Forex Reinstatement
Closing Contract Liability
- Current

- Non Current

As at As at As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2022
£ N £ 3
Unaudited Unaudited

1,129,603 114,821,309 1,122,923 111,680,278
(610,500) (62,055,769) (12,389) (1,232,131)
87,346 8,878,503 19,069 1,896,507
606,449 61,644,043 1,129,603 112,344,654

- - 146,912 14,611,111
606,449 61,644,043 982,691 97,733,543
606,449 61,644,043 1,129,603 112,344,654
As at As at As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2022
£ 3 £ 3
Unaudited Unaudited

856,654 87,076,708 1,122,923 111,680,278
- - (283,768) (28,222,146)

53,020 5,389,398 17,499 1,740,362
909,674 92,466,106 856,654 85,198,494
909,674 92,466,106 283,768 28,222,146

- - 572,886 56,976,348
909,674 92,466,106 856,654 85,198,494

Due to changes in the economic environment, and the changing banking landscape, we have calibrated expected returns compared to the projections considered at the time of
entering the original agreement, resulting in downward assessment in the contract asset (capitalized cost) value which has been included as Amortisation/Impairment charges
above. The value of the contract asset (capitalized cost) will be assessed at future reporting period ends to cognize for any change in expected return from the agreement.

Related party relationships and transactions

Name of related party
i)  Ultimate Parent Company:

ITC Limited, Virginia House, 37 |. L. Nehru Road, Kolkata — 700071, India

ii) Immediate Parent Company:

ITC Infotech India Limited, Virginia House, 37 J. L. Nehru Road, Kolkata — 700071, India
iii) Other Related Parties With Whom The Company Had Transactions.
Subsidiaries of Inmediate Parent Company:

ITC Infotech (USA), Inc.
Indivate Inc.



Notes to the financial statements (Contd.)

Transactions with the above related parties during the year were:

ITC INFOTECH LIMITED

Holding Company Fellow Subsidiaries
Fortheyearended/  Fortheyearended/  Fortheyearended/  Fortheyearended/ Fortheyearended/ Forthe yearended/  Fortheyearended /  For the year ended /
Asat31March 2023  Asat31March2023  Asat31March 2022 Asat31March 2022 Asat 31 March 2023 Asat 31 March 2023 Asat 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2022
£ 3 £ 3 £ g £ g
Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited
Sale of goods/Services - - - - 28,202 2,866,704 53,926 5,363,253
Reimbursement of Expenses 75,447 7,668,979 42,833 4,259,971 - - - -
Purchase of goods/Services 12,005,735 1,220,352,948 21,440,981 2,132,412,797 - - - -
Balance as on 31st March
Trade receivables 29,384 2,986,830 12,441 1,237,274 - - - -
Trade payables (161,646) (16,430,912) 3,356,446 333,815,368 - - - -
Key Managerial Personnel:
Non-Executive Directors
S. Puri Chairman
S. Sivakumar Vice Chairman
R. Singhi (appointed w.e.f. 21st July 2022) Director
S. Singh Director
S. Dutta (appointed w.e.f. 21st July 2022) Director
B.B.Chatterjee (ceased to be Director w.e.f. 20th July 2022) Director
R. Tandon (ceased to be Director w.e.f. 21st July 2022) Director
Others
A. Roy President
Transactions with key management personnel are as given below:
Key management personnel comprise directors and president of the Company. Particulars of compensation of the key management personnel during the year ended March
31, 2023, and March 31, 2022 have been detailed below:
Year ended March 31,
2023 2023 2022 2022
£ g 3
Unaudited Unaudited
President:
Short term benefits 611,222 62,129,219 591,384 58,816,049

None of the directors received any emoluments for their services to the company, nor were any amounts recharged by or payable to any other organization or company for the directors’ services to

the company.

21. Ultimate parent company and immediate parent company

The immediate parent undertaking is ITC Infotech India Limited, with its registered office at 37 |. L. Nehru Road, Kolkata - 700071, India and is a wholly owned subsidiary of ITC
Limited. This is the smallest group of undertakings for which consolidated financial statements are being drawn up including this company.

The ultimate parent undertaking and controlling related party is ITC Limited, which is incorporated in India. This is the largest group of undertakings for which consolidated financial
statements are being drawn up including this company. Copies of ITC Limited consolidated financial statements can be obtained from the Company Secretary at 37 ). L. Nehru

Road, Kolkata - 700071, India.
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MANAGEMENT REPORT

The Administrators of the Company submit their First Report together with
the Audited Financial Statements for the period from 10th October, 2022,
being the date of incorporation of the Company, to 31st March, 2023.

Incorporation

The Company was incorporated on 10th October, 2022 in the State of Sdo
Paulo, Brazil. The Company’s capital is fully owned and held by ITC Infotech
India Limited.

Principal Activities

The Company is engaged in providing Information Technology Services
and Solutions.

Financial Results

(BRL ‘000)
Period Ended March 31, 2023
Total Revenue 1373.06
Operating Income / (Loss) 169.21
Profit / (Loss) After Tax 117.68

Profits (Losses) Allocation

The Administrators recommend the retention of profit earned for the period
ended 31st March, 2023, in order to meet the Company’s annual budget
and for growth of the Company.

Management

Mr. Mauricio Dias Junior and Mr. Caio Kozakevic Mattar, both resident and
domiciled in Brazil, have been appointed as the first Administrators of the
Company.

Auditors

The Company is not required to audit its Financial Statements for the
period ended 31st March, 2023 as per local laws. However, as a measure of
good governance, the Company has engaged Messrs. Deloitte Haskins &
Sells LLP, India, as the Auditors for the period under review. Their Report is
annexed to the Financial Statements of the Company.

On behalf of ITC Infotech Do Brasil LTDA.

Mauricio Dias Junior

Date: 2nd May, 2023 Administrator

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Management Committee of
ITC Infotech DO Brasil LTDA.

Report on the Special Purpose Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Special Purpose Financial Statements
of ITC Infotech DO Brasil LTDA. (“the Company”), which comprise the
Special Purpose Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Special Purpose
Statement of Profit and Loss, the Special Purpose Statement of Changes in
Equity and the Special Purpose Cash Flow Statement for the period October
10, 2022 till March 31, 2023, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the
“Special Purpose Financial Statements”). The Special Purpose Financial
Statements are prepared for inclusion in the annual report of the Ultimate
Holding Company ITC Limited under the requirements of section 129(3) of
the Companies Act, 2013.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the aforesaid Special Purpose Financial Statements
are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the basis of
preparation set out in Note 1(a) to the Special Purpose Financial Statements.
Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Special Purpose Financial Statements
in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (the “SAs”) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI”). Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Special Purpose Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code
of Ethics issued by the ICAI and we have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the requirements of the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Special Purpose Financial
Statements.

Emphasis of Matter

Basis of preparation and restriction on distribution and use

We draw attention to Note 1(a) to the Special Purpose Financial Statements,
which describes the purpose and basis of preparation. The Special Purpose
Financial Statements have been prepared by the Company for the purpose
of the information and use of the Company’s management. The Special
Purpose Financial Statements may not be suitable for any another purpose.
Our report is intended solely for the information and use of the Management
Committee and management of ITC Infotech Do Brasil LTDA. and its group
companies and is not intended to be and should not be referred to or used

by any other party or for any other purpose except with our prior consent
in writing. We neither accept nor assume any duty, responsibility or liability
to any other party or for any other purpose.

Our report is not modified in respect of this matter.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance
for the Special Purpose Financial Statements

The Company’s Management Committee are responsible for the preparation
of these Special Purpose Financial Statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the basis described in Note 1(a)
to the Special Purpose Financial Statements.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Special Purpose
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Special Purpose Financial Statements, the Company’s
Management Committee is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. The Management
Committee is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Special Purpose Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
Special Purpose Financial Statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Special Purpose
Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional
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judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Special
Purpose Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the Special Purpose Financial Statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Special

Purpose Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and whether

the Special Purpose Financial Statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Special Purpose
Financial Statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable
that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
Special Purpose Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of
our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the Special Purpose Financial
Statements.
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 117366W/W-100018

Girish Bagri
Partner
Membership No. 066572
UDIN: 23066572BGXZL0O9496
Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 2, 2023




ITC INFOTECH DO BRASIL LTDA.

SPECIAL PURPOSE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2023

| ASSETS

1

Non-current Assets

(a) Deferred Tax Assets (Net)
Sub-Total

Current Assets

(a) Financial Assets
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents
(ii) Others

(b) Other Current Assets

Sub-Total

TOTAL

1 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1

Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital
(b) Other Equity

Non-current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(ii) Others
Sub-Total
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Trade Payable and Accrued expenses
(ii) Others
(b) Other Current Liabilities
(c) Provisions
Sub-Total
TOTAL

Note No.

“©v w N

11
10

The accompanying notes 1 to 21 are an integral part of the Special purpose Financial Statements.

This is the Special Purpose Balance Sheet referred to in our Report of even date
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP,

Firm Registration Number: 117366 W/W-100018
Chartered Accountants

Girish Bagri

Partner

Membership Number: 066572
Place: Bengaluru
Date: 2nd May, 2023

Mauricio Dias
Administrator

As at As at

31st March 2023 31st March 2023
(BRL) (INR)
(Unaudited)

131,760 2,125,183
131,760 2,125,183
1,656,995 26,726,004
1,610,077 25,969,254
44,434 716,686
3,311,506 53,411,944
3,443,266 55,537,127
2,600,000 41,935,920
117,681 1,898,100
2,717,681 43,834,020
80,162 1,292,949
80,162 1,292,949
37,512 605,039
295,401 4,764,582
101,328 1,634,340
211,182 3,406,197
645,423 10,410,158
3,443,266 55,537,127

On behalf of the Company
Soumyarup Roy
Management Committee Member



ITC INFOTECH DO BRASIL LTDA.

SPECIAL PURPOSE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS*
* For the period 10th October 2022 to 31st March 2023

For the period ended For the period ended
Note No. 31st March 2023 31st March 2023
(BRL) (INR)
(Unaudited)
| Revenue from Operations 12 1,373,055 22,146,279
1] Total Income 1,373,055 22,146,279
1] Expenses - -
Employee Benefits Expense 13 1,027,261 16,568,899
Other Expenses 14 176,580 2,848,094
Total Expenses W W
IV Profit Before Tax (lI-Il) T 169,214 T 2,729,286
\ Tax Expenses 15
Current Tax 183,293 2,956,369
Deferred Tax (Credit) (131,760) (2,125,183)
51,533 831,186
\ Profit for the Period (VI-V) 117,681 1,898,100
\ Earnings Per Share (Face value BRL 1 each) 16 0.10 1.55

(Basic and diluted)

There were no items of comprehensive income in the current period, and accordingly, no statement of comprehensive Income is presented.
The accompanying notes 1 to 21 are an integral part of the Special purpose Financial Statements.

This is the Special Purpose Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our Report of even date

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP,

Firm Registration Number: 117366 W/W-100018

Chartered Accountants

Girish Bagri On behalf of the Company
Partner Mauricio Dias Soumyarup Roy
Membership Number: 066572 Administrator Management Committee Member

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 2nd May, 2023

SPECIAL PURPOSE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023*
*For the period 10th October 2022 to 31st March 2023

A.  Equity Share Capital

Opening Balance Changes in Equity Share Capital Balance at Balance at
(BRL) during the year 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2023
( BRL) (INR)
- 2,600,000 2,600,000 41,935,920
B.  Other Equity
Retained Earning Total Total
(BRL) (INR)
Balance as at 1st April, 2022 - - -
Profit for the Period 117,681 117,681 1,898,100
Total Comprehensive Income 117,681 117,681 1,898,100
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 117,681 117,681 1,898,100

Retained Earnings: This represents the cumulative profits of the Company.
The accompanying notes 1 to 21 are an integral part of the Special purpose Financial Statements.
This is the Special Purpose Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our Report of even date.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP,
Firm Registration Number: 117366 W/W-100018
Chartered Accountants

Girish Bagri On behalf of the Company
Partner Mauricio Dias Soumyarup Roy
Membership Number: 066572 Administrator Management Committee Member

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 2nd May, 2023



ITC INFOTECH DO BRASIL LTDA.

SPECIAL PURPOSE CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023*
*For the period 10th October 2022 to 31st March 2023

For the period ended For the period ended
31st March 2023 31st March 2023
(BRL) (INR)
A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 169,214 2,729,286
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES 169,214 2,729,286
ADJUSTMENTS FOR :
Other Assets (1,654,511) (26,685,939)
Trade Payables, Other Liabilities and Provisions 542,292 1,112,219) 8,746,737 (17,939,202)
CASH FROM OPERATIONS (943,005) (15,209,916)
Income Tax Paid - -
NET CASH FROM/ (USED) IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES (943,005) (15,209,916)
B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES : - -
NET CASH FROM / (USED) IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES - -
C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
Capital infusion from Parent 2,600,000 41,935,920
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES 2,600,000 41,935,920
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,656,995 26,726,004
OPENING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - -
CLOSING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,656,995 26,726,004
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS COMPRISE : - -
Cash and Cash Equivalents as above 1,656,995 26,726,004

Unrealised (Loss) / Gain on Foreign Currency

Cash and Cash Equivalents - -

Cash and Cash Equivalents (Refer Note 2) 1,656,995 26,726,004
The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in Indian Accounting Standard 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”.
The accompanying notes 1 to 21 are an integral part of the Special purpose Financial Statements

This is the Special Purpose Cash Flow Statements referred to in our Report of even date

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP,
Firm Registration Number: 117366 W/W-100018
Chartered Accountants

Girish Bagri On behalf of the Company
Partner Mauricio Dias Soumyarup Roy
Membership Number: 066572 Administrator Management Committee Member

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 2nd May, 2023



ITC INFOTECH DO BRASIL LTDA.

NOTES TO THE SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NATURE OF OPERATIONS

ITC Infotech DO Brasil LTDA (the “Company”), a company incorporated
in Brazil, is engaged in providing information technology services. The
Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC Infotech India Limited., an
Indian company. There are 2,600,000 common shares authorized and
issued to ITC Infotech India Ltd.

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of presentation and statement of compliance

(b)

(d)

(e

~

These Special Purpose Financial Statements comprising the
Special Purpose Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023 and Special
Purpose Statement of Profit and Loss, Special Purpose Statement of
Changes in Equity and Special Purpose Cash Flow statement for the
period 10th October, 2022 till 31st March, 2023 and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(together referred to as “Special Purpose Financial Statements”
are prepared for inclusion in the annual report of the Ultimate
Holding Company (ITC Limited) under the requirements of section
129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013*. The financial performance
and position of the Company are included in the consolidated
financial statements of the Holding Company, ITC Infotech India
Limited, incorporated under the Companies Act, 2013, and having
its registered office 37 J. L. Nehru Road, Kolkata 700071, India.

These Special Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared
in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) and
generally accepted accounting principles in India. Accordingly,
these Special Purpose financial statements do not purport to follow
Brazil GAAP.

These Special Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared on
a historical cost convention and on an accrual basis, except for the
following material items that have been measured as fair value as
required by the relevant Ind AS and explained in the accounting
policy on financial instruments classified as fair value through profit
or loss.

Since it is a newly established company incorporated on 10th
October, 2022, Accounting policies have been applied consistently
throughout the period presented in these Special Purpose Financial
Statements. Disclosures have been given which are relevant to and
materially affect the company’s financial position, and financial
performance of the Company. Accordingly, financial information
for comparative period is not presented.

* Companies Act, 2013 refers to the Companies Act, 2013 of India
Convenience Translation (unaudited)

These Special Purpose financial statements are presented in
Brazilian Real. However, as required by the parent company ITC
Infotech India Ltd., the Indian Rupee equivalent figures, arrived
at by applying the average interbank exchange rate of BRL= INR
16.1292 for period ended 31st March, 2023 as provided by ITC
Infotech India Ltd, have been included solely for informational
purposes and is not in conformity with the provisions of Ind AS.

Use of Estimates and Judgment

The preparation of the Special Purpose financial statements in
conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized
in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future
periods affected. In particular, information about significant areas
of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the financial statements are included in
Income taxes note.

Operating Cycle

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-
current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other
criteria set out in Ind AS 1 — Presentation of Financial Statements
based on the nature of services rendered and their realization in
cash and cash equivalents.

Foreign Currency Transactions

The presentation & functional currency of the Company is Brazilian
Real being the currency of the primary economic environment

)

in which the entity operates. The factors considered include the
following:

a. Currency that influences sales prices for goods and services
and is of a country whose competitive forces and regulations
determine the sales prices of its goods and services.

b. Currency that influences labor, material and other costs of
providing goods or services.

c.  Currency in which funds from financing activities are generated
and

d. Currency in which receipts from operating activities are usually
retained.

Financial instruments, Financial assets and Financial liabilities
Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when
the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the relevant instrument and are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit
or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value on initial
recognition of financial assets or financial liabilities. Purchase or
sale of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market place
(regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date
when the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Financial Assets

Recognition: Financial assets include advances and cash and cash
equivalents. Such assets are initially recognized when the Company
becomes party to contractual obligations at fair value including
transaction costs unless the asset is being fair valued through the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Classification: Management determines the classification of an
asset at initial recognition depending on the purpose for which the
assets were acquired. The subsequent measurement of financial
assets depends on such classification.

Financial assets are classified as those measured at:

(a) amortized cost, where the financial assets are held solely for
collection of cash flows arising from payments of principal and
/ or interest.

(b) fair value through other comprehensive income, where the
financial assets are held not only for collection of cash flows
arising from payments of principal and interest but also
from the sale of such assets. Such assets are subsequently
measured at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses arising
from changes in the fair value being recognized in other
comprehensive income.

(c) fair value through profit or loss, where the assets are managed
in accordance with an approved investment strategy that
triggers purchase and sale decisions based on the fair value
of such assets. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair
value, with unrealized gains and losses arising from changes in
the fair value being recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss in the period in which they arise.

Impairment: The Company assesses at each reporting date
whether a financial asset (or a group of financial assets) held
at amortized cost and financial assets that are measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income are impaired
based on evidence or information that is available without
undue cost or effort. Expected credit losses are assessed and
loss allowances recognized if the credit quality of the financial
asset has deteriorated significantly since initial recognition.

Reclassification: When and only when the business model
is changed, the Company shall reclassify all affected
financial assets prospectively from the reclassification date as
subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, fair value through profit or loss
without restating the previously recognized gains, losses or
interest and in terms of the reclassification principles laid down
in the Ind AS relating to Financial Instruments.

De-recognition: Financial assets are derecognized when the
right to receive cash flows from the assets has expired, or has



ITC INFOTECH DO BRASIL LTDA.

NOTES TO THE SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(C))

(h)

@

been transferred, and the Company has transferred substantially
all of the risks and rewards of ownership. Concomitantly, if the
asset is one that is measured at:

(a) amortized cost, the gain or loss is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss;

(b) fair value through other comprehensive income, the
cumulative fair value adjustments previously taken to
reserves are reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss
unless the asset represents an equity investment in which
case the cumulative fair value adjustments previously taken
to reserves is reclassified within equity.

Income Recognition on Financial Assets: Interest income is
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss using the effective
interest method.

Financial Liabilities

Trade payables and other financial liabilities are initially recognized
at the value of the respective contractual obligations. They are
subsequently measured at amortized cost. Any discount or premium
on redemption / settlement is recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss as finance cost over the life of the liability using
the effective interest method and adjusted to the liability figure
disclosed in the Balance Sheet. Financial liabilities are derecognized
when the liability is extinguished, that is, when the contractual
obligation is discharged, cancelled and on expiry.

Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is
included in the Balance Sheet where there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Revenue from Sale of Products and Services

The Company is engaged in providing information technology
services to enterprise clients. The Company derives its revenues
primarily from Information Technology (IT) services.

Revenues from customer contracts are considered for recognition
and measurement when the contract has been approved, by the
parties, to the contract, the parties to the contract are committed
to perform their respective obligations under the contract, and the
contract is legally enforceable. Revenue is recognized upon transfer
of control of promised services (“performance obligations”)
to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the
Company has received or expects to receive in exchange for
these products or services (“transaction price”). When there is
uncertainty as to collectability, revenue recognition is postponed
until such uncertainty is resolved.

The Company assesses the services promised in a contract
and identifies distinct performance obligations in the contract.
The Company allocates the transaction price to each distinct
performance obligation based on the cost plus a margin.

Employee Benefits

The Company maintains a Supplemental Pension Plan for
employees. Employees may contribute an amount not exceeding
5.42% of their base salary. The Company makes a matching
contribution equal to 100% of the employee’s contribution.
The Pension expense for the years ended March 31, 2023 was
BRL 14,724 (INR 237,493).

Taxes on Income

Taxes on income comprises current taxes and deferred taxes.
Current tax in the Statement of Profit and Loss is provided as the
amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the period
using tax rates and tax laws enacted during the period, together
with any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and the amounts used for
taxation purposes (tax base), at the tax rates and tax laws enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for the future tax consequences
to the extent it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences can
be utilized.

Operating Segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker
(CODM). The CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources

and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the Management Committee (MC). The Company
is currently operating in a single segment i.e., Information
Technology.

(k) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when, as a result of a past event, the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
the amount can be reliably estimated. The amount so recognized
is a best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
obligation at the reporting date, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

In an event when the time value of money is material, the provision
is carried at the present value of the cash flows estimated to settle
the obligation.

() Statement of Cash Flow

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit
for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash
nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated
with investing or financing cash flows. The cash from operating,
investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

(m) New Accounting Pronouncements

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has issued the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2023 on 31st
March, 2023 amending:

Ind AS 1, ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ - The amendments
require companies to disclose their material accounting policies
rather than their significant accounting policies.

Ind AS 8 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors’ — This amendment has introduced a definition of ‘accounting
estimates’ and included amendments to help distinguish changes
in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates.

Ind AS 12 ‘Income Taxes’ - This amendment has narrowed the
scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not apply
to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary
differences.

The same are applicable for financial statements pertaining
to annual periods beginning on or after 1st April, 2023. The
Company expects that there will be no material impact on the
financial statements resulting from the implementation of these
amendments.

2. CURRENT ASSETS: FINANCIAL ASSETS - CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
As at As at
31st Mar, 2023  31st Mar, 2023
(BRL) (INR)
(Unaudited)
Balances with Banks:
Current Accounts 1,656,995 26,726,004
Total 1,656,995 26,726,004
3. CURRENT ASSETS: FINANCIAL ASSETS — OTHERS
As at As at
31st Mar, 2023  31st Mar, 2023
(BRL) (INR)
(Unaudited)
Unsecured Considered Good,
Unless Otherwise Stated
Unbilled Revenue 1,373,055 22,146,279
Advances (includes advance
to employees)
- Considered Good 237,022 3,822,975
Total 1,610,077 25,969,254
4. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
Opening | Recognized | Recognized | Closing Closing
Balance | in Statement in OCI Balance Balance
(BRL) of profit or (BRL) (BRL) (INR)
loss (BRL) (Unaudited)
FY 2022-23
Deferred Tax Assets:
On provision for
employees’ separation
and retirement, etc. - 131,760 - 131,760 | 2,125,183
Total Deferred Tax
Assets - 131,760 - 131,760 | 2,125,183
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Opening | Recognized | Recognized | Closing Closing
Balance | in Statement in OCl Balance Balance
(BRL) of profit or (BRL) (BRL) (INR)
loss (BRL) (Unaudited)
Deferred Tax
Liabilities:
Total Deferred Tax
Liabilities _ N - - -
Deferred Tax Assets
(Net) - 131,760 - 131,760 | 2,125,183
5. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
As at As at
31st Mar, 2023  31st Mar, 2023
(BRL) (INR)
(Unaudited)
Prepaid expenses 44,434 716,686
Total 44,434 716,686
6. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
As at As at
31st Mar, 2023  31st Mar, 2023
(BRL) (INR)
(Unaudited)
Authorized:
2,600,000 Equity Shares of BRL 1 each 2,600,000 41,935,920
Issued and subscribed:
2,600,000 Equity Shares of
BRL 1 each, fully paid
(All equity shares are held by
ITC Infotech India Ltd., the
Holding Company. The equity
shares of the company, having
par value of BRL 1 each per share,
rank pari passu in all respects
including entitlement to Dividend) 2,600,000 41,935,920
Total 2,600,000 41,935,920
SHARES HELD BY PROMOTERS:
As at 31st March 2023
. Promoter
Particulars Name No. of shares 9% of Total % c.hange
as at end of during the
Shares
the year year
Equity shares of BRL 1 ITC Infotech 2,600,000 100% 100%
each, fully paid India Ltd.
7. NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - OTHERS
As at As at
31st Mar, 2023  31st Mar, 2023
(BRL) (INR)
(Unaudited)
Employee Payable 80,162 1,292,949
Total 80,162 1,292,949
8. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES — TRADE PAYABLES
Particulars Outstanding for following periods
Trade Payable
asat3lst | o Accrued | Less than Gth 12 | 23 | Total | Total (INR)
March, 2023 Due ccrue 6 months months years | years | (BRL) | (Unaudited
-1year
Others 37,512 -137,512 605,039
Total 37,512 - 137,512 605,039
9. CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - OTHERS
As at As at
31st Mar, 2023 31st Mar, 2023
(BRL) (INR)
(Unaudited)
Employee Payable 295,401 4,764,582
Total 295,401 4,764,582

10. PROVISIONS

ITC INFOTECH DO BRASIL LTDA.

As at As at
31st Mar, 2023  31st Mar, 2023
(BRL) (INR)
(Unaudited)
Current
Provision for Income Tax 183,293 2,956,369
Provision for Employee Benefits
Social Contributions 14,724 237,486
Compensated Absences 13,165 212,342
Total 211,182 3,406,197
11. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
As at As at
31st Mar, 2023  31st Mar, 2023
(BRL) (INR)
(Unaudited)
Statutory Dues 101,328 1,634,340
Total 101,328 1,634,340

12. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
For the Period

For the Period

ended ended
31st March’23 31st March’23
(BRL) (INR)
(Unaudited)

Sale of Services
Exports 1,373,055 22,146,279
Total 1,373,055 22,146,279

Income from services rendered to group companies are recognized
based on cost plus mark-up in accordance with the terms of the

respective agreements.

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
For the Period

For the Period

ended ended
31st March’23  31st March’23
(BRL) (INR)
(Unaudited)
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
Salaries and Bonus 790,002 12,742,100
Contribution to Provident and
Other Funds 224,210 3,616,329
Staff Welfare Expenses 13,049 210,470
Total 1,027,261 16,568,899

14. OTHER EXPENSES
For the Period

For the Period

ended ended
31st March’23 31st March’23
(BRL) (INR)
(Unaudited)
OTHER EXPENSES

Rates and Taxes 9,880 159,356
Insurance 119,889 1,933,714
Communication 2,250 36,291

Legal, Professional and Consultancy
Expenses 12,686 204,615
Auditors’ Remuneration and Expenses 31,000 500,005
Bank Charges 875 14,113
Total 176,580 2,848,094

15. A. TAX EXPENSES
For the Period

For the Period

ended ended

31st March’23  31st March’23

(BRL) (INR)

(Unaudited)

Current Tax 183,293 2,956,369
183,293 2,956,369

Deferred Tax (Credit) (131,760) (2,125,183)
Total 51,533 831,186




NOTES TO THE SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

16.

17.

18.

B. The reconciliation between the income tax expenses and amounts
computed by applying the standard rate of income tax to profit
before taxes is as follows:

For the Period For the Period

ended ended
31st March’23 31st March’23
(BRL) (INR)
(Unaudited)
Profit before tax 169,214 2,729,286
Income tax expense calculated
at 15% on Profit before tax 25,382 409,389
Social Contribution on Profit before
Tax at 9% 15,230 245,646
Surtax of Income tax at 10% on profit
before tax above BRL 60,000 10,921 176,151
Income Tax expenses recognized in
Statement of Profit and Loss 51,533 831,186
EARNINGS PER SHARE
For the Period For the Period
ended ended
31st March’23 31st March’23
(BRL) (INR)
(Unaudited)
Profit after Tax 117,681 1,898,100
Weighted average number of
Equity Shares No. 1,225,205 1,225,205
Earnings Per Share 0.10 1.55
(Face value of BRL 1 per share)
(Basic and Diluted)
CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
As at As at
31st March’23 31st March’23
(BRL) (INR)
(Unaudited)
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Value Value Value Value
Financial Assets
Measured at amortized cost
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,656,995 1,656,995 26,726,004 26,726,004
Other Financial Assets 1,610,077 1,610,077 25,969,254 25,969,254
Total 3,267,072 3,267,072 52,695,258 52,695,258
Financial Liabilities
Measured at amortized cost
Trade Payables 37,512 37,512 605,039 605,039
Other Financial Liabilities —
Non-Current 80,162 80,162 1,292,949 1,292,949
Other Financial Liabilities - Current 295,401 295,401 4,764,582 4,764,582
Total 413,075 413,075 6,662,570 6,662,570

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

The Company has a system - based approach to risk management,
anchored to policies and procedures and internal financial controls
aimed at ensuring early identification, evaluation and management of
key financial risks (such as foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk) that may arise as a consequence of its business operations.
i.  Market Risk
The Company has in place appropriate risk management policies
to limit the impact of currency, interest and price risk on its
financial performance.
ii. Foreign Currency Risk
The Company undertakes transactions denominated in functional
currency - Brazilian Real
iii. Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk refers to the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. As all the financial assets and liabilities of the
Company are non-interest bearing, the Company’s net exposure
to interest risk is nil.
iv. Price Risk
Since all the funds are kept in the bank account there is no price
risk on such surplus funds.
v. Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be
able to settle or meet its obligations as they become due.
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The Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring that it will always
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due.

The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual
maturities of significant financial liabilities at the reporting date.

As at 31st March, 2023
Contractual Cash flows*
Carrying | Less More | More | More |Beyond | Total Total
value than3 | than3 | than6 | than | 3years | (BRL) (INR)
months | months | months | 1year (Unaudited)
upto6 |uptol |upto3
months | year | years
Trade Payables 37,512 37,512 - - - 37,512 605,039
Other Financial | 375,563 | 236,692 -| 58,709 | 80,162 - 375,563 | 6,057,531
Liabilities
Total 413,075 | 274,204 -| 58,709 | 80,162 - 413,075 6,662,570

vi. Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations
under a financial instrument which may lead to a financial loss
to the Company. During the FY and as at the reporting period
there is no external risk as there is no revenue from any external
customers.

19. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(i) Ultimate Holding Company:
ITC Limited
(ii) Holding Company:
ITC Infotech India Limited
(iii) Fellow Subsidiary Companies:
ITC Infotech Limited
ITC Infotech (USA), Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiary Indivate Inc.
ITC Infotech Malaysia SDN. BHD.
ITC Infotech GmbH
ITC Infotech France SAS
(iv) Key Management Personnel
Administrators
Mr. Mauricio Dias
Mr. Caio Matter
Disclosure of transactions between the Company and Related Parties:

(v) Holding Company - ITC Infotech India Ltd. (w.e.f from 10th
October, 2022)

Holding Company

. For the period ended
Description For the period Fnded 31st March’23
31st March’23
(BRL) (INR)
(Unaudited)
Sale of Services 1,373,055 22,146,279

(vi) Disclosure of Outstanding Balances as at 31st March, 2023

Holding Company

. For the period ended
Description For the period Iended 315t March'23
31st March’23
(BRL) (INR)
(Unaudited)
Financial Assets - 1,373,055 22,146,279
Others (Unbilled)

(vii) Information regarding significant transactions
(Generally in excess of 10% of the total transaction value of the

same type)
Related Party 2023 2023 Related Party 2023 2023
Transactions (BRL) (INR) Transactions (BRL) (INR)
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Sale of Goods / Remuneration to
Services Key Management
Personnel (KMP)
ITC Infotech India | 1,373,055 | 22,146,279 | Mauricio Dias Junior 221,229 | 3,568,247
Limited
Caio Kozakevic Mattar
20. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

21.

The Company evaluated subsequent events through 2nd May, 2023
which is the date on which the Special Purpose Financial Statements
are approved by Management Committee. Based on this evaluation,
the Company is not aware of any other events or transactions that
would require recognition or disclosure in the Special Purpose
Financial Statements.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Special Purpose Financial Statements were approved for issue by
the Management Committee on 2nd May, 2023.
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MANAGEMENT REPORT

The Managing Director submits the first Management Report for the period
from 10th March, 2023, being the date of incorporation of the Company,
to 31st March, 2023.

Incorporation

The Company was incorporated on 10th March, 2023 in Frankfurt,
Germany. The Company'’s shares are fully subscribed by ITC Infotech India
Limited.

Principal Activities

The Company is engaged in providing Information Technology Services and
Solutions. For the period ended 31st March, 2023, the Company earned
Total Revenue of EUR 7,150 while the net Profit After Tax was EUR 442.

Directors

Messrs. Arun Raghavapudi (Chairman of the Board), Karan Shukla and
Sharad Jain have been appointed as the Members of the Board of the
Company for a term of 5 years.

Managing Director

Mr. Anindya Roy has been appointed as the sole Managing Director of the
Company.

Auditors

The Company is not required to audit its Financial Statements for the
period ended 31st March, 2023 as per local laws. However, as a measure of
good governance, the Company has engaged Messrs. Deloitte Haskins &
Sells LLP, India, as the Auditors for the period under review. Their Report is
annexed to the Financial Statements of the Company.

On behalf of ITC Infotech GmbH

Anindya Roy

Date: 29th April, 2023 Managing Director

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF ITC INFOTECH GMBH

Report on the Special Purpose Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Special Purpose Financial Statements
of ITC Infotech GmbH (“the Company”), which comprise the Special
Purpose Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Special Purpose Statement
of Profit and Loss, the Special Purpose Statement of Changes in Equity and
the Special Purpose Cash Flow Statement for the period March 10, 2023
till March 31, 2023, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the “Special
Purpose Financial Statements”). The Special Purpose Financial Statements
are prepared for inclusion in the annual report of the Ultimate Holding
Company ITC Limited under the requirements of section 129(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the aforesaid Special Purpose Financial Statements
are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the basis of
preparation set out in Note 1(a) to the Special Purpose Financial Statements.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Special Purpose Financial Statements
in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (the “SAs”) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI”). Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Special Purpose Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the requirements of the ICAl’s Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Special Purpose
Financial Statements.

Emphasis of Matter
Basis of preparation and restriction on distribution and use

We draw attention to Note 1(a) to the Special Purpose Financial Statements,
which describes the purpose and basis of preparation. The Special Purpose
Financial Statements have been prepared by the Company for the
purpose of the information and use of the Company’s management. The
Special Purpose Financial Statements may not be suitable for any another
purpose. The Special Purpose Financial Statements cannot be referred to or
distributed for any other purpose except with our prior consent in writing.
Our report is addressed to the Board of Directors of the Company. This
report should not be otherwise used or shown to or otherwise distributed to
any other party or used for any other purpose except with our prior consent

in writing. We neither accept nor assume any duty, responsibility or liability
to any other party or for any other purpose.

Our report is not modified in respect of this matter.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for
the Special Purpose Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of
these Special Purpose Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the basis described in Note 1(a)
to the Special Purpose Financial Statements.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Special Purpose
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Special Purpose Financial Statements, the Company’s
Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. The Board of Directors
are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Special Purpose Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
Special Purpose Financial Statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Special Purpose
Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Special
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Purpose Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
col